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DECLARATION,

We, the undersigned, in our capacity of administrators of Banca Comerciala Romana S.A.,, and
in accordance with Art. 30 of the Accounting Law no. 82/1991 republished, undertake full
responsibility for the preparation of the annual financial statements as at 31.12.2014 and
declare the following:

a) The accounting policies used for the preparation of the financial statements for 2014 are
in compliance with the accounting standards applicable to credit institutions,
correspondingly in accordance with the NBR's Order no. 27/2010 for the approval of the
Accounting Regulations compliant to International Financial Reporting Standards
applicable to credit institutions, as subsequently amended and supplemented by the
NBR’s Order no. 26/2011 and Order no.29/2011;

b) The annual financial statements reflect a true and fair view of the finandial position,
financial performance and further information related to the activity of the bank;

c) Banca Comerciala Romana S.A. carries out its activity on a going concern basis.

Chief Financial Officer,

ADRIANA/JANKOVICOVA
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ADMINISTRATORS’ REPORT
Romanian Commercial Bank

Regarding the Financial year 2014

A. Macroeconomic environment in 2014

Real GDP growth was 2.9% in the first three quarters of 2014, with positive contribution of
households’ consumption and deep contraction of gross fixed capital formation due to very
low public investments in infrastructure ahead of November presidential elections and
private sector deleveraging on the FX side of its balance sheet. Investments fell for the
eighth straight quarter in 3Q 2014 and this development is worrisome for Romania’s
potential GDP which is already constrained by the slow recovery of the labor market and
limited progress in improving productivity in state-owned companies. Exports continued to
perform well with the industrial production being an important driver. The European Union
continued to represent the main export destination with 70% share. Services’ exports
jumped by more than 30.0% yfy in 3Q 2014 in line with ongoing acceleration of the gross
value added in IT&C sector, which came almost on a par with the gross value added in
agriculture, signaling an encouraging structural improvement in the Romanian economy.
Exports of goods lost some speed towards the end of the year due to feeble external
demand from non-EU countries. Government's propensity towards social and personnel
expenditure, very low inflation and modest improvement of the private segment of the labor
market helped households’ consumption advance by 3.5% on average in real terms in the
first three quarters of 2014.

Labor market improved slightly in 2014 and unemployment rate (International Labor Office
definition) fell to 6.4% in December from 7.0% at the beginning of the year. Real wage
growth strengthened to around 4.0% at the end of 2014 due to the falling inflation rate but
nominal wages continued to display different trends among economic sectors, with
stronger growth in export-oriented areas and disappointing evolution in sectors that offer
goods and services to the domestic market.

Inflation rate decreased below 1.0% in 2014 and stood below the lower bound of the
Central Bank target of 2.5%+1pp due to very low inflation in Eurozone, Romania’s main
trading partner, higher supply of fresh agricultural products on the local market due to
economic sanctions against Russia and steep fall of oil price in the second half of the year.
Households’ consumption has not strengthened to levels which would endanger price
stability and negative output gap was yet another reason for very low inflation.

The NBR eased monetary policy significantly throughout 2014, taking advantage of record
low infiation and stable FX market in spite of the conflict in Ukraine. S&P decision to
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upgrade Romania to investment grade in May was yet another element that boosted
investors’ confidence, enabling ambitious monetary easing. Key rate was cut by a
cumulative 125bp in 2014 to 2.75%, while minimum reserves were reduced by 5pp for
RON liabilities to 10.0% and 6pp for FX liabilities to 14.0%.

Gradual monetary easing was transmitted in the local banking sector in the form of lower
interest rates for new loans in local currency and lending in RON gained speed to 8.5% yly
in December 2014 from 0.7% in December 2013. Retail loans in RON accelerated to
double-digit annual levels helped by mortgage loans, while corporate loans in RON were
slower. FX loans contracted sharply in 2014 (-10.5% y/y in December based on
outstanding amounts) due to NBR’s restrictions, local banks’ strategy to reduce their
dependency on external funding lines and lower demand from clients due to the
increasingly attractive rates for RON loans. Deposits in RON maintained an annual growth
rate of around 9.0% during the entire year due to households’ cautious behavior and a lack
of viable new investment projects developed by local entrepreneurs. Share of FX loans in
total non-government loans in the Romanian banking sector fell to 56.2% in December
2014, the lowest level since the autumn of 2008, a development seen as positive by the
central bank. Loan to deposit ratio (RON+FX) decreased below 100% in mid-2014, a level
last seen before the lending boom of 2006-08.

Abundant liquidity on global financial markets due to accommodative monetary policy in
the US, Europe and Japan and government's adherence to budget deficit targets agreed
with the IMF reinforced foreign investors’ confidence in the Romanian economy and
enabled the Ministry of Finance to cover the budget deficit at low costs. Local currency
bonds rallied as investors seemed to overlook the political risk incurred by November
presidential elections and weak structure of budget execution, with disappointing revenue
collection, very low capital expenditure and a tendency towards social and personnel
expenditure. Yields fell by a whopping 200bp for five-year local currency government
bonds between January and December and five-year CDS spreads shrank by around 50bp
during the same interval.

RON traded within a narrow range of 4.4-4.5 most of the time and the NBR’s maintained its
managed floating FX regime, with interventions aimed at reducing excessive fluctuations of
the local currency. The NBR continued thus to favor a strategy of keeping the RON as
stable as possible with the cost of frequent decoupling episodes between the key rate and
short-term money market rates. While this strategy worked to some extent in a period of
falling interest rates, we think it should be avoided in the future because any episode of
sudden increase in short-term money market rates coupled with weak signal sent by the
future trajectory of the key rate would hurt lending in local currency.

Consolidated state budget ended 2014 with a deficit of 1.9% of GDP, within the target
agreed with the IMF of 2.2% of GDP. Similar to previous years, budget execution was
poor, with huge liquidity injections in the economy in December alone, reduction of capital
expenditure and no major results in terms of improving revenue collection. Personnel
expenditure increased at the end of 2014 after the payment of overdue salaries in the
public sector for employers who obtained favorable courts’ decisions. While this remains a
one-off budgetary item, it could be read in a wider context of strong focus of the
government on current spending at the expense of public investments.



Absorption of EU structural funds (annual inflows) rose to EUR 3.5 billion in 2014 from
EUR 2.9 billion in 2013, which corresponds to an absorption rate of 45.0% at the end of the
year (based on stock values). Transport, environment, regional development and increase
of economic competitiveness operational programs saw the largest inflows of EU structural
and cohesion funds in 2014. The government took action for strengthening the absorption
of structural and cohesion funds through the extension of Treasury loans for making
payments to the beneficiaries of EU funds and simplification of absorption procedures, but
more needs to be done in the following years to avoid losing money aliotted within the
European financial framework 2014-2020.

The relation between Romania and the International Monetary Fund (IMF)} seemed
different from the previous years, with the government being more inclined to follow fiscai
policies without the consent of the IMF and the IMF being no longer in a position to press
for deep structural reforms. Talks between the government and experts from the IMF and
the European Commission from June ended with no formal agreement and international
financial institutions agreed fo visit Bucharest later in the year for additional discussions.
Government's economic agenda was oriented more towards social issues in the context of
November presidential elections and restructuring of loss-making state-owned enterprises
lagged behind.

B. Important events since the end of 2014

2015 started with a continuation of the monetary easing cycle against the backdrop of a
very low inflationary environment and economy’s need for further strengthening of RON
lending. After disappointing results in terms of infrastructure spending in 2014, the
Romanian government presented a new version of the Transport Master Plan with
ambitious targets in building new highways until 2030. For the moment, the contribution of
the construction sector to real GDP growth remains modest and no strong acceleration of
economic growth is foreseen for 2015, households’ consumption being again a key driver
of the growth.

The NBR cut the key rate twice in the first two months of 2015, bringing it to a fresh-low of
2.25%. At the same time, it kept the wording *adequate liquidity management in the
banking system” in both press releases issued after monetary policy decisions, suggesting
that short-term money market rates would continue to decouple from the key rate. The
governor left the door open for further monetary easing in 2015 through prudent cuts in
minimum reserves.

At the beginning of February, the Prime Minister announced that the Romanian
government and a joint team of the IMF and EU reached no agreement for another review
of the precautionary stand-by arrangement. Liberalization of natural gas price for
households and thermo stations and restructuring of state-owned energy companies were
two major issues where the Romanian government and external partners had different
opinions. The government is behind the agreed schedule in these two areas and the IMF
asked for an enforcement of the previously agreed action plan. Regarding the deep
restructuring of energy companies, fearing the social impact that a bold restructuring would
have, the government presented an alternative view, with additional investments for
environment protection, better management and additional tatks with unions for delaying
wage growth which endanger the financial stability of these companies. PM Ponta added
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that current precautionary stand-by arrangement remains in place but no letter of
agreement has been signed and negotiations would continue in April.

C. Romanian Commercial Bank's Supervisory Board, Management Board, and
Assets and Liabilities Committee structure during 01.01 - 31.12.2014

1. Supervisory Board

Period 01.01 - 30.11.2014

¢ Manfred Wimmer - Chairman
¢ Andreas Treichl - Deputy Chairman
¢ Herbert Juranek - member
¢ Gernot Mittendorfer - member
* Florin Pogonaru - member (resigned
starting on 1.12.2014)
o Brian O'Neill - member
= Tudor Ciurezu -  member
Period 01.12 — 31.12.2014
¢ Manfred Wimmer - Chairman
¢ Andreas Treichl - Deputy Chairman
e Herbert Juranek - member
s Gernot Mittendorfer - member
¢ Brian O'Neill - member
¢ Tudor Ciurezu - member

Hl. Management Board

Period 1.01 — 30.06.2014

Tomas Spurny - CEO

Bernd Mittermair - executive vice — president

Michael Beitz - executive vice — president (his
mandate ended starting on
06/30/2014)

¢ Martin Skopek - executive vice — president (his

mandate ended starting on
30/09/2014)

Sergiu Manea - executive vice — president

Paul Ursaciuc - executive vice — president



Jonathan Locke -

Adriana Jankovicova -

Period 1.07 -

Tomas Spurny -
Bernd Mittermair -
Martin Skopek

Sergiu Manea -
Paul Ursaciuc -
Jonathan Locke -

Adriana Jankovicova -

executive vice - president
(appointed by SB on 1.10.2013
and granted approval by NBR
on 17.01.2014)

executive vice - president
(appointed by SB on
31.01.2014 and granted
approval by NBR on
11.07.2014)

30.09.2014

CEO

executive vice — president
executive vice — president (his
mandate ended starting on
30/09/2014)

executive vice — president
executive vice — president
executive vice — president
(appointed by SB on 1.10.2013
and granted approval by NBR
on 17.01.2014)

executive vice — president
(appointed by SB on
31.01.2014 and granted
approval by NBR on
11.07.2014)

Period 1.10 — 31.12.2014

Tomas Spurny
Bernd Mittermair
Sergiu Manea
Paul Ursaciuc
Jonathan Locke

Adriana Jankovicova

Dana Demetrian

CEO

executive vice — president
executive vice — president
executive vice — president
executive vice — president
(appointed by SB on 1.10.2013
and granted approval by NBR on
17.01.2014)

executive vice — president
(appointed by SB on 31.01.2014
and granted approval by NBR on
11.07.2014)

executive vice — president
(appointed by SB on 24.10.2014
and granted approval by NBR on
05.01.2015)



lll. Assets and Liabilities Management Committee

Period 01.01 - 11.07.2014

¢ Bernd Mittermair
Tomas Spurny
Michael Beitz

e Martin Skopek

Sergiu Manea
Paul Ursaciuc
¢ Jonathan Locke

Adriana Jankovicova
Tomas Spurny
Bernd Mittermair
Martin Skopek

Sergiu Manea
Paul Ursaciuc
Jonathan Locke

e Dana Demetrian

ALCO chairman

ALCO deputy chairman
member (he ended mandate
starting on 06/30/2014)
member (his mandate ended
starting on 30/09/2014)
member

member

member (appointed by SB on
1.10.2013 and granted
approval by NBER on
17.01.2014)

Period 12.07 — 31.12.2014

ALCO chairman

ALCO deputy chairman
member

member (his mandate ended
starting on 30/09/2014)
member

member

member (appointed by SB on
1.10.2013 and granted
approval by NBR on
17.01.2014)

member (appointed by SB on
24.10.2014 and granted
approval by NBR on
05.01.2015)

D. Patrimony of the Romanian Commercial Bank

As of 31 December 2014, the Romanian Commercial Bank prepared its financial
statements for the year ended on that date, in compliance with the Accounting law no.
82/1991, with its subsequent amendments and supplements and with the National Bank of
Romania Order no. 27/2012 for approval of Accounting Regulations compliant with
International Financial Reporting Standards applicable to credit institutions, amended and
supplemented through the National Bank of Romania Order no. 26/2011 and 29/2011.



Total assets at 31 December 2014 amounted to RON 59,037,134 thousand, decreasing by
7.0% compared to 31 December 2013.

Evolution of BCR's Total Assets (RON 000)
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in EUR equivalent, total assets at 31 December 2014 represent 13,171.8 million,
compared to EUR 14,161.5 million as at 31 December 2013 (converted at the exchange
rates at the end of each corresponding financial year).

Assets in the balance sheet have the following structure:

ASSETS
Percentage
Nr 31.12.2013 31.12.2014 Change
2014/2013
in RON thou

1|Cash and cash balances 9,545,662 8,158,441 -14.5%
2|Financial assets - held for trading 371,763 370,829 -0.3%
3|Derivatives 40,846 154,976 278.5%)
4| Other trading assets 330,817 215,853 -34.8%
| 5|Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 34,351 24,587 -28.4%
B8|Financial assets - available for sale 4,453,260 6,635,423 49.0%,|
7|Financial agsets - held to maturity 9,008,939 8,429,417 -6.4%
8jLoans and receivables to credit institutions 483,262 480,666 -0.5%
9|Loans and receivables to customers 37,960,217 32,937,273 -13.2%
10|Derivatives Hedge Accounting 39,233 0 =100.0%
11| Property, plant,equipment 314,334 222,539 -29.2%
12[intangible assets 206,146 206,874 0.4%)|
13/Investments in associates 7,509 7,508 0.0%
14|Current tax assets 89,042 89,042 0.0%,
15|Doferred tax assets 314,563 503,888, 60.2%!
16|Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale o] 37,678 NAY
17|Other assets 680,682 932,068 37.1%,
TOTAL 63,509,963 59,037,134 ~7.0%|




Asset Structure - 31.12.2014

B Cash and cash balances

Deferred tax assets

7 Other assets

= Financlal assets - held for trading

W Financial assets - avallable for sale

= Financlal assets - held to maturity

M Loans and receivables to credit institutions

Loans and receivables to customers

Liabilities and Equity in the balance sheet as at 31 December 2014, amounting to RON

99,037,134 thousand, have the following structure:

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Percentage
Nr 31.12.2013 31.12.2014 Change
2014/2013
in RON thou
1|Financial lisbilities held for trading (derivatives) 66,061 70,127 6.2%)
2{Financial liabifities measured at amortised costs 54,358,870 52,872,441 -2.7%
3|Deposits from banks 16,778,413 13,864,122 -17.4%
4 Deposits from customers 35,746,864 37,592,461 5.2%
5|Debt securities issued 1,393,386 1,044,208 -25.1%.
6| Other financial iiabilities 440,207 371,650 -15.6%
7|Derivatives Hedge Accounting 1,087,266 554,005 -49.0%
8|Provisions 305,953 342,694 -13.5%
9|Other Liabiltties 121,963 86,970 -28.7%
10|TOTAL EQUITY 7,479,850 5,110,897 -31.7%
11}issued capital 2,952,565 2,952,585 0.0%
12|Share premium 385,483 395,483 0.0%
13|Retained earnings 3,038,648 410,475 -86.5%
14|Other capital reserve 1,003,154, 1,352,374 23.7%
TOTAL 63,509,983 59,037,134 -7.0%




Liabilities & Equity Structure - 31.12.2014

B Deposits from banks
= Depaosits from customers

 Debt securities issued

W Other financial liabilitles

W lssued capital |

 Share premium

Retained earnings

Cther capital reserve

E. Income statement for the year ended 31 December 2014

Percentage
Nr 31.12.2013 31.12.2014 Change
2014/2013
in RON thou
1|Net interest income 2,604,877 2,215,176 -17.8%|
2|Net fee and commission income 718,250 685,825 -4 5%
3|Dividend income 10,385 26,134 151.7%
4|Net trading and fair value result 440,757 358,568 -18.6%
5|Rental income from investment properties & other operating lease 7,601 4,280 -43.7%|
6|Personnel expenses -591,638 -597,183 -13.7%|
7|Other administrative expenses -815,516 -776,880 -4.7%
8|Depreciation and amortisation -164,802 -119,737 -27.4%)
Gains/losses on financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair
9jvalue through profit or loss, net 14,067 8,058 42.7%
Net impairment loss on financial assets not measured at fair value
" thmgﬁ rofit o lose 1,925,526 -3,815,146 98.1%
11jOther operating result -512,645 -857 625 67.3%
L. -224,290 -2,868,530 1178.9%|
12|Pre-tax profit from continuing operations
13{Taxes on income 559,817 238,962 -57.3%
14|Post-tax profit from continuing operations 335,527 -2,629,568 -883.7%
15]Profit from discontinued operations net of tax 0 0 NA]
16|NET PROFIT OF THE YEAR 335,527.0 -2,629,568.0 -883.7%]|




Operational Income Structure - 2014

M Net interest income

® Net fee and commission income

14 Dividend income

# Net trading and fair value result

B Rental income from investment
properties & other operating

lease

Net interest income declined by 17.8 % compared with December 31, 2013.

INTEREST AND SIMILAR INCOME

Percentage
Nr 31.12.2013 3.12.2014 Change
2014/2013
in RON thou
1|Financia! assets held for trading 0 11,037 NA]
2|Available-for-sale financial assets 202,350 226,237 11.8%
3{Loans and receivables 3,330,484 2,485,257 -25.4%,
4|Held-to-maturity investments 558,534 465,133 -16.7%
5| Derivatives - Hedge accounting, interest rate risk 307,586 163,119 -47.0%
6|Other assets 54,257 27,487 -49.3%!
7[Total Interest Income 4,453,211 3,378,270 -24.1%
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Financial liabllities held far
trading

Financial liabilities
measured at amortised tost  accounting, interest rate

Evolution of Interest and similar Income - RON 000
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INTEREST AND SIMILAR EXPENSE
Percentage
Nr 31.12.2013 3.12.2014 Change
2014/2013
in RON thou
1|Financial fiabilities held for trading 0 6,790 NAJ
2]Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 1,709,626 1,115,904 -34.7%
3|Derivatives - Hedge accounting, interest rate risk 44,155 35,558 -19.5%
4| Cther liabilities 4,553 4,842 6.3%|
5|Total Interest Expense 1,758,334 1,163,094 -33.9%)
Evolution of Interest and similar Expenses - RON 000
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Net commission income in amount of RON 685,825 thousand (as of December 2014)
compared to RON 718,250 thousand (as of December 2013), show a decrease of 4.5%, as
follows:

NET FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME

Percentage
Nr 31.12.2013 31.12.2014 Change
2014/2013
in RON thou
1|Securities 9,958 4,016 -59.7%
2|Clearing and setlement -9,443 -10,944 15.9%)
3|Asset management 12,444 16,185 30.1%
4{Payment services 15,683 62,160 296.4%)|
5|Customer resources distributed but not managed 378,361 399,584 5.8%
6]Lending business 131,850 80,939 -38.7%
7|Other 179,299 133,885 -25.3%
8|Net Commission Income 718,250 685,825 -4.5%
| Evolution of Net Fee and Commission Income - RON 000
R
400,000.0
[

350,000.0

300,000.0 1

250,000.0
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52013

150,000.0
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100,000.0 -
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-50,000.0

Securities Clearing and Asset management  Payment services Customer Lending business Other
settlement resources
distributed but not
managed

The net result of 2014, calculated as the difference between revenues and their related
expenses represents a loss of RON 2,629,568 thousand.

F. The bank’s risk profile

In order to protect the interests of its shareholders, depositors and other clients, BCR
targets to lower risk profile across all activities and objectives, policies and exposure to
each significant (material) risk, including its outsourced activities. BCR adopts policies,
practices and procedures in its lending and other activities consistent with the targeting of
this risk profile.
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In order to lower the credit risk profile of the Bank the credit risk strategy targets the
following directions:

Protecting the credit portfolio quality and maintaining a diversified
portfolio, with moderate concentration risk on industries, groups and clients;

Focus on a better rating distribution of customers across all products and
segments via new lending and the reduction of exposures fo worse rated
customers;

Increasing the efficiency of the selection process of the industries/sub-
industries/client segments towards which the bank was exposed itself;

Maintaining and selectively increasing credit exposure to existing BCR
customers with good historical relations (e.g. current account active, turnover,
loans) in order to reduce the credit risk and increase volumes within the
investment grades;

Maintaining appropriate levels of collateralization. The Bank has reviewed
and improved its collateral management policy such that it is aligned with its
commercial and risk objectives;

Improving the monitoring process of the credit portfolio through the
enhancement of the early warning policies and processes within a centralized
team;

Reducing NPL volumes by improved workout processes and capabilities.

BCR has implementated an appropriate framework to identify, measure, control, report and
manage concentration risks which is essential to ensure the long-term BCR viability,
especially in case of stressed economic conditions.

BCR targets to have a market risk profile within its appetite basing its activities on the
following actions:

- The FX trading activity of BCR was transferred to Erste Group Bank;

BCR has a trading book (especially for equities and fixed income (FI)) and
established budgets (profitability targets) for the Group Capital Markets Division;

BCR has market risk limits for the trading book and banking book portfolios;

- Within ICAAP, among others, BCR performs yearly stress tests on the interest rate
risk in the banking book.

Liquidity risk profile of the bank is within risk appetite of the bank. A series of risk
management tools are used to manage liquidity risk, as following:

Survival period analysis (SPA). The survival period analysis (SPA)} is the

key tool in Erste Group Bank for measuring insolvency risk due to liquidity problems,
thus it focuses on the short-term horizon — up to 1 year — and uses ‘dynamic’ stress
testing methodology.
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- Liquidity coverage ratio (LCR) ensures that a bank maintains an adequate
level of high-quality liquid assets that can be converted into cash to mest its liquidity
needs for a 30 calendar day time horizon under a significantly severe liquidity stress
scenario specified by supervisors.

Due to its complexity and dimension, the bank is exposed to operational risk from various
angles. In order to lower the operational risk profile, the bank is focusing its activities on
several mitigation actions like:

¢ permanent development and improvement of control environment using:
o implementation and review of internal procedures/ norms/ work instructions:
o development and regular monitoring of the key risk indicators (KR!) defined
at the level of specific businesses;
o the RCSA (Risk Control Self Assessment) mitigating measures follow up/
reporting process;
o risk assessments in case of outsourced material activities:
o increase the operational risk culture:
* improvement of loss data collection framework by assuring reporting completeness
and operational risk data quality;
» escalating the major operational risk issues at the level of the Operational Risk
Management Committee;
decrease of the number of overdue internal audit points;
significant progress made in respect of the safe storage and archiving project;
developing means/ criteria for the fraud identification and prevention:
concluding insurance policies against operational risks:
the regular review of the plans drawn up for the re-running of activity and for
unforeseen situations.

The Bank seeks to constantly improve the value of its business by generating and
expanding new businesses in relation to its risk appetite, as well as by improving its risk
management abilities. All entities of the bank, across all hierarchic levels, are involved in
the management of operational risks. The Bank will seek to develop its businesses in a
well-balanced manner by constantly improving its risk management abilities, thereby
expanding in a controlled environment.

Starting with October 2010, the Bank uses the AMA (Advanced Measurement Approach
for operational risk) as per National Bank of Romania and Austrian Financial Markets
Authority approval.

The bank ailocates high importance to legal risk, various measures being undertaken for
maintaining an acceptable risk profile:

* ensures the establishment of an efficient legal function and an adequate
monitoring of the Bank’s exposure to the legal risk;

» periodically reviews the internal regulation framework and the legal acts
templates used in the cumrent activity (e.g. credit agreements and deposit
agreements), and analyses their adequacy as well as their alignment to the
Bank’s activity, the banking practices and the applicable legal framework;
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¢ develops and implements processes and control mechanisms for complying with
the internal and external regulatory framework;

* monitors the course of the litigation portfolio and assesses the causes having led
to the litigation, for the purpose of improving the business practice and the legal
documents attached to its products and services: and

¢ provides adequate and high quality internal legal assistance to its staff and the
management of the Bank.

For an adequate reputational risk management and in order to enhance its reputation in
the eyes of its clients, business partners, banking industry and regulatory and supervisory/
oversight bodies, the Bank:

* ensures the reputational risk management in a shared responsibility between
communication, internal control and risk management functions, aiming mainly at
removal of resident risks inconsistencies and contradictions:

* promotes and enforces clear corporate values, social responsibility and business
practices, non-discriminatory and fair to all parties, including by defining and
enforcement of standards and codes of conduct on the manner in which bank staff
should interact with customers and third parties so that the bank's public image to
be represented in accordance with its vision and values:

» aims at a good knowledge and understanding of its customers and partner's needs,
of their opinions about products and services, as well as the achievement of a high
degree of customer satisfaction in respect of his products and services, staff
behavior and the working environment in his operational units;

* collects, analyzes and uses information related to customer and banking industry
perception and opinion, in order to improve its operations, products and services;

¢ aims at ensuring compliance with regulations in force and at selecting customers
and business partners so that his public image not to be negatively impacted by
being involved in acts or illegal activities;

* engages in social responsibility and environmental protection projects in the interest
of community where it is pursuing affairs.

G. Risk management

BCR has continued to take all necessary actions to correlate its principles to the standards
of Erste Bank Group, Basel Accord and NBR requirements.

Risk Appetite Statement

Risk Appetite Statement (RAS) serves to define the level of risks the group is willing to
take from a strategic point of view. RAS sets boundaries and defines limits which are
relevant for the group’s daily operations, in accordance with those developed for the Bank
itself.

The RAS is composed of a set of risk appetite indicators, which are operationalized as
limits, targets and principles. Subsequent to the definition of RAS, operational limits should
clearly reflect the expressed risk appetite.
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BCR Group has defined its Risk Appetite for 2014 based on a set of risk limits / targets /
principles.

Management of significant risks

For a proper management of significant risks, the bank uses:

- A system of procedures for the authorization of operations affected by the
respective risks, consisting in the drawing up of credit approval competences/ pouvoirs for
the granting of loans and credit-type products, interbank placements and operations with
derivatives

- A limit system on countries, sovereign entities, banks, financial institutions
affiliated to banking groups, GCC (groups of connected clients), as well as economic
sectors, geographical regions, specific bank products, unsecured portfolios, market and
liquidity limits

- A risk exposures reporting system, as well as additional aspects related to
these risks, to the proper management levels (reports on the bank’s exposure fo significant
risks, the compliance with the risk limits drawn up by the bank, etc.)

- A system of responsibilities, policies, norms and procedures on internal control at
the bank ievel

- A policy for the administration of outsourced activities
- A system for the management of judicial (legal) risk and compliance risk

- Criteria for the recruitment and remuneration of personnel, including criteria
drawn up in order to avoid conflicts of interest, which should stipulate high training,
experience and integrity standards

- Personnel training programs

- Risks are assessed by BCR specialists who have no direct responsibilities in
fulfilling commercial and financial targets, assuring no conflict of interests through a
separation of duties

- The bank properly assigns responsibilities to ali its organizational levels,
making sure that the personnel does not have responsibilities which might lead to
conflicts of interest (e.g. dual responsibilities for one individual, such as: performing both
front-office and back-office activities, approval of fund drawings and performing the
respective drawings, the assessment of the credit documentations and the monitoring of
the client after the latter has obtained the loan).

Internal Capital Adeguacy Assessment Process (ICAAP)

Starting with 2010, BCR uses the Intemal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
(ICAAP), in compliance with the Group’s standards and NBR regulations, to determine on
a regular basis the amount, constitution and the distribution of capital necessary for the
quantitative and qualitative coverage of all material risks entailed by banking transactions
and banking operations.

ICAAP/ERM (Enterprise Risk Management) is designed to support the bank’s
management to proactively manage the risk portfolio, as well as the coverage potential,
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which should ensure capital adequacy reflecting the nature and level of the bank’s risk
portfolio at all times.

An illustrative link between the relevant ERM concepts is depicted below.
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It represents a modular and comprehensive system within BCR. It is designed to fulfill
internal management requirements and external regulatory requirements, particularly
ICAAP.
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Risk-bearing Capacity Calculation (RCC)

ICAAP and the Risk-bearing Capacity Calculation (RCC) are required by Basel Accords
under Pillar 2 and essentially serve to determine whether the bank can “afford” its acquired
risks by comparing the risk portfolios across all risk types with the bank’s capital (coverage
potential).

The RCC is an internally designed model which serves to measure the risk exposure the
bank is exposed to and compares it to the capital or coverage potential the bank has for
covering such risks.

Within the RCC, all material risks, as defined in the Risk Materiality Assessment, are
summed up to provide the basis for Economic Capital.

The RCC module calculation is presented in the chart below:
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Risk Materiality Assessment Process

BCR Risk Materiality Assessment (RiskMAT) delivers the risk types which have to be
covered by capital. Insights and resuits from other analysis and calculations, e.g.
concentration risk analysis, stress testing, are considered in the RCC in order to guarantee
an all-encompassing risk sensitive portfolio view of the bank.

Stress tests

Key risk management tools within the bank, in particular to support these in taking a
forward-looking view in their risk management as well as strategic, business, risk, capital
and liquidity planning. In this sense, stress testing constitutes a vital tool of BCR's
Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) framework.

The results of stress testing have to be analyzed for further consideration, particularly with
regard to the bank’s planning and budgeting process, Risk Materiality Assessment and/or
in the Risk-bearing Capacity Calculation. Mitigating management actions designed to
reduce the impact of a stress event should be discussed at the most senior levels with
particular attention placed on the credibility and feasibility of such actions.
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H. BCR policy regarding environmental issues

Romanian Commercial Bank

* . Admits and accepts the fundamental importance of an integrated approach of the
environmental and social factors, as well as of lasting development principles
within its financing activity.

* Pays adequate attention to its financing processes, securing before making the
financing decision, the compliance of the respective projects with the minimal
environmental protection, social protection and occupational safety standards
applicable in Romania.

Romanian Commercial Bank does not finance activities whose characteristics do not
meet environmental requirements specified in the Romanian legislation and relevant
international conventions and agreements to which Romania adhered expressly.

In 2014, work on the environment was held in accordance with the requirements of
environmental procedures that apply to all lending businesses. Analysis of
environmental issues is part of the lending process is mandatory for every transaction.

In Romanian Commercial Bank, environmental work is coordinated by the Department
of Credit Analysis and Sabine.

CHAIRMAN
OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
P

MANFRED WIMMER

d

Y~
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DECLARATION,

We, the undersigned, in our capacity of administrators of Banca Comerclala Romana S.A,, and
In accordance with Art. 31 of the Accounting Law no. 82/1991 republished, undertake full
responsibility for the preparation of the consolidated annual finandal statements as at
31.12,2014 and declare the following:

a) The accounting policies used for the preparation of the annual consolidated financial
statements for 2014 are in compliance with the accounting standards applicable to credit
institutions, correspondingly in accordance with the NBR's Order no. 27/2010 for the
approval of the Accounting Regulations compliant with International Financial Reporting
Standards applicable to credit institutions, as subsequently amended and supplemented
by the NBR’s Order no. 26/2011 and Order no.29/2011;

b) The annual consolidated financial statements reflect a true and fair view of the finandial
position, financial performance and further information related to the activity of the
group.

[

Chief Financial Officer,

ADRIANA JANKOVICOVA




BCRS

No. Cabinet of the Chairman
Supervisory Board

§/23.03. 2015

CONSOLIDATED ADMINISTRATORS’ REPORT
Banca Comerciala Romana Group
Year ended 31 December 2014

1. General information

During 2014, Banca Comerciala Romana Group (*BCR Group” or “the Group”) comprised
the parent bank, Banca Comerciala Romana S.A. and its subsidiaries, presented in the
following table:

Shareholdin
Company’'s Name Country of | Nature of the| 31 31
Incorporation | business December | December
2014 2013
BCR Chisinau SA Moldova Banking 100% 100%
Financiara SA {(under liquidation) Romanla Financial 97.46% 97.46%
BCR Leasing IFN SA Romania Financial leasing 99.96% 99.93%
Bucharest Financial Plazza SRI. Romania Real Estate 99.99% 99.99%
BCR Pensil, Societate de Administrare
a Fondurilor de Pensii Private SA Romania Pension Fund 99.99% 99.99%
BCR. Banca pentru Locuinte SA Romania Housing loans 80.00% 80.00%
BCR Finance BV The
Netherlands figuidated 0.00% 100%
Suport Colect SRL Romania Workout 100% 100%
BCR Procesare SRL Romania Cash processing and
storing 99.99% 99.99%
BCR Real Estate Management SRL Romania Real estate 99.99% 99.99%
BCR Fleet Management SRL Romania Operational leasing 99.96% 99.93%
Good-Bee Service SRL Romania Hguidated 0.00% 99.99%
BCR Payments SPV Romania Payments transactions | 99.99% 99.99%

2. The consolidated financial statements of the BCR Group for the
year ended 31 December 2014

In accordance with the Accounting Law no. 82/1991 republished, a parent company
must prepare both individual financial statements of the parent and consolidated
financial statements of the Group. Order no. 27/2010 of the National Bank of Romania
further specifies that the consolidated financial statements of credit institutions must be
prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS™) as
adopted by the European Union.



Consequently, the consolidated financial statements of the BCR Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014 were prepared in accordance with IFRS, observing also the
specific group accounting policies of Erste Group, to which BCR Group belongs.

Appendix 1 presents the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2014 while Appendix 2 presents the consolidated balance sheet at 31
December 2014,

3. Financial highlights

Despite RON 1.9 billion operating result, net result of the year, RON -2.8 billion (EUR
-627.4 million), was impacted by substantially higher risk provisions, in line with
guidance provided at HY 2014 and Q3 2014 financial results, on the back of decision to
accelerate resolution of troubled loans portfolio.

Risk provisions doubled to RON 4.4 billion in 2014, driven by ample efforts to
reduce NPLs, including portfolio sales and write-offs. In 2014, BCR sold non-performing
loans amounting to RON 2.0 billion, thus achieving guidance of overall NPL volume
reduction by 24.0% yoy. NPL ratio decreased to 25.7%, NPL coverage ratio increased at
75.8%.

New bank loans totalled RON 7.4 billion in 2014, while the bank additionally invested
RON 4.6 billion in state securities. Particular strong performance in retail franchise
determined a threefold increase in volume of new mortgages and 61.0% in cash loans

Yoy.

Operating expenses were down by 9.4% vyoy, from RON 1.6 billion in 2013 to RON
1.5 billion in 2014 on the back of cost synergies, emphasis on productivity and focus on
cost targets. BCR achieves 21.0% cumulated cost reduction in reference to 2011 base,
before launching turnaround plan.

The solid capital position of the bank was able to absorb accelerated NPL reduction,
while remaining strong to support good business growth. BCR’s solvency ratio stood at
18.9% in Dec 2014 (bank), while Tier 1 + 2 capital (group) remained very solid at
19.0%.

Resolution of NPL stock

In line with guidance provided at HY 2014 and Q3 2014 financial results, BCR decided to
seize regulatory recommendations as an opportunity to accelerate resolution concerning
NPL iegacy. BCR sold non-performing loans amounting to RON 2.0 billion, achieving
guidance of overall NPL volume reduction by 24.0% yoy.

As such, net charge of impairments on financial assets not measured at fair value
through profit and loss increased by 110.7% to RON 4,440.0 million (EUR 999.0
million) in 2014, versus RON 2,107.6 million (EUR 476.9 million) in 2013, on the back of



portfolio sales, write-offs and implementation of new risk parameters, thus off-setting
completely the operating result.

NPL ratio, at 25.7% as of 31 December 2014, significantly decreased versus 29.2%
as of 31 December 2013, despite overall decrease of the loan book, determined by
recoveries, sales of selected NPL portfolios and write-offs. NPL coverage ratio stood
at 75.8%, significantly above 65.8% as of December 2013.

4. Business performance overview

The BCR Group achieved in 2014 an operating result of RON 1,914.4 million (EUR
430.8 million), 19.3% lower than the previous year at RON 2,372.9 (EUR 536.9), driven
by weaker operating income and partly compensated by lower costs.

The net result came on the back of total bank new lending in 2014 amounting to RON
7.4 billion, underpinned by solid growth in retail and stabilization of the corporate
book. Additionally the bank invested RON 4.6 billion in Romanian sovereign securities,
the majority of which in RON denominated bonds. That new funding into the economy
was commercially coupled with solid growth in deposits and successful distribution of
subsidiary products including Erste Asset Management funds, BCR Banca pentru
Locuinte and BCR Pensii.

In bank retail business, strong performance in new volume generation by the
franchise (RON equivalent of 4.7 billion) resulted in a threefold increase versus the
previous year concerning housing loans and 61.0% in cash loans, respectively. The
retail performing loans balance stood at around RON 16.6 billion, on the back of new
lending offsetting volumes of loans reimbursed or maturing. At RON 9.5 billion the total
performing housing loans portfolio grew satisfactorily versus RON 8.6 billion at end of
year 2013. Overall local currency performing loans portfolio encouragingly grew to RON
6.7 billion as compared to RON 5.5 billion at year end 2013.

In bank corporate business, performing loan portfolio stood at around RON 11.8
billion, with new lending equivalent of about RON 2.7 billion granted to corporate
clients in sectors such as energy, agriculture, constructions, pharmacy 8 healthcare,
industry, IT&C.

Net interest income, was down by 17.5%, to RON 2,289.4 million (EUR 515.1
million), from RON 2,775.6 million (EUR 628.0 million) in 2013, on the back of
accelerated NPL portfolio resolution, a lower interest rate environment and efforts to
price competitively in the market.

Net fee income was down by 4.9%, to RON 711.3 million (EUR 160.0 million), from
RON 748.3 million (EUR 169.3 million) in 2013, on the back of lower fees from loan
management and current accounts.



Net trading result decreased by 18.2%, to RON 360.8 million (EUR 81.2 million),
from RON 441.3 million (EUR 9$9.9 million) in 2013 on the back of reduced hedging
activity.

The operating income decreased by 15.3% to RON 3,389.3 million (EUR 762.6
million) from RON 4,000.6 million (EUR 905.2 million) in 2013,

General administrative expenses in 2014 reached RON 1,474.9 million (EUR
331.9 million), down by 9.4% in comparison to RON 1,627.7 million (EUR 368.3 million)
in 2013. The fulfilment of cost targets, set forth in the 2012 turnaround plan, is
enhanced by continuous emphasis and focus on productivity improvements. As such,
over the last three years, BCR Group achieved a cumulated reduction of about 21.0% in
its cost base in comparison with expense levels before launching its ambitious
turnaround plan.

As such, cost-income ratio advanced to 43.5% in 2014, versus 40.7% in 2013.

Capital position and funding

Solvency ratio under local standards (BCR standalone, IFRS with prudential filters) as
of December 2014 stood at 18.9%, well above the regulatory requirements of the
National Bank of Romania (min 10.0%). Also, IFRS Tier 1+2 capital ratio of 19.0%
(BCR Group), as of December 2014, is clearly showing BCR’s strong capital adequacy
and continuing support of Erste Group. In this respect, BCR enjoys one of the strongest
capital and funding positions amongst Romanian banks.

BCR will continue to maintain high solvency ratio, proving its ability and commitment to
support sustainable quality of lending growth in both Retail and Corporate franchises,
further reinforcing core revenue generating capacity.

Deposits from customers solidly grew by 6.6% to RON 39,922.6 million (EUR
8,905.7 million) as of 31 December 2014, versus RON 37,448.2 million (EUR 8,375.8
million) as of end December 2013. Customer deposits remain BCR’s main funding
source, while the bank benefits from diversified funding sources, including parent
company.

BCR plans to keep focus on RON lending, so as to reverse the currency mix of the loan
book in favour of local currency on medium to long term and fully use the strong self-
funding capacity in RON.

BCR offers a complete range of financial products and services through a network of 538
retail units located in most towns with more than 10,000 inhabitants, across the whole
Romania, as well as 22 business centers and 23 mobile offices dedicated to companies.
BCR commands the largest Self-serving banking Equipment network in the country -
about 2,600 Equipment (ATMs, Multifunctional Machines, Automated Payment
Terminals, FX Exchange Machines) as well as 12,000 POS terminals for payments by
card at merchants. BCR Group had 7,054 own employees, as of December 2014.
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Risk costs

The net charge with risk provisions for loans and advances (including commitments
and guarantees given) reached RON 4,457 million (EUR 1,003 million) at YE 2014,
leading to a Risk Cost ratio of 10.2% (for comparison, the Risk Cost ratio at YE 2013
was 4.3%).

The risk cost increased in 2014 on the back of accelerated non-performing loans sales
strategy, a reassessment of current recoveries from collateral based on experience of
loan portfolio sales, write-offs and implementation of new risk parameters.

5. 2014 Business performance overview and 2015 outlook for the
subsidiaries

BCR owns at 31.12.2014 equity investments in 20 companies, 9 being subsidiaries,
respective BCR has the power to govern their financial and operating policies in order to
obtain benefits from their activities. BCR Group consist, directly or indirectly, of the
following companies: Banca Comerciala Romana SA, BCR Chisinau SA, BCR Banca
pentru Locuinte SA, BCR Leasing IFN SA, BCR Pensii-Societate de Administrare a
Fondurilor de Pensii Private SA, BCR Fleet Management SRL, BCR Real Estate
Management SRL, Bucharest Financial Plazza SRL, Suport Colect SRL, BCR Procesare
SRL, BCR Payments Services SRL, Financiara SA, BCR Finance BV and BCR Partener
Mobil SRL (the last two being liquidated during 2014).

Bucharest Financial Plazza SRL is wholly owned by BCR Real Estate Management SRL
and BCR Fleet Management SRL is wholly owned by BCR Leasing IFN SA.

The developments highlighted below are the most significant ones performed at the
level of the companies members of BCR Group in 2014.

BCR Chisinau SA

The main achievement of BCR Chisinau in 2014 was the increase by 77.8% of the
operating profit in comparison with the yearly result of 2013. The operating profit in
2014 amounted to MDL 21.7 million. This performance was due mainly to the
concentration of bank efforts to improve customer service and to enlarge products and
services portfolio. The operational income increased by 11.0%, while the general and
administrative expenses decreased by 4.7%, as a result of cost efficiency and
restructuring process started in 2013.

Following the bank management decision to increase provisions, calculated in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and strict prudential
requirements applied in BCR/ Erste Group, BCR Chisinau ended 2014 year with a net
loss of MDL 3.7 million. In this context, the coverage on nonperforming loans by
provisions calculated according to IFRS has increased from 17.5% in 2013 to 37.5% in
2014.



Non-performing loans increased in 2014 to 30.4% from 28.1% in 2013. Liquidity ratio
increased to 55.0% in 2014 compared with 45.0% in previous year, solvency ratio
improved to 137.2% in 2014 compared to 93.4% in 2013. BCR Chisinau improved the
Loans/Deposits ratio {excluding banks) to 114.0%, compared to 138.0% in 2013.

BCR Banca pentru Locuinte SA

The activity of Banca pentru Locuinte SA consists in the sale and management of
savings and loan products for housing (type Bauspar).

On 31.12.2014, BCR Banca pentru Locuinte SA had a total of 79,894 net contracts (new
contracts signed), in amount of RON 3.3 bn. The total portfolio of BCR Banca pentru
Locuinte SA was 360.688 net contracts for which customers have realized savings of
more than RON 2.54 bn. Estimated market share on deposits volumes (Bauspar banks)
was approx. 86.3% at the end of 2014, Lending activity recorded a decrease rate, as of
the end of 2014 (RON 66.06 mn) - 0.86 times lower than at the end of 2013 (RON 76.5
mn), but the estimated market share for outstanding loans as of 31st of December
2014, granted by BCR Banca pentru Locuinte SA, increased up to 67.0%.

The company's goal for next years is to be the absolute market maker for the Romanian
Bauspar market, being the “Bauspar bank of choice” for customers, by embedding
customer focus in all activities.

BCR Leasing IFN SA

In 2014 continued the efforts to improve asset quality and efficiency of the company
while boosting new business. New sales business volumes have almost doubled
compared to 2013 (EUR 70.6 mn in 2014 vs. EUR 44.2 mn in 2013, financed value),
total assets slightly increased (2%) versus previous year, while NPL improved
siglificantly from 42.0% to 10.0%.

Operating result decreased ( RON 26.4 mn in 2013 vs, RON 17.2 mn lei in 2014), due
to lower insurance revenue by RON 7.6 mn mainly coming from one-off transaction in
2013 (insurance bonus received in 2013) and to lower net interest income by RON 3.5
mn (decreasing average lease outstanding on valid contracts 2014 vs. 2013, declining
interest rates).

BCR Leasing IFN SA profitability was affected by continuing trend to improve asset
quality which involved significant increase in risk costs related to the improvement of the
risk provisions methodology and additional impairment booked on individually significant
clients (approximately RON 13.2 mn).

In 2014 the bank continued to be the main sales channel with 56.0% of sales, while at
the same time further developing partnerships with dealers/ importers (dealer channel
almost doubled volumes versus previous year).

In 2015 BCR Leasing IFN SA estimates an increase of sales compared to 2014 by
50.0%, focusing on developing sales through the bank and dealers, improving portfolio
quality and increase efficiency.



BCR Pensii, Societate de Administrare a Fondurilor de Pensii Private SA

BCR Pensii SAFPP is a company that performs its activity on the private pensions market
in Romania, including mandatory (Pillar IT) and voluntary private pensions (Pillar III).

As at the end of 2014 the company ranked 6th in the top of mandatory private pension
funds management companies acting on the Romanian market, in terms of total number
of subscribers, with a market share of 8.07% and 508,069 subscribers.

In terms of total number of subscribers for voluntary pensions funds, BCR Pensii ranked
2nd, with a market share of 28.38% corresponding to a number of 98,310 participants.
In 2014, BCR Pensii was the market leader for voluntary pensions new sales, taking
37.0% market share of new sales.

BCR Real Estate Management SRL

The Company’s core business is the management of the real estate based on tariffs or
leased agreements. Integration of REM personnel into the Bank was done starting with
1st of July 2014; the core activities of the company are performed by BCR based on the
mandate contract.

Bucharest Financial Plazza SRL

Bucharest Financial Plazza SRL is wholly owned by BCR Real Estate Management SRL. In
2014, the company continued performing its core business activity represented by the
management of the real estate assets owned, including the management of the office
building located in Bucharest, 15 Calea Victoriei.

BCR Procesare SRL

Set-up in Aug 2009, as a spin off from BCR, BCR Procesare had gradually matured and
is now the 2nd largest cash transport and processing company in Romania by turnover /
business portfolio, staff, fleet and processing capacity.

During 2014, BCR Procesare completed successfully the merger of the two processing
centers in Bucharest and implemented new operation model for cash processing (usage
of same equipment and process flows across the network).

Also, BCR Procesare has focused on preparation for successful implementation of two
major BCR’s corporate clients (Rompetrol and OMV Petrom) and on completion of pilot
phase of Garanti Bank project. Improved end to end operational process based on PDA
(personal digital assistant) usage and front end solution available to customer has been
designed and tested. The new process will be implemented begining of 2015 for
selected customers. Implementation is underway for two significant projects (new GPS
solution and Route optimization application) aiming to increase BCR Procesare’s
operational efficiency.



BCR Payments Services SRL

BCR Payments Services is a subsidiary of the BCR Group, founded in 2011, following the
outsourcing of payment processing, which were made until then integrated into the
same unit BCR Sibiu Processing Center of the Banking Operations Department. The
company is responsible for centralized processing of payment transactions in local and
foreign currency, debt instruments in local currency and foreign currency, accounts
opening and maintenance.

BCR Payments Services has 90 specialized employees and serves all local units of BCR,
Banking Operations Division, and other directions BCR, on the base of the outsourcing
contract signed between the two parties.

During 2014 5.9 million transactions were processed. The intra bank transfers were fully
integrated and also the Fordela support for all the branches (Sibiu Helpdesk).

6. The Risk Exposure Profile of BCR Group

1. Credit risk profile
In order to protect the interests of its shareholders, depositors and other clients, BCR
Group targets to lower its risk profile across all activities and objectives, policies and
exposure to each significant (material) risk, including its outsourced activities. BCR

adopts policies, practices and procedures in its lending and other activities consistent
with the targeting of this risk profile.

Concentration risk

BCR Group has implemented an appropriate framework to identify, measure, control,
report and manage concentration risk, which is essential to ensure the long-term BCR
viability, especially in case of stressed economic conditions.

Market risk profile

BCR targets to have a market risk profile within its appetite undertaking risk
management actions for maintaining this risk within the risk appetite.

Liquidity risk profile

Liquidity risk profile of the bank is within risk appetite of the bank.

Operational risk profile

Due to its complexity and dimension, the bank is exposed to operational risk from
various angles. In order to lower the operational risk profile, the bank is focusing its
activities on several mitigation actions.



The bank’s subsidiaries are using BIA (Basic Indicator Approach) for their operational
risk capital computation.

The reputational risk management targets to maintain the trust of the public and of
its business partners with respect to its economic and financial standing, in order to
preserve a proper risk profile.

The bank allocates high importance to legal risk, various measures beeing undertaken
for maintaining an acceptable risk profile.

2. Risk Appetite Statement

Risk Appetite Statement (RAS) serves to define the level of risks the group is willing to
take from a strategic point of view. RAS sets boundaries and defines limits which are
relevant for the group’s daily operations, in accordance with those developed for the
Bank itself.

The RAS is composed of a set of risk appetite indicators, which are operationalized as
limits, targets and principles. Subsequent to the definition of RAS, operational limits
should dearly reflect the expressed risk appetite.

BCR Group has defined its risk appetite for 2014 based on a set of risk
limits/targets/principles.

3. Management of significant risks

BCR Group has continued to take all necessary actions to correlate its principles to the
standards of Erste Bank Group, Basel Accord and NBR requirements.

In order to identify and assess significant risks, BCR Group must consider both internal
(e.g.: the complexity of its organizational structure, the nature of the activities it
unfolds, the quality of its personnel and potential migrations) and external factors (the
economic environment, legislative changes, competition in the banking sector,
technological progress, etc.).

In order to manage the risks which may affect its activities and financial performance,
BCR Group must take all necessary measures to identify all risk sources, to assess
and monitor its exposures.

For a proper management of significant risks, BCR Group covers at least the directions
stated for the Bank.

The Group takes all the necessary measures in order to maintain a proper informing
system for the identification, assessment, monitoring and systematic documentation of
significant risks, both at bank level and at structural leveli.



4. Internal capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP)

BCR Group ICAAP - process which consists from the Risk Bearing Capacity, Risk
Materiality Assesement and Stress Test framework — is related to the Bank and extended
for BCR Group.

7. Important events since the end of 2014

2015 started with a continuation of the monetary easing cycle against the backdrop of a
very low inflationary environment and economy’s need for further strengthening of RON
lending. After disappointing results in terms of infrastructure spending in 2014, the
Romanian government presented a new version of the Transport Master Plan with
ambitious targets in building new highways until 2030. For the moment, the contribution
of the construction sector to real GDP growth remains modest and no strong
acceleration of economic growth is foreseen for 2015, households’ consumption being
again a key driver of the growth.

The NBR cut the key rate twice in the first two months of 2015, bringing it to a fresh-
low of 2.25%. At the same time, it kept the wording “adequate liquidity management in
the banking system” in both press releases issued after monetary policy decisions,
suggesting that short-term money market rates would continue to decouple from the
key rate. The governor left the door open for further monetary easing in 2015 through
prudent cuts in minimum reserves.

At the beginning of February, the Prime Minister announced that the Romanian
government and a joint team of the IMF and EU reached no agreement for another
review of the precautionary stand-by arrangement. Liberalization of natural gas price for
households and thermo stations and restructuring of state-owned energy companies
were two major issues where the Romanian government and external partners had
different opinions. The government is behind the agreed schedule in these two areas
and the IMF asked for an enforcement of the previously agreed action plan. Regarding
the deep restructuring of energy companies, fearing the social impact that a boid
restructuring would have, the government presented an alternative view, with additional
investments for environment protection, better management and additional talks with
unions for delaying wage growth which endanger the financial stability of these
companies. PM Ponta added that current precautionary stand-by arrangement remains
in place but no letter of agreement has been signed and negotiations would continue in
April.

8. BCR Group’s policy regarding environmental issues

BCR Group
» . Admits and accepts the fundamental importance of an integrated approach of the
environmental and social factors, as well as of lasting development principles
within its financing activity.
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» Pays adequate attention to its financing processes, securing before making the
financing decision, the compliance of the respective projects with the minimal
environmental protection, social protection and occupational safety standards
applicable in Romania.

BCR Group does not finance activities whose characteristics do not meet envircnmental
requirements specified in the Romanian legislation and relevant international
conventions and agreements to which Romania adhered expressly.

In 2014, work on the environment was held in accordance with the requirements of
environmental procedures that apply to all lending businesses. Analysis of environmental
issues is part of the lending process is mandatory for every transaction.

In Romanian Commercial Bank, enviranmental work is coordinated by the Department of
Credit Analysis and Sabine.

9. Outlook for BCR Group’s activity

BCR Group's mid-term Strategy is built around five major pillars addressing asset quality,
commercial and risk management capabilities, financial excellence and operational
leverage. The final goal is to adjust the Group’s business model to the complex changes
in the financial markets aiming to increase its resilience to shocks and consequently to
support sustainable further developments and banking leadership in Romania.

The 2015 business priorities of the Group envisage speeding up the implementation of
the healthy fundamentals for competitive growth of the bank and its subsidiaries in the
context of expected challenges related to the macro, market and regulatory
developments.

Resolution of critical portfolios will continue in 2015 through cash recoveries, write-offs
and debt sales targeting the cleaning up of the legacy NPLs, while maintaining
prudent provisioning level.

The Group will benefit from the steps performed in improving its risk management
capabilities in order to keep control on new NPL formation and to preserve BCR's
adequate capital ratios. Risk-return will be the key driver for considering business and
investment opportunities.

Capitalizing on the reinforced commercial capabilities of its retail network BCR
Group’s focus will be placed on strengthening the value proposition for customers. The
retail franchise will further be enhanced through bank’s leadership in market new
production in local currency and Top 3 position in lending offer for top rated clients. The
corporate franchise will be developed mainly through cash management, factoring, trade
finance and investment banking services.

Reaching the financial excellence will continue with putting into action the Business
Information Center line function in order to harmonize the data steering requirements,
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implement data quality checks, processes & management reporting and finally
ensure recognized data governance throughout the bank.

Keeping costs under control and improving operational leverage will remain a
major objective for further development, moreover in the context of demand
shortage and lowering margins. Commercial efforts towards growing the core
business of the Group and improving its bottom line performance will get support
from appropriate deployment of resources and standardization of lending processes
and documentation.

In 2015 BCR will stay committed to invest in developing people and build a

performance-oriented leadership culture in order to reach the dafly business
management in a disciplined and accountable manner.

CHAIRMAN of the SUPERVISORY BOARD
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Appendix 1

Consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December 2014

In RON million 2014 2013 % change

Netinterest income 2,2804 27756 -17.5%
Netfee and commission income 711.3 748.2 -4.9%
Dividend income 26 104 -75.0%
Nettrading and fair value result 360.8 441.3 -18.2%
Net result from equity method investments 1.0 3.5 -71.4%
Rental income from investment properties & other operating lease 242 216 12.0%
Personnel expenses -658.4 -761.3 -13.5%
Other administrative expenses -640.8 6475 -1.0%
Depreciation and amortisation -175.7 -218.9 -19.7%
aTLls;o;z:: 3:102?2:1::;:]:;2;3& and liabilities not measured at fair 8.1 14.1 42.6%
zt:(t):‘r;sar)lrr;f:: :(;zz on financial assets not measured at fair value 44400 21075 110.7%
Other operating resuit -520.4 -21286 144.8%
Pre-tax profit from continuing operations -3,0379 66.8 -4647.8%
Taxes on income 243.8 531.9 -54.2%
Post-tax profit from continuing operations -2,794.0 598.7 -566.7%
Profit from discontinued operations net of tax 0.0 0.0 NA
Net Profit of the Year -2,794.0 598.7 -566.7%
Affributable to non-controlling interests 5.8 7.5 -22.7%
Attributable to owners of the parent «2,799.9 591.2 =573.6%
Operating Income 3,389.3 4,000.6 -15.3%
Operating Expenses -1474.9 -1,627.7 -9.4%
Operating Result 1,914.4 2,3729 -19.3%
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Appendix 2

Consolidated balance sheet at 31 December 2014

in RON million 2014 2013 %change
ASSETS
Cash and cash balances 8,235.2 9,586.0 -14.1%
Financial assets - held for frading 370.8 373.6 -0.7%
Derivatives 155.0 42.8 262.1%
Other trading assets 2159 3308 -34.7%
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 246 34.4 -28.5%
Financial assets - available for sale 7.655.1 5,219.8 46.7%
Financial assets - held to maturity 9,578.2 10,2353 -6.4%
Loans and receivables to credit institutions 525.3 507.7 3.5%
Loans and receivables to customers 32,566.1 38,002.4 -14.3%
Derivatives Hedge Accounting 0.0 38.2 -100.0%
Property,plant,equipment 1,056.6 1,501.6 -29.6%
Investment properties 0.0 441 -100.0%
Intangible asseis 218.5 3874 -43.6%
Investments in joint ventures and associates 15.3 14.3 7.0%
Current taxassets 89.1 89.3 -0.2%
Deferred tax assets 526.2 315.3 66.9%
Non-current assets and disposal groups dassified as held for sale 3367 107.4 212.6%
Other assets 428.2 2711 57.9%
TOTAL ASSETS 61,624.6 66,728.8 -76%
LIABILITIES
Financial liabiliies held for trading 701 66.1 6.1%
Derivatives 701 66.1 6.1%
Other frading liabilities 0.0 0.0 NA
Financial liabilities measured at amortised costs 55,564.0 57,5701 -3.5%
Deposits from banks 14,191.1 18,151.8 -21.8%
Deposits from customers 39,922.6 37,4482 6.6%
Debt securities issued 1,044.2 1,529.8 317%
Other financial liabilities 4061 440.2 -1.7%
Derivatives Hedge Accounting 5540 1,087.3 -49.0%
0.0 0.0 NA
Changes in fair value of portfolio hedged items
Provisions 3474 400.9 -13.3%
Current taxliabilities 0.7 22 -68.2%
Deferred tax liabilities 9.7 38 155.3%
Liabilities associated with disposal groups held for sale 0.0 0.0 NA
Other Liabilities 168.5 175.2 -3.8%
Total equity 49102 7,423.3 -33.9%
aftributable to non-controlling interest 35.1 28.0 254%
aftributable to owners of the parant 4,875.1 7,395.3 -34.1%
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 61,624.6 66,728.8 -7.6%

14



- 7 Ernst & Young Assurance Services SRL Tel: +40 21 402 4000
= 'l' Bucharest Tower Center Building, 21 Fioor Fax; +40 21 310 7219
= - 15-17 lon Mihalache Bivd., Sector 1 office@ro.ey.com

Building & eatpsr 011171 Bucharest, Romania ey.com
working woerid

REPORT OF THE FINANCIAL AUDITOR

To the shareholders of Banca Comerciala Romana SA

Report on the Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Banca Comerciala Romana SA and its
subsidiaries (the "Group™), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. We have
also audited the separate statement of financial position of Banca Comerciala Romana SA (the
“Bank'"}), and the related separate statement of comprehensive income, separate statement of
changes in equity and separate statement of cash flows for the year then ended presenting the
following:

e Consolidated Net assets/ Total equity and reserves: 4,910,155 lei thousand
¢ Consolidated Loss for the year: 2,794,017 lei thousand
¢ [ndividual Net assets/ Total equity and reserves: 5,110,897 lei thousand
« [Individual Loss for the year: 2,629,568 lei thousand

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2. Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements which have been presented together to report on the statement of financial position,
the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for both Group and the Bank, in accordance with Order of the National Bank of Romania
no. 27/2010 and related amendments, which reguires that these consolidated/separate
financial statements are to be prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union, and for such internal control as management
determined is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

English translation for informaticn purposes only
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Auditors’ Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of auditing as adopted by the Romanian
Chamber of Financial Auditors. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’'s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion - The Group

6.

In our opinion, the consclidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consalidated
financial position of the Group as of 31 December 2014, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Order of
the National Bank of Romania no. 27/2010 and related amendments and in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.

Opinien - The Bank

7.

In our opinion, the separate financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Bank as of 31 December 2014, and of its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Order of the National Bank of Romania no. 27/2010
and related amendments and in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union.

English translation for information purposes only
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Report on conformity of the Consolidated Administrators’ Report with the Consolidated Financial
Statements

In accordance with the Order of National Bank of Romania no. 27/2010, article no. 40 point e), we
have read the Consolidated Administrators’ Report presented. The Consolidated Administrators’
Report is not a part of the consolidated financial statements. In the Consolidated Administrators’
Report we have not identified any financial information which is not in accordance, in all material
respects, with the information presented in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Report on conformity of the Separate Administrators’ Report with the Separate Financial
Statements

In accordance with the Order of National Bank of Romania no. 27/2010, article no. 16 point 1e), we
have read the Separate Administrators’ Report presented. The Separate Administrators’ Report is
not a part of the separate financial statements. In the Separate Administrators’ Report we have not
identified any financial information which is not in accordance, in all material respects, with the
information presented in the accompanying separate financial statements.

On behalf of

Ernst & Young Assurance Services SRL
Registered with the Chamber of Financial Auditors in Romania
Nr. 77/15 August 2001

= "g-il ‘—h!(,?

[ -ﬁﬂ““
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Sebastian Mocanu h wﬁ

e i

Registered with the Chamber of Financial Auditors in Romania  Bucharest, Romania
No. 1603/16 August 2005 20 March 2015

English translation for information purposes only



BCRS

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Consolidated and Bank
for the year ended 31 December 2014

Income statement Note Group Bank
e
in RON thousands
Netinterest Income 3 _2,775563 228948 2504 877 225,78
Net fee and commissionincome 4 748,223 711261 __Te250 ea5p2s
Diidendincome e = 5 03/ 284 036 B
Net trading and fair value resull = T B 8 441308 860835 40757 356568
"Net resull from equity method investments o T 24 35 02 ESLL
Rentalincome fram investment properties and other eperating lease —— — 7__ - 21.623 24,233 7.601 N ) 52"50‘
Personnel expensas ] (?61.341) (35_8”.452“)'" ___(e91838) (597 GB)
“Ofheradministrative expenses i) g @ATATE) (840,778) (855%) (778880}
Depraciation and amortisation B - ) - 8 T (BT (76804) (14,902) (e
Galnsilossﬁ onfi nanclal assets and Ilabllliles net measured atfalrvalue lhrough prollt orloss net 9 - -E@:f = 8068 H067 8.058
Nehmpamnentloss onfinanclal assets not measured at faﬂ';amhrough profit or orioss '_ 1 _ —(—2“131_5_4;9 : 4. 440.001) ] (1.92.'3_@2;6_')_‘ == (s.ss H6)
Other operating result T T T Ty {212,649 (620.365) (52845) (867.626)
“Pre- -tax proflt from continuing operailm . ' i ) S—— i g&?ss [ (3 037 865) -[224‘,51—6)‘ (i 868 5:;0)'
Tares onlncome == i S 1 243348 550,877 236,962
P ost-tax profit from continuing operations 508,716 {2,794,017) 335,527 . (2,629,568}
MET PROFIT OF THE YEAR 598,716 {2,794,017) 335,527 (2,629,568}
Attributable to noncontrolling interests 7586 5349 - =
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT 591,200  (2,799,866) 335,527  (2,629,568)
Statement of comprehansive incoma Group Bank
In RON thousands 2013 2014 2013 2014
Netresultfor thaperlod 598,716 . _(2,1"94:91 7 _._._.._,...._33‘.53...5.21 n (2_,529\568)'
“Other comprehensive income = B =
Itams that may not be reclassifled to profit ar loss R :'j-: = .,_ﬁ_ i . - | ST —_—
Remeasurement of net galn (losses) on benef_ltu_puliags N a . - — (4:8_28_)' {11. 833} ) (f-.GZ?) (‘!.1.7118)_
De'l’erred texes relating to ltems that may not be reclasslfled ™M 1.041 1,880
Total ~ - T T ey {8.802) T @Eees)
“itams that may be reclassified to profit or loss = £y
Avallable for sale reserve 48,038 387,301 323,835
_  Gainflossduingthepedod T T ez i‘ré_.g"ﬁz:__jr_ __ 3mam
Reclassification adlustments (14_.817) {9, 2[]1) (9,2(?1)
"Gash fiow hadge reserve {10,834} (1.833 {1,833)
Galn/loss dunng tha penod (8,645): -
— Retiassification adjustments. e _ - _ : = j__ :._ —— m?fég)“ o (1 833) e T ("i'fsaa“j
c_u.rrency laticn = (7973)_ i (9 163) - &

Galnnuss during the peﬂud o188 - -
Defe:rred tax rélating to ltems that may be reclasslfied (5'8'.355) {4,732) )
Galnfloss during the perioﬂ o mm....... ) . ] _ i (5_5-3:53) {4,733) ;:_
Total == = ) za 280 0 207,004 24,838 27
Total other comprehensive income 19,303 . _' ZB§,04? 20,951
Total comprehensive incoma o :___ e __ - T Tete08 (2 505 975] 356.418 (2,3&3,?53}
_Total comprehensiv e income atfributable to non-contrailing interests _ BBS0 - R T ~ T =
Total comprehenslve income atirlbutable to owners of the parent 806,458 (2.518.888)
AUTHORISED PERSON, AUTHORISED PERSON,
First name and name First name and name
Signature Signature
Executive Vice-President, Executive Director Accounting Division,

Adriana Jankovicoya

Rastislav Kovaci

The accompanying notes fonm an ifrtegral paltoflkmeﬁnancid statements.



BCRS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Consolidated and Bank
for the year ended 31 December 2014

Group Bank
01.01.2013 1.12.2013 01012013 31.12.2013
In RON thousands Hots restated restated S0 restated restated 312204
ASSETS
Cash and cash balances = ) 9242057 9586006 _ 823567 920795 9,545,662 8,501
Financial assets - held for trading - o U issAn 37asee 370829 753473 T 3763 570828
Derivatives 5 53,388 3781 B49T8 81529 w0838 T padre”
Othertrading sssets - T 6Tioa 08T | 28853 Brigd Sapew | omEEE
Financlal assets deslgnated at falr value through profit o loss [ 44736 34351 | 24587 44,736 34357 2AEET
Flnancial assets - availabla for sale B 4284085 528762~ 7erbiet 4257306 4453260 T6pasAzs
“Finangial essets - held to maturity I - I T2 0236256 9578,78 " 04386 S008538 " BAB9AT
Loans and receivables io credit institutions 21 351706 507736 625281 “oTese | 4eagea | 4BOGEE
Loans and recelvables to customers 22 45,131,365 38,002,389 32.566.068_ 44,035,764 37960217 32,937273
Derivatives Hadge Accounting T 23 48868 39233 = 7 Tagpes | s9zad T a
P roparty and equipment — 25 T 1637441 T 01552 - 1056610 44,557 IuIB
Investment propartles 45”.8_31 T g L =1 - -
ntanghleassets = ——— - —=1-28 429676 3erane 28461 23498 206,146
hvestmama Inas assoclates ) S — M Sl T uger = " 5289 - 7509
Currant tax assets = PR — & 77445 99273 69088 T8 890az
Deferred taxassets - 27 TR 3Lau_ szsn - 3563
Non-cumnt_a_sgaﬁ _amagqsgl | groups classlfled a8 hald for saie WIZB 73,283 07433 335,680 - =
Other assets 29 270,081 271 “428.51 862,81 680,682
TOTAL ASSETS 73,207,645 66,728,797 . 616248 70,531,183 63,509,963 59,037,134
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities held for trading - 86,886 66,061 n.er 85,886 66,061
Derivatives o T T wemEe eebsl  100@7 eeme 66,061
Financial llablitles measured at amortised cosis 63,940,346 57,570,089 : 55,564.030 = 60,977,067 54,358,870
_ Depositsfrombanks = 24,045,681 Bo1Baa | WBIR 22374676 BI040 BEALZ
_ Depositsframeustomers 37,893,030 3744820 0922620 36836389 35746864 37,502461
Debt securities issusd ] il TIsB5a6 1520428 10443208 1360803 1333386 1044208
Other financlal llablities — 475099 450207 406,079 475,089 440,207 374650
Derlvatives - hedge accounting ) LT 1087 266 854105 1582677 1087266 B6A006
Provisions 31 408,700 400,857 " 347,309 399,549 385,953 342,504
Current tax iabllies — 27 3,965 2728 " 695 - < =
Deferred toxlisbilties R T ] SE20° 818 241262 - ]
“Other Liabllitles - 32 02,302° 75226 B84BT 100aT “Bieds 86,970
Total equity 33 6802531 7423260 490,55 7.23305 7,479,850 5,110,897
attribitable to non-controlling intarest —— - B 27896 35081 5 = =
attri to owners of the parent 6.783,85 7395254 . 487504 7.03305 749650 50897
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 73,287,645 66,726,797  61,624,6% 70,531,183 63,509,963 59,037,134
AUTHORISED PERSON, AUTHORISED PERSON,
First name and name First name and name
Signature Signature
Executive Vice-President, Executive Director Accounting Division,

Adriana Jankovicova

9@
%
w,

&

BL?. &

Rastislav Kovacik

HAT)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements



BCRS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Consolidated and Bank
for the year ended 31 December 2014

2013 Group
Currency Equity attributable to
Retained Cashflowhedge  Avallable for sale translation Total owners of non-controlling
in RON thousands Subscribed capital  Share pramium @armings Other resarve resarve raserve reserve Actuarial {gains)i/loss Deferred tax the parent interests Total
Total equity as of 31.12.2012 2,852,555 385,426 2,351,789 995,151 15,184 {15,331} 8,717 94,548 [5,154) 8,783,135 1,348 6,802,531
Capital ircreases n 57 - - ] . . - 67 : 87
Dherchones o BT S S - - T -
Total hensiva Income = - = 591200 : (1,839) ) " 4828 (4904 809,450 a8 595,100
- Netpofiossfortheperod - o _®we T . e o e o o e 188 BBTE
Other comprehansive income - = = - ~ e (0,834) 46584 (= (4628) (4994 B258 - 184 £303
Total equity as of 31.12.2013 2,952,665 395,483 2,945,532 995,151 4,350 33,383 748 90,220 {20,148} 7,395,254 27,996 7,423,250
2014 Graup
Currency Equity attributabla to
Retained Cashflowhedge  Avallable for sale translation Total owners of non-controlling
tn RON thousands Subscribed capital  Share premlum earnings Other reserve resarve reserve resarve Actuarial (galns)/loss Deferred tax the parent Intarasts Tatal
Total agulty as of 3112.2083 2,952,565 395,483 2,045,532 995,161 4,350 31,353 748 50,220 (20,48} 7,395,254 27,996 7,423,250
Dividends e e T e S e I e [ e L i ] U g R e ORBZ) (66D
Oherctames ___ AN e AT ey i e e 6,002 B (100 i e = N e o (6758) B et el s NS (DR RS S e )
Total comprahensive income : . (2,799,566 : (1933) 368,569 (855) {1833) (55.089) (25%8,888) £58 (2506,976)
Net prodiloss far the period e — e e e = E e T ] e e e e e e e e e T L s TR R —— B 040 = 2T
Other comprehensive incame - - - ¥ {1e33) 358,968 _[9%6) (11833) (55,060) 280478 1068 283042
Taotal equity a8 of 31.12.204 . 2,852,585 395,483 152,558 993,756 A7 380,321 {15,168) 78,387 {75,217} 4,875,104 35,051 4,910,155
201 Bank
Currency
Rotainad Gash flow hadge Avallable for sals translatlon
inRON thousands Bubacribed capital Shere premium aarnings Other resarve reserve resarve raserve Acluarial {gains)/lcas Daferred tax Total
Total equity as of 31122012 2,952,665 365,428 2,703,121 895,154 15,184 (15,208) = 04,853 114,677) 7,123,305
Capitali T 57 - - - - o 5 67
Total income - . 436,527 - (10,834} 40404 (4528} [EXE] 38475
___Ncl profitlosa far the period 335,527 = - - = = = 3527
Other comprehenalvaincome - B - (1,854} 40404 - {4,628) (@890 26,851
Tolal equity s of 31.12.208 2,082,585 300,483 3,028,648 895,151 4,350 22,008 - 81,225 [13,868) 7,470,880
201 Bank
Currency
Retained Cashflowhedge  Avallable for sala translation
In RCN thousands Subscribed capital  Share premlum eamings Other reserve TESEIVE reserve reserve Actuarlal {galns)/loss Deferred tax Total
Total equity as of 31.12.2013 | 2,952,566 355,443 3,038,848 895,151 4,350 22,098 . 88,225 [18,888) 7,479,850
Otherchanges = - [ — )] 3 =1 i I 1 LDl
Ii_zidboniﬁehéﬁsiﬁdingérilel = . - {2/629,568) - {1833} 325835 L (1748 (49,635} (2:368953)
Nat profilfoss for the period e e (0 = e e — L e e e P e e e (2A20566)
Statement of comprehensive income - . - (1833) 23835 . (11748) (49,839) 2058
Total aquity as of 3112204 2,952,565 305,403 40ATS 993,758 241 346,031 - 8477 {68,307) 5,110,397

The accompanying notes form an integral part of thesa financial statements



BCRS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Consolidated and Bank
for the year ended 31 December 2014

Group Bank
| ENE mam ERS g
in RON thousands
Met result for the perlod 598,716 {2,794,017) 335,527 {2,629,568)
Non—cash adjustmants for items in net profitflass for the year
Depreclatlon amortisation, lmpalnnent and reversal ofimpairrnant Tevalualion of assels 218,907 ,,,,: . jﬁ&ﬁ_ﬂ_ :_ _"’9_4.9-(1—.& . w7
Allocation to and release of provisions {including risk provisions) 2,330 944 _ 4,826;0'6 &[3_%_55632 4 EGJ?T
Gainsi{iosses) fram thesale of assets - (3208)  we# (939)  uam
Other adjustments i o781 3924 229887 531760
Changes in assets and llabilitlas from operating actlvities after adjustment for non-
cash compenents
Financlal assets - held for trading 38T 2,760 B0 M-
Flnancial asgets - atfalrvaluethrnugh prof'iurloss ) T ..— T __: -10-.:-55.5-* 9,764 'q,:iB_S T B 97-6""4 i
" Financlal assets - avallable or sale = T T 008302)  (2067.008)  (AMBAS)  (1853228)
Loans and receivables to credit institutions —— = = (156,030) (17,545) (98 796) 2,596
Loans and recelvablas to customers 4,789,032 89,307 4,777 964 856.1#
" "Derivatives - hedge accounting _ 9655 3923 9885 30,233
Dther assets from operating activities o T (2063 (67288) __ (25um) (939,188)
Financil liabilities - held forlradlng E— 20,825 4066 | 20,32_5- "4:068—
Financial liabilities measured at amartised cost = — {6,370,257) i 72,066,059) (6,533,742} (1486,429)
Deposits from banks = (5893,03T)  (3060730)  (5860963)  (29M201)
_[Eposlis from customers T - WMTO) N 174,49‘_ ’ (107161 MWT [
Debt securities issued 3282 (485620 (0084)  (349,778)
Other financial liabilities (34.892)- (34 128} B398 {68,5"9-)-
Derivatives - hedge accounting (5{]5.711)' (533.251] (505,71 (533,261
Other rabilities from o perating activities (7,%6), {22.020) (M9, (34.999)
Cash flow from operating activities {184,727)  (1701,762): {17,396) {1,736,355)
Proceeds of disposal ]
Financlal assets - held to maturity 2380371, 2,064,506 2,085,340 1977948
Property and equipment, intangible assets and investment pro parties 62,063 i 71,455 9337 76,443
Acquisition of —
Financial assets - held to maturity and assoclated companies {1796,568) - (1530,929)- (162541) = (1.530 939)
Property and equipment, intangible assets and investment propertles (17,257) (23"5.2‘5) (01382) (174.317)
Cash flow from investing activitlas 528,609 356,805 437,446 349,134
Capital increases 87 - 67 -
Dividends pald to nan-controlling interests : (n5:882)_ - -
Cash flow from financing activities 87 {5.882) - :
Cash and cash equlvalents at beginning of period 9,242,057 9,586,006 9,125,545 9,545,662
Cash flowfrom operating activities (84,727) (1.?01.782)5 (7,296) {1736,355)
- Cash flow from Invesilng acllwtles T S T --5.28,609 i 356,805 4.37,?4—6. 349,‘_B4
Cash fiow from fi financmg activities T ) 87 (5,882); s -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of paried 9,586,006 8,235,167 9,545,662 8,158,441
Cash flows related to taxes, interest and dividends
Payments for taxes on income {Included in cash flow from operating activities) 8931,  (B748) 10485 -
Interest received 4,392,047 3,858,529 4,247,289 3,700,540
Dlvidends received 8548 2,604 8548 264
Intarest paid {1835,359) {1303,15) (1756,760) (1.219.449)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements



BCRS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Consolidated and Bank
for the year ended 31 December 2014

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Banca Comerciala Romana S.A. (the Bank' or ‘BCR) together with its subsidiaries (the ‘Group’) provides retail, corporate banking and
investment banking services mainly in Romania. As a result of the privatization process organized by the goverment of Romania, Erste Bank
der oesterreichischen Sparkassen AG (‘Erste Bank’) purchased 61.88% of the share capilal of the Bank pursuant to a share purchase
agreement daled 21 December 2005. Until 31 December 2014, Erste Bank purchased further 31.69% from employees and other shareholders
of the Bank. The ultimate parent of the Group is Erste Group Bank AG.

As of 31 December 2014, the foundafion DIE ERSTE oesterreichische Spar-Casse Privatstiftung (hereinafter refemed to as the ‘Privatstifiung’)
controlled a 30.04% interest in Erste Group Bank AG. 10.83% of the shares were held diractly by the Privatstifiung. Indirect participation of the
Privatstifung was at 9.20%, thereof 5.41% of the shares held by Sparkassen Beteiligungs GmbH & Co KG, which is an affiliated undertaking of
the Privatstiftung; 0.80% of the shares held by Austrian savings banks, which act together with the Privatstifiung and are affiliated with Erste
Group by virlue of the Haftungsverbund; and 3.08% of the shares held by other syndicate members. 9.92% interest in Erste Group Bank AG
was controlled by the Privatstiftung based on syndication agreement. This makes the Privatstiftung the largest single investor in Erste Group
Bank AG.

The Group provides day-to-day banking services and other financial services to governmental insfitutions, corporate and individual clients
operating in Romania and abroad. These services include: accounts opening, domestic and international payments, foreign exchange
transactions, working capital finance, medium and long ferm facilities, retaif loans, finance micro and small enterprises, bank guarantees, letters
of credit and through subsidiaries also leasing, brokerage, financial consultancy services and asset management.

Banca Comerciala Romana S.A. is incorporated and domiciled in Romania. Its registered office is at 5, Elisabeta Boulevard, Bucharest,
Romania.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
Management Board on 12 March 2015.

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies apply to both the consolidated (‘Group”) and separate financial statements of the Bank, except for accounting of
investments in subsidiaries and associates in the Bank’s financial statements.

21, Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis modified to include the inflation adjustments under
Intemational Accounting Standard (AS) 29 “Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies” up to 31 December 2003, except for available-
for-sale investments, trading financial assets, derivative financial instruments and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, that have
heen measured at fair value.

The Bank and its subsidiaries which are incorporated in Romania maintain their books of account and prepare their statutory financial
statements in accordance with Romanian Accounting Regulations and in the case of the Bank and its subsidiaries ‘BCR Leasing IFN SA‘ and
‘Banca pentru Locuinte’ in accordance with Romanian Banking Regulations. The foreign subsidiaries maintain their books of account and
prepare their statutory financial statements in their presentation cumrencies and in accordance with the regulations of the countries in which they

operate.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as endorsed by the European Union and uniform
accounting policies for consolidation were used.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Romanian Lei {RON, and all values are rounded to the nearest RON thousands,
except when otherwise indicated. The table in this report may contain rounding differences.

The consolidated financial stalements have been prepared on a going concem basis.




BCRS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Consolidated and Bank
for the year ended 31 December 2014

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The Bank has the following subsidiaries consolidated in the financial slatements of the Group as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013;

Company's nams ﬁz:rrl;:yr::ion Naturo of the business 201?“‘“"'0'“'"29014

BCR Chisinau SA Moldova Banking 10.00% 10480%
Flnanclara SA { in Hquldation ) Romania Finangial 97.46% 9746%
BCR Leasing IFN SA Romania Financlal leasing 99.83% 00.96%
Bucharest Financial Plazza SRL* Romania Real estate 99.9%% 999%%
BCR Pansii, Societate de Administrare a Fondurilor de P ensii Private SA Romania Penslon Fund 99.99% 99.99%
BCR Bang. pentru Loguinte SA Romanla Housing loans B0.00% 80.00%
BCR Finance BV (liguidated) The Netherands Flnancial 100.00% 0.00%
Suport Colect SRL Romania Workout 10.00% 10.00%
BCRProcesare SRL Romania Cash processing and storing 99.50% 90.08%
BCR Real Estate M anagement SRL Romanla Real astate 09.96% 90.99%
BCR Flest M anagamant SRL"™ Romania Operational lsasing 00.93% 90.96%
BCR Partener M obil 8RL (liquidated) Romania Mobile phone transactions 99.99% 000%
BCR Payments 8PV Romania P ayments transactions 90.95% 90.99%

* Company held indirectly by BCR through BCR Real Estate Management SRL
** Company held indirectly by BCR through BCR Leasing SA

() Impactofinflation

Rornania was a hypetinflationary economy and was officially declared as ceasing to be hyperinflationary for IFRS reporting purposes as at 1
July 2004. The financial statements of the Group and the Bank have been restated to take into account the effects of inflation until 31 December
2003 in accordance with the provisions of and guidance in IAS 29. In summary IAS 29 requires that financial statements prepared on a
historical cost should be restated in terms of measuring unii current at the balance sheet date and that any gain or loss on the net monetary
position should be included in the profit or loss and disclosed separately.

{2) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the Bank have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and its interpretations issued by the Intemational Accouniing Standards Board (IASB) as adopted by the EU.

The Group presents its statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months
after the statement of financial position date (current) and more than 12 months after the statement of financial postion date (non-current) is
presented in Nole 45.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position only when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intenfion 1o setle on a net basis, or o realise the assets and settle the liability
simultaneously. Income and expense will not be offset in the statement of comprehensive income unless required or permitted by any
accounting standard or interpretation, as specifically disclosed in the accounting policies of the Group.

(3) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Bank as at and for the year ended 31 December each year. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the Bank, using consistent accounting policies. The Bank's
investments in subsidiaries are accounted at cost in separate financial stafements.

The Bank presents the investments in subsidiaries in the separate financial stalements as “Other assets”.

All infra-group balances, fransactions, income and expenses and profis and losses resulting from intra-group transaclions are eliminated in full.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is fransfemed to the Bank. Conlral is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable refums from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those retums through its power over the
investes. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated profit or loss from the date of
acquisition or up to the date of disposal, as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Consolidated and Bank
for the year ended 31 December 2014

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The Bank sponsers the formation of special purpose entifies (SPEs), primarily for the purpose of faciiitation of investments by the Bank's clients,
and to accomplish certain narrow and well defined objectives. The Bank consolidates those SPEs if the substance of its relationship with them
indicates that it has control over them.

Nen-controlling inferests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets not owned, directly or indirectly, by the Bank and are presented
separately in the profit or loss and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial position, separately from parent shareholders’ equity.
Up to 1 July 2009, acquisitions of minority interests were acceunted for using the parent entity extension method, whereby, the difference
between the consideration and the fair value of the share of the net assets acquired was recognized as goodwill. Any deficiency of the cost of
acquisiion below the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired (i.e. a discount on acquisition) is recognized directly in the profit or loss in
the year of acquisition. After 1 July 2009, any change in ownership interest of a subsidiary is accounted for as an equity fransaction. Therefore
such a change will have no impact on goodwill, nor will it give raise to a gain or loss.

4 Investment in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power fo participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investes, but is not control over those policies.

The considerations made in determining significant influence are similar to those necessary to determine control over subsidiaries,

The Group's investments in ifs associate are accounted for using the equity method. The Bank's investments in its associate are accounted at
cost in the separate financial statements.

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate is inifially recognised at cost. The camying amount of the investment is adjusted to
recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate since the acquisiion date. Goodwill relating to the associate is included in
the carrying amount of the investment and is neither amorfised nor individually tested for impaiment.

The statement of profit or loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the associate. Any change in Other Comprehensive
Income of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s Other Comprehensive Income. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulfing from fransactions between the Group and the asscciate are eliminated to the extent of the
interest in the associats.

The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to
bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on its investment in it
assoclate. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If
there Is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impaimment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value, then, recognises the loss as ‘Share of profit of an associate’ in the statement of profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associats, the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference hetween the camrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

{5) Accounting and measurement methods

In 2014 BCR Group, as well as Erste Group, changed the structure of its statement of financial position, statement of comprehensive income
structure according fo the measurement categories as per IAS 39, in order {o provide more reliable and relevant information about its financial
posifion and performance of the company. A number of disclosures were adjusted accordingly - both presentation format and figures.

The new structure was also infroduced to generate synergies with the new IFRS based regulatory requirements (‘FINREP”) and to facilitate the
comparability with published reports of the financial authorities, compefitors and BCR Group. In the year 2014 FINREP was infroduced by the
European Banking Authority (‘'EBA”) and represents a regulatory framework on a compulsory basis, which must be applied by financial
institutions within the EU. This harmonization makes the recenciliation of published reports by the regulator with reports of BCR Group much
easier.




BCRS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated and Bank

for the year ended 31 December 2014

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The following tables show the relationships between old and new positions of the statement of financial position and of the statement of comprehensive income.

On the statement of the financial position and statement of the comprehensive income the 2013 figures have been marked as “restaled”.

Statement of financial position

Split batwesn
Split batween . i Other
New structure Hher  rmiingang POPRYAM o ification  Redmsification oL Receivables o Mesmwementof  Old structure
InJRIGN thousshda 312200 Gl hedglng L debt of deposits e assetsl  hedged Item 3208 Group
. deposits derivatives praperty and other irvestments aetttemants Nabilties
other movables
ASBETS ASSETS
_Cash and cash balances 9,588,008  {2213031) F 34,6860 $,389,353 Cashand cash balances
Financial asssts - held for trading 373,508 (42.781 N 33087
Derivatives 42,781 {42,789
Other trading sssets 33087 o R § _ 330,817 Financial aasets - held far trading -
e 8201 82,044 Derivatives
Financlal assets dasignatad at falr value 34,351 34,351 -, Financial asseis designated at Tair value
through profit or loss e . thraugh profit orloss
Flnanulal assels - available farsale 529.!&_2_ 681551 A - 5,281,3{! Financial assels - available for sale
"Financial assets - held to maturity - 10,235,250 1,235,256 Financial asseis - held to maturity
_Loans and receivables to credit institutio ns 507,736 221303 75,537) 653,502 Loans and receivables to credit mstitutions
_Loans and receivables to eustomers 38,002 380 (34,650)  (209,19) _ 37,758,820 Loans and receivables to customers —in
_Derivatlves - hedge accounting 39,233 !39233! S
Property and equipment 1601652 {138,448) 1363,104 Proparty and equipment
nvestment properties 44, 8B4 (44,134) +
ntanglble assets . 387,252 - 387,352 Intangible asaets
Inveatments in assaciates iy #2907 1,287 its Inassoclates
Current tex asssts 86,273 . 88,373 Current taxassets
Deferred taxansets 315,34 31534 Defared taxassets .
Non-current assets and disposal groups Non-cwrent assets and disposal groups
classified as held for sale rﬂ7,433 - - 07433 \assifiad ac held for sale b
Other assets BRI 82,582 {01551 - 284,858 #76,768 Other assets
TOTAL ASBSETS 66,728,787 56,728,737 TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES LIABILITIES
Flnancial liabilities held far trading 66,081 (68,087 -
Derivatives 66,081 o (66,081 - e - -
oy 153,327 iy 1153,327 Derivatives
Financial liabllitles measured at amartised costs 57,570,080 (223,283) (255,5_3_2) {19,276) -
Deposlis from banks 8,51844 {2,317,508) 02 852 (43,636) 15,913,666 Deposlts from banks
Depozlts from customers 37,4482°0 {5087) 51823 37,404,948 Deposits from customers .
Dabt securities issuad 1520.828 {208,377) 5,087 (75,841 1252.897 97 Debt securities issued R
. Otherfinancial liabliltles 440.20?__ - __ {440.207) . . e
Derivalives - hedge accounting 149.9?;39 ] {1087 ,266) -
P rovisions 400857 {1786} 309,081 Provisians .
_Current tax labllitles 2208 2 i 2228 Gurrent tax llabilities
_Deforred tax(labliities 3,820 ) 3820 Deferrad taxliabilitias _
Other Llabllities. 75228 247,328 19,278 50 Leaﬁ Othar LIBbiIItIBE .
- 2,523,883 2523, 983 Subcrdonated liabilities
Total equi 7,423,250 7,423,250 Total Total squity
.. attributable to non-controlling Interest 27,006 . i) = 27908 "aitributable (o non-c controlllng interest
attributable to owners of the parent 7,365,254 73665254 aitributable to owners of the parent
TOTALLIABILITIES AND EQUITY 86,728,787 646,728,787 TOTAL LIABILITIESE AND EQUITY




BCRS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated and Bank

for the year ended 31 December 2014

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Statement of finanelal position

Split betwesn Reclassification Other
Cther trading snd Reclassification participations Receivables  {inanclal M easursment
New structure demand hedging suboroinated ana other Certlificutes frem assetsl of hedged Old structura

In RON thousands 31122013 deposils dorivatives debt of deposits  asttl liabilities Item 31122013 Bank

ASSBETS ASSETS

Cash and cash balances 9,545,882 (221303) - 34,6850 ____9.360,000 Cashand cashbalances -

Financlal assets - held for trading 371763 (40,948) 330,67 B - -

Derivatives 40048 {40,948) — . = . =

Other trading assets 330817 33087 Financial assets - held for tradin
L = X 80,179 80,179 Derlvatives

Flnancial assets designated at fair value Financial assets designated at fair valus

through profitorloss — 34,351 . 34,351 through profit orloss .

Financlal assets - available for sale 4,453,280 625,476 5,078,736 Financial assets - avallable forsale
__l':_!_nanclai assets - hald to maturity o.ggg_.eas = A, 8,008,939 Financial assets - held to maturity

Loans and recelvables to cradit institutiong 483,282 221303 {75,537) 820,028 Loans and ri to cradit institutions

ELoans and receivables to customers 37,860,217 e = b (34,850) (209,119) 37, 76448 Loansﬂrﬂceivables lg_customers =

Detivative. - hadge accounting ) 39,233 @.9&?9 . - . .

Pro perty and equipment 34,334 34,334 Propertyand ipment

rntangible asgots 208,146 21 s - 208,146 Intangible asasts

Ihvestments in assoclates 7.509 . 7.500 Investments Inasscolatee

Curment tax assets A 89,042 - 88,042 Current tex assets

Deferred tax assets 34,663 31,563 Defered taxassets

Other assets 880,882 (625,476) 284 658 338,862 Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS 63,500,083 63,609,963 TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES LIABILITIES

Financlal liabllities held fo r trading 88,061 {88,001 - oS
_Derivatives 86,061 {68,081 —

L 1,153,327 1,153,327 Derlvatives

Financlal liabilities measured at amortised costs 54,358,870 T (2,523,883) - {285,532) (1e287) - .

Deposite from banks B,778413 (2,317,508) »2852 (43,835) #,6540,24 Deposits from banks

Deposlts from 1 35,746,664 {6,087} 51823 36,793,800 Deposits from customers

Dabt sacurities issued 13693,386 {208,377) 50B7 (75,752} 118,344 Debt seourities issued

Othet financial liabilities 440,207 {440,207) -

Darivatives - hedge accounting 1087 266 {1087,266) o #

Provisions 395,953 {1798) 384,167 Provisions

Other Lia 121963 . 287,328 110,387 S 508,678 Other Liabilitlas S

Z 2,523,888 ] 2,523,883 Subordonated liabilities ]

Tatal aquity _ 7,470,350 7470,850 Total equity — ol
attributable to owners of ths parent 7479850 7,479,850 attributable ta owners of the parent

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 63,609,982 53,509,063 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Consolidated and Bank
for the year ended 31 December 2014

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Statement of comprehensive income

Incomefrom  Split between " Payment
. investmert et trading resut  Reciassification  Reclassiication "fmt’“ ';:‘:m':y“dm Mo Redessfiaton oo
in RON thousands 12208 Dwvidewds  properyand  andfalrvalue  otherincomel  impairment from =, and ofher deposit off balance 10208 Group
uperai_ioral theoughprofitor  otherexpenses  tangibleassats heeits reciovables insurance provisions
leasing loss fund
Net interesti income i 2775553 0,385 163 —— 3605 281186 Net :n!erest income =
Netfeo and commission ncome Y R - S T - . _ MI23 Netfeeandcommissionincome
Dlwdendmcome T A_V 11,385 (1),385) _ i B "‘“f”_‘_"'“' CT T T T ] ] o ) .
Nettmdrngandfalrvalueresult T ws Ry - = P e _ '-459:299' Nettmdingresut  ~ "~
éhﬁ., T " T ' ————— 2007 (Gains orlosses on financial assels measured at fair
_ e T — o valuelhraughproﬁturluss net
Bl . 135,926 s - - 135926 Otheroperatmg income
Natrasultfromequllymethodmv-tmenls ~ 3.231_ B gy oy D e — ——— = o= 3531 Netresultfrom squitymethod investments
Rental income from investment properlm B other
operating lease 4oz (21’6_2?) )
Persomelegenses I e —— — EEE T (764946) Persomelepenses
‘Otheradministralive expenses  (BA7ATE} oo " (420078) T : T mee © (848354) Otheradminisirative epenses B
Depreciationand amortisation ) _ . {1900) (5.767) T (226574 Depreciation and amortisation -
Gains/losses onf nancial assets and liabilities not
measured atfawvaluelhrough profit or loss, net il (14'067)
“Net |mpa|rment loss on financial assets not measured “Netin |mpa|rment loss on financial assets not
at fair value ihrough proﬁl orloss - (2 1,546) ) ) ?9‘898 (25 075) (2 132 723) measured atfalrvaluethrough proﬁt orloss
Other aperatingresuf o _ fonpey o 300901 5767  (onhue) (t8.86) 25075 " " Dtheroperating resuk o -
Pre-tax profit from continuing ‘oparations 66,769 T 86,769 P re-tax profitfrom continuing operations
“Taxes onincome _3'31.947 53{47 Tawes onincoma -
P ost-tax profit from continuing operatlons 598,716 §98,7% Post-tax profit from continuing operations
NET PROFIT OF THE YEAR 598,716 598,7%6 NET PROFIT OF THE YEAR
Attributable to non-controlling interests h86 75%  Aftributable to non-controlling intarests
ATTRIBUTABLE TC OWNERS OF THE 591200 591,200 ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE

PARENT

PARENT

10
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Statement of comprehensive incoma
Provision
Incomafrem  Sphit between Payment
I - ) Interest cost expersesfor e
inestiment  net trading resull  Reclassificztion  Reclassificatlon into Reclassification
in RON thousands Ne;ﬂggg'e Dividerds propertyand  and fairveus  otrerincomel other  impairment from r“::" b , "t‘"’“;m depost  off balarma o':fg"z‘;;” Bank
oparationd  throughprofit or expenses tangible assets e:p em::‘ enot:rr;_ insurance pravisions
lasing loss . furd
I!\Iet interest innorn_m 2,894,8777 0,385 7601 . 3594 - 27‘6 457 Ndmterest income
Net fae and commission income 78,250 (786) 77464 Net fee and commission lnoome
Dmdend income o 10385 (1D.385) ) - ) - _ .
Nattradmg and farr value result 440 757 {2,007) 438 750 Nel trading result
—— eI T e e ot T T - Gains orlosses onfinancial assets measured at far value
. ) e B 207 _ . e S 2,007 through profit or loss, nat e
. o 136,935 . L 16,935 Other operating income
Rental Income from investment properties & other operating lesse 7601 (7601
Pesomelogenses ) . ey T T (6%2m) Pesomelmpenses
_Other administratlve expanses . (8%.5%) (78,44) 4,754 (149,906} Other administrative expenses
Depreclahon and amo tisation (54,002 {5,767} (170,869) Depreciationand amortisation
Gains/losses on financial assets and Iabiliies not measured at fair T . - - ) -
value through profit ot loss, net - Efb? i _ __(14’067) B B . =
Net impairment fo s5 on financial assets not measurad at fair value . Net impalment loss on financial assets not measured at fair
lhruugh pmﬁl oriuss — = 192526) - i) i) - “’950'096} valuethruugh profit orloss .
Othetoperallng result ‘ (5'2645} o ) 567,062  5re1 (99 398) (114 754) 124 458 0the;_9 gergllr}g result " i
P re-tax profitjrom cnntululng oplrallons ) (224,290) N B . ) L (335‘,‘290) Pre-taxproﬁl frum contlgulng operamns . _
T-n onincome 559.817 55987 Tanes onincome
P ost-tax profit from continuing oparations 335,527 335,527 Post-tax profit from continuing operations
NET PROFIT OF THE YEAR 335,527 335,527 NET PROFIT OF THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS QF THE PARENT 335,527 336,527  ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT

1"
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Consolidated and Bank
for the year ended 31 December 2014

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
22, Significant accounting judgments and estimates

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has used its judgments and made estimates in datermining the
amounts recagnized in the financial statements. The most significant use of judgments and estimates are as follows:

{1) Fair value of financial mstruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded on the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are
determined using a variefy of valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical models. The inputs to these models are derived from
observable market data where possible, but where observable market data is not available judgement is required to establish fair values.
Disclosures for valuation models, the fair value hierarchy and fair values of financial instruments can be found in Nole 41 Fair value of assets
and liabilities,

{2) Impairment losses on loans and advances

The Group reviews its individually significant loans and advances at each statement of financial positicn dale to assess whether an impaiment
loss should be recorded in the statement of comprehensive income. In particular, judgment by management is required in the estimation of the
amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the impaiment loss. In estimating these cash flows, the Group makes judgments
about the borrower’s financial situation and the net realisable value of collateral. These esfimates are based on assumptions about a number of
faclors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the allowance.

Loans and advances that have been assessed individually and found not to be impaired and all individually insignificant loans and advances are
then assessed collecfively, in groups of assets with similar risk characteristics, to determine whether provision should be made due to incurred
loss events for which there is objective evidence but whose effects are not yet evident. The collective assessment lakes account of data from
the loan portfolio (such as credit quality, levels of arears, credit utilisation, loan fo collateral rafios efc.), concentrations of risks and economic
data (including levels of unemployment, real estate prices indices, country risk and the performance of different individual groups).

The impairment loss on loans and advances is disclosed in more detail in Note 10, Note 21, Note 22 and Note 40.5.6.
(3) Impairment of available-for-sale equity investments

The Group treals available-for-sale equity investments as impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
below its cost or where olher abjective evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ requires judgment.
The Group treals ‘significant’ generally as 20% and ‘prolonged greaterthan 1 year. In addition, the Group evaluates other factors, such as the
share price volafility.

@ Deferred tax assefs

Deferred tax assets are recognised in respect of tax losses and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Judgement is required fo determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely iming and level of future taxable profits, together with future tax planning sirategies. According to the five-
years budgets approved, management estimates that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences
and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. Disclosures conceming deferred taxes are in Note 12 and 27.

5 Benefits granted on the date of retirement

The cost of the defined benefit consisting of a one-off payment of up to four monthly gross salaries on the date of refirement is determined using
actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, expecied rales of retum on assets, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the long term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty. See Note 31 for
the assumpficns used.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Consolidated and Bank
for the year ended 31 December 2014

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
(6) Summary of significant estimates performed in 2014

During 2014, the following significant estimations were done:

in RON thousands Notes Description BIS impact P&L Impact
ABIETS Income siatement
Propertvand equipmant = — — 28 IFRS5recianaflioation for buiidings = {413.38C)
1t properti ) o fFRSEr_samaiﬂoaﬂoqfurb_uﬁd}nga_ . . (25._485)
impak of latiorship in BCR
26 Pensiand jand conoession in REM and wiite (77,786) (77.786) Other oparating reault

Intangible sasats r_;f.fo.flaomeaoﬂmqppﬂaatbmmscR

Deformdmamols ... .. BOH__(eeeh | Tessonbons
Non-current assels and dizposal gro ups classifisd as hald for sals 28 I5RS & realasslivatian For bulidings - L] -

impair of gs IFRS 5 reclassificath (04,493) (104,493) Other operating rasull
Qther assets 28 impairment ofropossed assels {41000 (41001 Other operating resull
TOTAL ASSETS (443,168)
LIABILITIES — 2

Provisions for litigations and onerooe .

]| {4297) (42,87) Other oparating rasult

Provisiona contracts
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY {42,017)  (486,083) Total mcems statement

23, Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the separate financial statements of the Bank and of the consolidaled financial
statements of the Group are set out below:

{1) Foreign currency translation

The financial siatements are presented in RON, which is the Bank's funcfional and presentation cumency. Each entity in the Group determings
its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each enlity are measured using that functional currency.

{i} Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are refranslated into the functional currency at the rate of exchange ruling at
the statement of financial position date. All differences are taken to ‘Net trading and fair value result’ in the profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates
of the initial fransactions. Non-monetary ftems measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined.

{i}} Group companies

As at the reporting date, the assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries are franslated into the Bank's presentation currency (RON} at the
European Centrai Bank (ECB) rate of exchange ruling at the statement of financial position date, and their profits or losses are transtaled at the
average ECB exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences arising on translation are taken directly 1o a separate component of equity. On
disposal of a foreign enlity, the deferred cumulative amount recognized in equity relating to that particular foreign operation is recognized in the
statement of comprehensive income in ‘Other operating result’.

{2 Financial instruments - initial recognition and subssquent measurement
{i) Date of recognition
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in

the marketplace are recognized on the setlement dale, i.e. the date on which the agreement is settled by delivery of assets that are subject of
the agreement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Consolidated and Bank
for the year ended 31 December 2014

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Any change in the fair value of the asset to be received during the period between the trade date and the settlement date is not recognised for
assels carried at cost or amortised cost {other than impaimient losses). For assets carried at fair value, however, the change in fair value shall
be recognised in profit or loss or in other comprehensive income, as appropriate.

Derivatives are recognized on trade date basis, i.e. the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

When the transaclion price differs from the fair value of other observable current market transactions in the same instrument, or based on a
valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable markets, the Bank immediately recognises the difference between the
transaction price and fair value {a Day 1 profit or loss} in Net trading income. In cases where fair value is determined using data which is not
observable, the difference between the transaclion price and model value is only recognised in the income statement when the inputs become
cbservable, or when the insirument is derecognised.

(i) Initial recognition of financial instruments

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were acquired and
their characteristics. All financial instruments are measured initially at their fair value plus, in the case of financial assats and financial liabifities
not at fair value through profit or loss, any directly attributable incremental costs of acquisition or issue.

it} Derivatives recorded af fair value through profit or loss

Derivatives include currency swaps, forward foreign exchange confracts, interest rate swaps and interest rate options. Derivatives are recorded
at fair value and carried as assets when their fair vaiue is positive and as liabilities when their fair value is negative. Changes in the fair value of
derivatives held for trading are included in ‘Net trading and fair value result’

{iv) Financial assefs and financial liabilities held for trading

Financial assets or financial liabflities held for trading, comprising financial instruments held for trading other than derivatives, are recorded in the
statement of financial position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized in 'Net trading and fair value result. Interest and dividend
income or expenses are recorded in ‘Net trading and fair value result’ according fo the terms of the contract, or when the right to the payment
has been established.

Included in this classification are debt securities, equities and short positions in debt securities and securities which have been acquired
principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near tem.

{v) Financial assets or financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or joss

Financial assets and financial liabilities classified in this category are designated by management on initial recognition when the following criteria

are met;
* the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or

liabilities or recognizing gains or losses on them on a different basis; or

the assets and liabilties are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilties or both which are managed and their performance

evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy; or

»  thefinangial instrument contains an embedded derivative, unless the embedded derivative does not significantly modify the cash

flows or it is clear, with liftle or no analysis, that it would not be separately recorded.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair vaiue through profit or loss are recorded in the statement of financial position al fair value.
Changes in fair value are recorded in ‘Net trading and fair value resutt. Interest eamed or incurred is accrued in interest income or expense,
respectively, according to the terms of the contract, while dividend income is recorded in ‘Dividend income’ when the right to the payment has
been established,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Consolidated and Bank
for the year ended 31 December 2014

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
{vi} Held-to-maturily financial investments

Held-to-maturity financial investments ara those which carry fixed or determinable payments and have fixed maturities and which the Group has
the intention and ability to hold to maturity. After inifial measurement, heid-to-maturity financial investments are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the effecfive interest rale. The amortization is included in 'Net inferest
income’ in the statement of comprehensive income. The losses arising from impairment of stich investments are recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income fine ‘Net impairment loss on financial assets not measured at fair value through profit or loss'.

If the Group were to sell or reclassify more than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity investments before maturity (other than in certain
specific circumstances), the entire category would be fainted and would have to be reclassified as available-for-sale. Furthermore, the Group
would be prohibited from classifying any financial asset as held to maturity during the following two years.

(vi)) Loans and receivable to credit institution and fo cusiomers

‘Loans and receivable to credit institution and to customers’ are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
are not quoted in an aclive market. They are not entered info with the intention of immediate or short-lerm resale and are not classified as
‘Financial assets held for trading’, designated as ‘Financial investments - available-for-sale’ or ‘Financial assets designated af fair value through
profitor loss’. After initial measurement, amounts due from banks and loans and advances to customers are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective inferest rate method, less allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees and costs that should be an integral part of the effective inferest rate. The amortization is included
in ‘Net interest income’ in the statement of comprehensive income. The losses ariing from impairment are recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income in ‘Net impairment loss in financial assets not measured at fair value through profit or loss”.

{viif) Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are those which are designated as such or do not qualify to be classified as financial investments at fair
value through profit or loss, trading financial assets, held-to-maturity or loans and advances. They include equity instruments, investments in
mutual funds and money market and other debt instruments. After initial measurement, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses are recognized directly in equity in the ‘Available-for-sale reserve’. When the
security is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in equity is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income in
‘Gainfosses from financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value through profit or loss’. Where the Group holds more than one
investment in the same security they are deemed to be disposed of on a first-in first-out basis. Interest eamed whilst holding available-for-sale
financial investments is reported as interest income using the effective interest rate. Dividends eamed whilst holding available-for-sale financial
investments are recognized in the profit or loss as ‘Dividend income’ when the right of the payment has been established. The losses arising
from impairment of such investments are recognized in the profit or loss in ‘Gainflosses from financial assets not measured at fair value through
profit or loss’ and removed from the available-for-sale reserve.

(ix} Debt securities issued

Issued financial instruments or their components, which are not designated at fair value through profit or loss, are classified as liabilities under
‘Debt securities issued', where the substance of the contractual arangement results in the Group having an obligation either to deliver cash or
another financial asset to the holder, or to satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of own equity shares. After intial measurement, debt issued and other borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest rate method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on the issue and
costs that should be an integral part of the effective interest rate.

(x) Reclassification of financial assets

For a financial asset reclassified out of the ‘Available-for-sale’ category, any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in
equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the
new amortised cost and the expected cash flows is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective interest rate method. If
the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired then the amount recorded in equity is recycled to the profit o loss. Reclassification is at the
election of management, and is delermined on an instrument by instrument basis. The Group does not reclassify any financial instrument into
the fair value through profit or loss category after initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Consolidated and Bank
for the year ended 31 December 2014

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
{3)  Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
(i} Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asse or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized where:

+  the rights fo receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or
has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash fiows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement;
and

+  either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transfered its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has enlered into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither
fransferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor fransferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the
extent of the Group's continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the fransfemed asset
is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be

required to repay.
(i) Financial liabilities

Afinancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognifion of the original liability and the recognition of a new liabflity, and the difference in
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

(4 Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase at a specified future date (‘repos’) are not derecognized from the statement of financial
position. The corresponding cash received, including accrued interest, is recognized on the statement of financial position as a ‘Repurchase
agreement, reflecting its economic substance as a loan o the Group. The difference between the sale and repurchase prices is treated as
interest expense and is accrued over the life of the agreement using the effective interest rate method. Where the transferee has the right to sell
or pledge the asset, the asset is recorded on the statement of financial position as ‘Financial assets held for rading pledged as collateral’.

Conversely, securities purchased under agreements to resell at a specified future date (‘reverse repos’) are not recognized on the statement of
financial position. The coresponding cash pald, including accrued interest, is recognized on the statement of financial position as a ‘Reverse
repurchase agreements’. The difference between the purchase and resale prices is trealed as interest income and is accrued over the life of the
agreement using the effective interest rate method.

{5}  Securities lending and borrowing

Securities lending and borrowing transactions are usually callateralized by securities or cash. The transfer of the securities fo counterparties is
only reflected on the statement of financial position if the risks and rewards of ownership are also transferred. Cash advanced or received as
collateral is recorded as an assef or liability.

Securities borrowed are nof recognized on the statement of financial position, unless they are sold to third parties, in which case the obligation to
retumn the securities is recorded as a trading liability and measured af fair value with any gains or losses included in ‘et frading and fair value
result’.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Consolidated and Bank
for the year ended 31 December 2014

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
{6) Determination of fair value

The fair value for financial instruments fraded in active markets at the statement of financial position date is based on their quoted market price
or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.

For all other financial instruments not listed in an active markef, the fair value is determined by using appropriale valuation techniques. Valuaticn
techniques include pricing modeis or discounted cash flow fechniques. Where discounted cash flow fechniques are used, esimated future cash
fiows are based on management's best estimates and the discount rate is market related rate at the statement of financial position date for an
instrument with similar terms and conditions. Where pricing models are used, inputs are based on market related measures at the statement of
financial positicn date. Where a fair value cannot reliably be estimated, unquoted equity instruments e.g. Investments in subsidiaries (see note
29) that do not have a quoted market price in an active market are measured at cost and petiodically tested for impairment.

(7) Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each statement of financial position dale whether there is any objecfive evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of ane or more events that has occurred after the inifial recognition of the asset {an incurred ‘Yoss event’) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
esfimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the bomower or a group of borrowers is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, defaulf or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization
and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaufts. Disclosures concerning impairment of financial assets are in Note 40.5.6.

{i} Loans and receivable fo credft institution and fo cusfomers

For amounts due from banks and loans and advances to customers carried af amortized cost, the Group first assesses individually whether
objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or no, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
forimpairment, Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference befween the
asset's camying amount and the present value of estimaled future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized in the
profit or loss, Inferest income continues to be accrued on the reduced camying amount based on the criginal effective interest rate of the asset.
Loans together with the associated allowance are writlen off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realized or has been transferred to the Group. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the esfimated impaiment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occuring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impaiment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowanca account. A loan Is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recoverability. If a write-off is later recovered,
the recovery is credited to the "Net impairment loss on financial assets not measured at fair value through profit or loss..

The present valus of the estimated future cash flows is discounted af the financial asset's original effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable
inferest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the cument effective inferest rate. The calculafion of the present value of the
esfimated future cash fiows of a collateralized financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and
selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impaiment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of the Group's intemal credit grading syslem
that considers credit risk characteristics such as asset type, industry, geographical location, collateral type, past-due status and other relevant
factors.

17



BCRS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated and Bank
for the year ended 31 December 2014

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Future cash flows on a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impaimment are estimated on the basis of historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of cument
observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the years on which the historical loss experience is based and to
remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not exist currently. Estimates of changes in future cash flows reflect, and are
directionalty consistent with, changes in relaled ohservable data from year to year {such as changes in unemployment rates, property prices,
commodity prices, payment status, or other factors that are indicative of incumred losses in the group and their magnitude). The methodology
and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regulary to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss

expenience.
(i) Held-to-maturity financial investments

For held-to-maturity invesiments the Group assesses individually whether there is objective evidence of impairment. if there is objective
evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the assets’ camying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the: loss is recognized in
the profit or loss to the ‘Net impairment loss on financial assets not measured at fair value through profil or loss”,

If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss decreases because of an event ocouing after the impairment was
recognized, any amounts formerly charged are credited to the ‘Net impairment loss on financial assets not measured at fair value through profit
or loss’.

(iii) Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at each statement of financial position date whether there is objective evidence
that an investment or a group of invesiments is impaired.

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the investment below its cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in the profit or loss - is removed
from equity and recognized in the profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed threugh the profit or loss; increases in
their fair value after impairment are recognized directly in equity.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial assets camied at
amortised cost, Interest continues to be accrued at the original effeclive inferest rate on the reduced canrying amount of the assef and is
recorded as part of ‘Net interest income’, If, in a subsequent year, the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment foss was recognized in the profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through
the profit or loss.

{iv) Renegotiated loans

Where possible, the Group seeks to restructure loans rather than to take possession of collateral. This may involve extending the payment
arrangements and the agreement of new loan conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated, the loan is no longer considered past due.
Management continuously reviews renegotiated leans to ensure that all crileria are met and that future payments are likely o occur. The loans
continue to be subject to an individual or collective impaiment assessment, calculated using the loan's original effective interest rate.

For clients with renegotiated loans with an exposure larger than EUR 400 thousands and who have either default or watch flag orare in a
workout process, the impairment test is performed on a monthly basis on account level, but for the entire exposure.

{v) Collateral valuation
The Group seeks to use collateral, where possible, to mitigate its risks on financial assets. The collateral comes in various forms such as cash,

securities, letters of credit/guarantees, real estate, receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets and credit enhancements such as netting
agreements. The fair value of collateral is generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception and periodically after the inception date.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

To the extent possible, the Group uses acfive market data for valuing financial assets, held as collateral. Other financial assels which do not
have a readily determinable market vafue are valued using models. Non-financial collateral, such as real estate, is valued based on data
provided by third parties such as morigage brokers, housing price indices, audited financial statements, and other independent sources.

{vi) Collateral repossessed

The Group’s policy is fo determine whether a repossessed asset is best used for its intemal operations or should be sold. Assets determined to
be useful for the intenal operations are transferred fo their relevant asset category at the lower of their repossessed value or the carrying value
of the original secured asset. Assels that are determined better o be soid are immediately transferred to inventories at their fair value af the
repossession date in line with the Group's policy. Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs necessary to make the sell.

(8) Hedge accounting

The Group makes use of derivative instruments fo manage exposures to interest rafe and currency risks. In order to manage particular risks, the
Group applies hedge accounting for transactions which meet the specified criteria.

At inception of the hedge relationship, the Group formally documents the relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument,
including the nature of the risk, the objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge and method that will be used to assess the effectiveness of
tha hedging relationship.

Also at the inception of the hedge relationship, a formal assessment is undertaken fo ensure the hedging instrument is expected to be highly
effective in offsetting the designated risk in the hedged item. Hedges are formally assessed each quarter. A hedge is regarded as highly
effective if the changes in fair value or cash flows attributable fo the hedged risk during the period for which the hedge is designated are
expected fo offset in a range of 80% to 125%. For situations where that hedged item is a forecast fransaction, the Group assesses whether the
transaction is highly probable and presents an exposure to variations in cash flows that could ultimately affect the profit or loss.

() Fair value hedges

The purpese of the hedge is to hedge the risk of the changes in fair value of underlying ifem (which are on statement of financial position items)
designated as hedged items, by interest rale swaps or currency swaps designated as hedging instruments.

For designated and qualifying fair value hedges, the change in the fair value of a hedging derivative is recognized in the profit of loss in ‘Net
trading and fair value resulf’. Meanwhile, the change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the
canrying value of the hedged item and is also recognized in ‘Net frading and fair value result.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or where the hedge no longer meefs the criteria for hedge accounting, the
hedge relationship is lerminated. For hedged items recorded at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method, the difference between
the carrying value of the hedged item on termination and the face value is amortised over the remaining ferm of the original hedge. If the
hedged flem is derecognized, the unamortized fair value adjusiment is recognized immediately in the profit or loss.

() Cash flow hedge

For designated and qualifying cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is initially recognised directly
in equity in the ‘Cash flow hedge reserve’. The ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised immediately in ‘Net
trading and fair value resulf’

When the hedged cash flow affects the profit or loss, the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recorded in the comesponding income or
expense line of the profit of loss. When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold, terminated, exercised, or when a hedge no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in other comprehensive income at that time remains in other comprehensive
income and is recognised when the hedged forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is no
longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in other comprehensive income is immediately transferred to the profit o
loss.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(9) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a
cumently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to seftle on a net basis, or fo realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netfing agreements, and the related assets and liabilities are
presented gross in the statement of financial position.

(10} Leasing

The determination of whether an amangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arangement and requires an
assessment of whether the fulfiment of the amangement is dependent on the use of a speciiic asset or assets and the amangement conveys a
right to use the asset,

(i} Group as a lessee

Leases which do not transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to cwnership of the leased items are operating
leases, Operafing lease payments are recognised as an expense in the profit or loss on a straight line basis over the lease term. Contingent
renlal payables are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

{iH) Group as a fessor

Finance leases, where the Group transfers substantially all ihe risk and benefils incidental to ownership of the leased ftlem o the lessee, are
included in the statement of financial position in ‘Loans and receivable fo customers’. A receivable is recognized over the leasing period of an
amount equalling the present value of the lease payments using the implicit rate of interest and including any guaranteed residual value. All
income resulting from the receivable is included in ‘Net interest income’ in the statement of comprehensive income.

{11) Recognition of income and expenses

Revenue is recognized to the extent that if is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably
measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

{i) Net interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest bearing financial instruments classified as available-for-sale financial
investments, interest income or expense is recorded at the effective interest rate, which is the rate that discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipls through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorler period, where appropriate, to the net camying amount of
the financial asset or financial liability. The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment options) and includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are an integral parf of the
effective interest rate, but not future credit losses. The carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability is adjusted if the Group revises
its estimates of payments or receipts. The adjusted carrying amount is calculated based on the original effective interest rate and the change in
camying amount is recorded as interest income or expense.

Once the recorded value of a financial asset o a group of similar financial assets has been reduced due to an impairment loss, interestincome
cortinues o be recognized using the original effective interest rate applied to the new camying amount.

Interest related to interest rate derivatives designated as hedging instruments is recognised as interest income and interest expense over the
period of hedging relationship.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continuad)
{ii) Net fee and commission income

The Group earns fee and commission income from a diverse range of services it provides to its customers. Fee income can be divided into the
following two categories:

Fee income eamed from services that are provided over a certain period of lime

Fees earned for the provision of services over a period of time are accrued over that period. These fees include commission and asset
management income, custady and other management and advisory fees. Loan commitment fees for loans thal are likely to be drawn down and
other credif related fees are deferred {together with any incremental cosls) and recognized as an adjustment to the effective interest rate on the

loan. When it is unlikely that a loan will be drown down, the loan commitment fees are recognised over the commitment period on a straight line
basis,

Fee income from providing transaction services

Fees arising from negotiating or participating in the negofiation of a transaction for a third parfy — such as the amangement of the acquisition of
shares or other securities or the purchase or sale of businesses — are recognized on completion of the undertying transaction. Fees or
componenis of fees that are linked to a certain performance are recognized after fulfiling the comresponding criteria. These fees include
underwriting fees, corporate finance fees and brokerage fees.

{ifj) Dividend income

Revenue is recognized when the Group's right to receive the payment is established.

(iv} Net trading and fair vaiue result

Results arising from trading activities include all gains and losses from changes in fair value and related interest income or expense and for
financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading. This includes any ineffectiveness recorded in hedging transactions.

{12) Cash and cash balances

Cash and cash balances as referred to in the cash flow statement comprises cash on hand, cumrent accounts with central banks and amounts
due from banks on demand and ovemight.

(13} Property and equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost (restated for hyperinfiation for assets acquired prior to 31 December 2003 - Note 2.1} excluding the
costs of day-to-day servicing, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected useful life are
accounted for by changing the amortization period and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of property and equipment to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives. Land is not depreciated. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

o Buildings 30 to 50 years (mainly 50 years)
¢ Office equipment 310 10 years
¢ (ther fumiture and equipment 3to 15 years

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carmying amount
of the asset) is recognized in ‘Other operating result' in the statement of comprehensive income in the year the asset is derecognized.

{14) Investment properties

An investment property is measured initially at its cost taking into account any expenditure directly atiributable to the purchase (e.g. fees paid to
the eslate agent, notarial fees, property fransfer taxes and fees).
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

In Group after initial recognition an investment property is measured at cost {cost model} in accordance with IAS 16. Fallowing that, an
investment property is carried at its cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impaiment losses,

Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the cammying
amount of the assef is recognised in the profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

Investment properties that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 are measured in accordance with IFRS 5.
(15) Business combinations and Goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.

Goodwil is initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group’s share in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assels, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash generating units that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, imespective of whether other assets o liabilities of the acquire are assigned to those units.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associaled with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation,
Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit refained.

(16) Intangible assets

Intangible assets include the value of computer software and licenses. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisttion. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated impaiment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assats with finite lives are amortized over the useful
economic life. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful ife are reviewed at least at each
financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful Iffe or the expected pattem of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the
asset are accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Amortization is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of intangible assets to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives as follows:
«  Computer software and licenses 3-5 years

(17) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the camying value may be
impaired, whether there is an indication that a non-financial asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impaiment
festing for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset's recoverable amount. Where the carrying amount of an asset {or
cash-generating unit} exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset (or cash-generating unit) is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

Goodwilf

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators that goodwill is impaired al each reporting date. Goodwil is tested for impaiment,
annually and when circumstances indicate that the camrying value may be impaired. Impairment is delermined for goodwill by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating units, fo which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units is
less than their cammying amount an impaiment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as af 31 December,
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{18) Non-current asssts and disposal groups held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale If they can be sold in their present condition and the sale is highly probable within 12 months
of classification as held for sale. if assets are fo be sold as part of a group that may also contain liabiliies {e.g. a subsidiary) they are referred to
as disposal group held for sale.

Assets classified as held for sale and assets belonging to disposal groups held for sale are reported under the balance sheef line item ‘Assets
held for sale’. Liabilities belonging fo the disposal groups held for sale are presented on the balance sheet under the line ilem Liabilities
associated with assets held for sale’.

Non-curent assets and disposal groups that are classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs o sell. Should the impairment loss in a disposal group exceed the camying amount of the assets that are within the scope of IFRS 5
measurement requirements, there is no specific guidance on how to treat such a difference. Group recognises this difference in line ‘Other
operating result’.

{(18) Financial guarantees

in the ordinary course of business, the Group gives financial guarantees, consisting of letiers of credit, guarantees and acceptances. Financial
guarantees are inftially recognized in the financial statemenis at fair value, in ‘Other liabilities', being the premium received. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group’s liability under each guarantee is measured at the higher of the amortized premium and the best estimate of expenditure
required lo setlle any financial obligation arising as a result of the guarantee.

Any increase in the liability relating to financial guarantees is taken to the statement of comprehensive income in ‘Other operating result’ and in
the statement of financial position in “Provisions”. The premium received is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income in ‘Net fees
and commission income’ on a straight line basis over the life of the guarantee.

Performance guarantees are contracts that provide compensation if another party fails to perform a contractual obligation. Such contracts do
not transfer credit risk. Performance guarantees are initially recognised at their fair value, which is normally evidenced by the amount of fees
received. This amount is amortised on a straight line basis over the life of the confract. At the end of each reporting period, the performance
guarantee confracts are measured at the higher of (i) the unamortised balance of the amount at initial recognition and (ii) the best estimate of
expenditure required to setfle the contract at the end of each reporting period, discounted to present value if the discounting effect is material.

The Group has the contractual right to revert to its cusfomer for recovering amounis paid to setlle the performance guarantee contracts, such
amounts are recognised as loans and receivables.

{20) Employee benefits
(i) Short term service benefits

Short-term employee benefits include wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions. Short-term employee benefits are recognized
as expense when services are rendered.

()} Defined contribution plans

The Bank and the subsidiaries in Romania, in the normal course of business make payments to the Romanian State funds on behalf of its
Romanian employees for pension, health care and unemployment benefit. Al employees of the Bank and of the subsidiaries in Romania are
members and are also legally obliged to make defined contributions (included in the social security contributions) to the Romanian State
pension plan (a State defined confribution plan). All relevant contributions fo the Romanian State pension pian are recognized as an expense in
the profit or loss as incurred. The Bank and the subsidiaries in Romania do not have any further obligations.

The Bank and the subsidiaries in Romania do not operate any independent pension scheme and, consequently, have no obligation in respect
of pensions.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
{iii) Long-term service benefits

The Bank's net obligztion in respect of long-term sarvice benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have eamed in retum for their
service in the current and prior periods. On the basis of the Collecfive Labor Agreement, the Bank and one of its Romanian subsidiaries have a
contractual obligation to make a one-cff payment of up to four (the Bank), respectively two (the subsidiary} gross monthly salaries to retiring
employees on the dale of refiring. The defined benefit obligations are calculated by a qualified actuary taking into account the estimated salary
at the date of retirement and the number of years served by each individual,

{21) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or consfructive) as a resulf of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required fo seftle the obligation and a reliable esfimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the
risks specific fo the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Resiructuring provisions

Restructuring provisions are recognized only when the recognition criteria for provisions are fulfilled. The Group has a constructive obligation
when a detalled formel pian identifies the business or part of the business concemed, the location and number of employees affected, a
detailed estimate of the associated costs, and an appropriate timeline. Furthermore, the employees affected have been notified of the plans
main features.

(22) Taxes
(i) Current fax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the
statement of financial position date.

(i) Deferred fax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the statement of financial position date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:
= where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
s inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, where the fiming of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable fulure.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit wilf be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized except:
»  where the deferred tax asset arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
*  Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax
assets recognized onty to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be ufilized.

The camrying amount of deferred {ax assets is reviewed at each statement of financial position date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to altow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax
assels are reassessed at each statement of financial position date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Deferred tax assets and liabiliies are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is
seftled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacled at the statement of financial position date.

Current tax and deferred tax relating to items recognized directly in equity are also recognized in other comprehensive income and not in the
profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets and defered tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assels against currenttax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable enfity and the same taxation authority.

{23) Fiduciary assets

Assets held in a fiduciary capacity are not reported in the financial statements, as they are not the assets of the Group.

{(24) Dividends on ordinary shares

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when they are approved by the Group’s shareholders.
Interim dividends are deducted from equity when they are declared and no longer at the discretion of the Group.

Dividends for the year that are approved after the statement of financial position date are disclosed as an event after the statement of financial
position date.

{25) Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group:
+ thatengages in business activities from which it may eam revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating
to fransactions with other components of the Group),
»  whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Group's chief operating decision maker fo make decisions about resources to
be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and
¢+ forwhich discrete financial information is available.

An operating segment may engage in business activities for which it has yet to eam revenues, for example, start-up operations may be
operating segments before eaming revenues.

24, Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for the following amended IFRSs which have
been adopted by the Group as of 1 January 2014;
» 1AS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (Revised)
I1AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation (Amended) - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
IFRS 10 Congolidated Financial Statements, IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
IFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities
IAS 39 Financial Instruments {Amended): Recognition and Measurement - Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting
» |AS 36 Impairment of Assets (Amended) - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
¢ |FRIC Interpretation 21: Levies

* = - - L

+ |AS 28Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (Revised)
As a consequence of the new IFRS 11 Joint amangements and IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, 1AS 28 Invesfments in
Associates, has been renamed IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, and describes the application of the equity methed to
invn;eghnents in joint ventures in addition to associates. The effect of applying this revision has no impact on the Group’s financial position or
performance.
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IAS 32 Financial instruments: Presentation (Amended) - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

These amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off. The amendments also clarify the application
of the IAS 32 offsetting criteria to settiement systems (such as central clearing house systems) which apply gross setflement mechanisms
that are not simuitaneous. The effect of applying this revision has no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.

IFRS 10 Consclidated Financial Statements, IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements

IFRS 10 replaces the portion of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that addresses the accounting for consolidated
financial statements. It also addresses the issues raised in SIC-12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. IFRS 10 establishes a single
control model that applies to all entities including special purpose entities. The changes introduced by IFRS 10 will require management to
exercise significant judgment to determine which entities are controlled and therefore are raquired to be consolidated by a parent,
compared with the requirements that were in IAS 27. The effect of applying this revision has no impact on the Group’s financial position or
performance.

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and SIC-13 Jointly-controlied Entities — Non-monetary Contributions by Venturers.
IFRS 11 removes the option to account for jointly controlled entities (JCEs) using proportionate consolidation. Instead, JCEs that meet the
definition of a joint venture must be accounted for using the equity method. The effect of applying this revision has no impact on the Group's
financial position or performance.

IFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities

IFRS 12 includes all of the disclosures that were previously in IAS 27 related to consolidated financial statements, as well as all of the
disclosures that were previously included in IAS 31 and IAS 28. These disclosures relate to an entity's interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associales and structured entities. A number of new disclosures are also required. The effect of applying this revision has no
impact on the Group's financial position or performance, and all required disclosures were included in the financial statements,

IAS 39 Financial Instruments {Amended): Recognition and Measurement - Novation of Derivatives and Confinuation of Hedge
Accounting

Under the amendment there would be no need to disconfinue hedge accounting if a hedging derivative was novated, provided certain

criteria are met. The IASB made a namow-scope amendment to IAS 38 to permit the continuation of hedge accounting in certain

circumstances in which the counterparty to a hedging instrument changes in order to achieve clearing for that instrument, The effect of

applying this revision has no impact on the Group’s financial pesition or performance.

IAS 36 Impairment of Assets (Amended) - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

These amendments remove the unintended consequences of IFRS 13 on the disclosures required under IAS 36. In addition, these
amendments require disclosure of the recoverable amounts for the assets or CGUs for which impairment loss has been recognized or
reversed during the period. The effect of applying this revision has no impact on the Group's financial position or performance.

IFRIC Interpretation 21: Levies

IFRIC 21 s effective in the EU for annual periods beginning on or after 17 June 2014, however, earlier application is permitted so EU
companies can adopt in accordance with the IASB effective date (1 January 2014).

The Interpretations Committee was asked to consider how an entity should account for liabilities fo pay levies imposed by governments,
other than income taxes, in its financial statements. This Interpretation is an interpretation of 1AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Libilities and
Contingent Assets. IAS 37 sets out criteria for the recognition of a liability, one of which is the requirement for the antity to have a present
obligation as a result of a past event (known as an obligating event). The Interpretation clarifies that the obligating event that gives rise to a
liability to pay @ levy is the activity described in the relevant legislation that triggers the payment of the levy. The effect of applying this
revision has no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.
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25.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted

IAS 16 Property, Plant & Equipment and |AS 38 Intangible assets (Amendment): Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortization

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. This amendment clarifies the principle in IAS 16
Property, Ptant and Equipment and IAS 38 Infangible Assets that revenue reflects a pattem of economic benefits that are generated from
aperating a business (of which the asset is part} rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through use of the asset. As a result,
the rafic of revenue generaled o total revenue expected to be generated cannot be used fo depreciate property, plant and equipment and
may only be used in very limited circumstances 1o amorfize inlangible assets. The Group is in process of assessing the impact of this
amendment in the financial position or performance of the Group.

IAS 19 Employee benefits {Amended): Employee Contributions

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2015, however, earlier application is permitted so EU
companies can adopl in accordance with the IASB effective date (1 July 2014). The amendment applies fo contributions from employees or
third parties to defined benefit plans. The cbjective of the amendment is o simplify the accounting for contributions that are independent of
the number of years of employee service, for example, employee coniributions that are calculated according to a fixed percentage of salary.
The Group is in process of assessing the impact of this amendment in the financial position or performance of the Group.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Classification and measurement

The standard is applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early adoption permitted. The final phase of IFRS 9
refiects all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all
previous versions of IFRS 9. The standard infroduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge
accounting. The standard has not yet been endorsed by the EU. The Group is in process of assessing the impact of this amendment in the
financial position or performance of the Group.

IFRS 11 Joint arrangements (Amendment): Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on o after 1 January 2016. IFRS 11 addresses the accounting for interests in
joint ventures and joint operations. The amendment adds new guidance on how to account for the acquisition of an interest in a joint
operation that constitutes a business in accordance with IFRS and specifies the appropriate accounting treatment for such acquisitions. The
amendment has not yet been endorsed by the EU. The Group is in process of assessing the impact of this amendment in the financial
position or performance of the Group.

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The IASB has a project to consider the broad issues of
rale regulation and plans to publish a Discussion Paper on this subject in 2014. Pending the outcome of this comprehensive Rate-regulated
Activities project, the IASB decided to develop IFRS 14 as an inferim measure. IFRS 14 permits first-ime adopters to continue to recognise
amounts related to rate regulation in accordance with their previous GAAP requirements when they adopt IFRS. However, to enhance
comparability with entities that already apply IFRS and do not recognise such amounts, the standard requires that the effect of rate
regulation must be presented separately from other items. An entity that already presents IFRS financial statements is not eligible to apply
the standard. This standard has not yet been endorsed by the EU. The Group is in process of assessing the impact of this amendment in
the financial position or performance of the Group.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. IFRS 15 establishes a five-step model that will apply fo
revenue eamed from a contract with a customer (with limited exceptions), regardless of the type of revenue transaction or the industry. The
standard’s requirements will also apply to the recognition and measurement of gains and losses o the sale of some non-financial assets
that are not an output of the entity’s ordinary activities (.9., sales of property, plant and equipment or inangibles). Extensive disclosures wil
be required, including disaggregation of total revenue; information about performance obligations; changes in contract asset and liability
account balances between periods and key judgments and estimates. This standard has not yet been endorsed by the EU. The Group is in
process of assessing the impact of this amendment in the financial position or performance of the Group.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements {amended)

The amendment is effective from 1 January 2016. This amendment will allow entities to use the equity method to account for investments in
subsidiaries, jeint ventures and associates in their separate financial statements and will help some jurisdiclions move to IFRS for separate
financial statements, reducing compliance costs without reducing the information available fo investors This standard has nof yet been
endorsed by the EU. The Group is in process of assessing the impact of this amendment in the financial position or performance of the
Group.

Amendment in IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures: Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and those in IAS 28, in dealing with the
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The main censequence of the amendments is that a full
gain or loss is recognized when a fransaction involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A pariial gain or loss is
recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary. The
amendments will be effective from annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2016. This standard has not yet been endorsed by
the EU. The Group is in process of assessing the impact of this amendment in the financial position or performance of the Group.

The IASB has issued the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle, which is a collection of amendments fo IFRSs. All amendments
are effective in the EU for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2015, however, earlier application is permitted so EU companies can
adopt in accordance with the JASB effective date (1 July 2014).

The Group is in process of assessing the impact of this amendment in the financial position or performance of the Group.

+  [FRS 2 Share-based Payment: This improvement amends the definitions of 'vesting condition' and 'market condition’ and adds
definitions for ‘performance condition’ and 'service condifion’ (which were previously part of the definition of 'vesting condition’).

¢  IFRS 3 Business combinafions: This improvement clarifies that contingent consideration in a business acquisition that is not
classified as equity is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss whether or not it falls within the scope of IFRS
9 Financial Instruments.

»  IFRS 8 Operating Segments: This improvement requires an entity to disclose the judgments made by management in
applying the aggregation criteria fo operating segments and clarifies that an entity shall only provide reconciliations of the total
of the reportable segments’ assets to the entity's assets if the segment assets are reporied regularly.

o  IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement: This improvement in the Basis of Conclusion of IFRS 13 clarifies that issuing IFRS 13 and
amending IFRS 9 and IAS 39 did not remove the ability to measure shori-term receivables and payables with no stated inferest
rate at their invoice amounts without discounting if the effect of not discounting is immaterial,

s  |AS 16 Property Pant & Equipment: The amendment clarifies that when an item of property, plant and equipment is
revalued, the gross camying amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with the revaluation of the carrying amount.

o |AS 24 Related Party Disclosures: The amendment clarifies that an entity providing key management personnel services to
the reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting entity is a related pary of the reporting entity.

¢ |AS 38Intangible Assets: The amendment clarifies that when an intangible asset is revalued the gross camying amount is
adjusted in a manner that is consistent with the revaluation of the camying amount.

The IASB has issued the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011 — 2013 Cycle, which is a collection of amendments to IFRSs. The Group is in
process of assessing the impact of this amendment in the financial position or performance of the Group.

+  IFRS 3 Business Combinations: This improvement clarifies that IFRS 3 excludes from its scope the accounting for the
formation of a joint arrangement in the financial statements of the joint amangement itsef.

+  IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement: This improvement clarifies that the scope of the portfolio exception defined in paragraph 52
of IFRS 13 includes all contracts accounted for within the scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognifion and
Measurement or IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, regardiess of whether they meet the definition of financial assets or financial
liabilities as defined in IAS 32 Financial Instruments; Presentation.

= |AS 40 investment Properties: This improvement clarifies that determining whether a specific transaction meets the definiion
of both a busingss combination as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations and invesiment property as defined in [AS 40
Investment Property requires the separate application of both standards independently of each other.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

The I1ASB has issued the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle, which is a collection of amendments to IFRSs. The amendments
are effective for annual pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2016. These annual improvements have not yel been endorsed by the EU. The
Group is in process of assessing the impact of this amendment in the financial pesition or performance of the Group.

IFRS 5 Non-current Asssts Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations: The amendment clarifies that changing from one
of the disposal methods to the ather (through sale or through distribution to the owners} should not be considered fo be a new
plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan. There is therefore no interruption of the application of the
requirements in IFRS 5. The amendment also clarifies that changing the disposal method does not change the date of
classification.

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: The amendment clarifies that a servicing contract that includes a fee can
conslitute continuing involvement in a financial assel. Also, the amendment clarifies that the IFRS 7 disclosures relating to the
offsetfing of financial assets and financial liabilities are nof required in the condensed interim financial report.

IAS 19 Employee Benefits: The amendment clarifies that market depth of high quality corporate bonds is assessed based on
the currency in which the obligation is denominated, rather than the country where the obligation is located. When there is no
deep market for high quality corporate bends in that cumency, government bond rates must be used.

IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting: The amendment clarifies that the required interim disclosures must either be in the
inferim financial statements or incorporated by cross-reference between the interim financial statements and wherever they are
included within the greater interim financial report (e.g., in the management commentary or risk report). The Board spacified
that the other information within the interim financial report must be available to users on the same terms as the interim financial
slatements and at the same time. If users do not have access to the other information in this manner, then the interim financial
report is incomplete.

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and 1AS 28: Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception (Amendments)

The amendments address three issues arising in practice in the application of the investment entities consolidation exception.
The amendments are effective for annual pariods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The amendments clarify thal the
exemption from presenting consolidated financial statements applies to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment
entity, when the investment entity measures all of its subsidiaries at fair value. Also, the amendments clarify that only a
subsidiary that is not an investment entily itself and provides support services to the investment enfity is consolidated. All other
subsidiaries of an investment entity are measured at fair value. Finally, the amendments fo IAS 28 Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures allow the investor, when applying the equity method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by the
investment entity associate or joint venture to its interests in subsidiaries. These amendments have not yet been endorsed by
the EU. The Group is in process of assessing the impact of this amendment in the financial position or performance of the
Group.

IAS 1: Disclosure Initiative (Amendment)

The amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements further encourage companies to apply professional judgment
in determining what information to disclose and how to structure it in their financial statements. The amendments are effective
for annual perieds beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The namow-focus amendments to IAS clarify, rather than significantly
change, exisling 1AS 1 requirements. The amendments relate fo materiality, order of the notes, subtolals and disaggregation,
accounting policies and presentation of items of other comprehensive income (OCI) arising from equity accounted Investments.
These amendments have nol yet been endorsed by the EU. The Group is in process of assessing the impact of this
amendment in the financial position or performance of the Group.
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3, NETINTEREST INCOME

Group Bank

In RON thousands 2M3 2014 013 2014

Interest Income ]

_ Financial assets held for trading e o E,_fii_i_'ﬁ_:* % 14«,295” e o 11.937;_
Avallable-for-sale financial assets = 215,446 _ ~“25‘38‘.}'54 202,350 == w226‘_,w2§3'w
__Loans and rec receiv ables 3,383,800 2,526,828 3,330,484 2,485257
" Held- -to-maturity inv v estments 645,817 536:_0_62 558,534 ] 465,133
Derivaliv es - Hedge accounting, interest rata risk - o dortes ?63,:‘_‘19 301,586_ . _183,11'9__
Other assets T ' ' ) 54,00 27801 54,757 27,487

Total interest Income 4,612,467 3,536,259 4,453,211 3,378,210

Interest expenses :

Financial liabifitias hetd for trading ) — _ —_ : : : _(3.'111) (11 201)° - _(B.}?ﬁ)_
Financlal Ilabflltias measureq at jmomsgd cost . . _ (!:_'{85.?95) - (1 _194 525) _(1,709.626) (1.115_:.904)_
Derivatlvss Hedgjccwntmg, intarest rate nsk L _ (44,1551 3 (35._5?38) (44,155) - m(35.55§!__
Other liabllities (4,443): (4,856) {4,553) (4,842)

Total interest expense (1,836,914) (1,245,840 (1,758,334) {1,163,004)

Net interest income 2,775,553 2,283,419 2,604,877 2,215,176

“Interest income - Derivafives — Hedge accounting, interest rate risk” and “Interest expenses - Derivatives — Hedge accounting, inferest rate
risk” include the amounts related to those derivatives classified in the category *hedge accounting” which cover inferest rate risk.

The amounts refated to those derivatives classified in the category *held for trading” which are hedging instruments from an economic bui not
accounting point of view are reported as interest income and expenses, to present correct interest income and expenses from the financial
instruments that are hedged. These amounts are included as a par of the items “Interest income- Financial assets held for frading” and “Interest

expenses- Financial liabilities held for trading”.

In the interest income from loans and receivables position is included also interest income from impaired loans in amount of RON 391,506
thousands (2013: RON 628,544 thousands) Group and RON 345,453 thousands (2013: RON 540,032 thousands) Bank. Due to sales of these
assels in 2014 {see note: 22) and decrease in exposure resulting from increase in allowancas for loans and receivable to customers (note: 22)

this part of interest income significantly decreased.

4. NET FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME

Group Bank
In RON thousands 2013 2014 2013 2014
Securities 9,944 4,016 8,956 4,018
Securitles Transfer orders 9,956 TaeT 3,056 4,06
__ Securtles Other e @ . -
Clearing and seftlemant T e 7 443 “(11,888) {9.443) 10,944
Asset management : 11,916 1542 " i3am 16,185 -
Custody - v FE 11,816 15,442 12,444 16,185
Paymentservices T ommemocrmoom e - 15,005 50,378 15081 62,180
TPayment services - Card business .~ T T Tt 3236 81,430 73,577 81,017
Pay ment serv Ices - Others ) —_— R £ " {21,202) 67,604) (15-357)
Customer resources distributed but not managed 274,562 AthaE e
Insurance products - B == ‘ '39,562 30,136 31,304 27, 853
Building saciety brokerage (7} —— — e B R T T " 221
Farreign exchange transactians 10,000 T 40,73 10,000 TT10,738
___other (i) i —— ————_= = e 325111 338253 @511 T Ade,788
"Lending business " ] s " 12n,5v3 0a 381 131,754 ThtEaE
Loan commitments given, Loan commitments recelved 18,710 15,754 18,251 15,754
Guergntess given, Guarantees raceived — 20,630 22,157 20,930 22242
__“Olher fending busineussjﬂ)_ ____ _.__., = ’ —_— e —— T a2083 42,450 T 83,783 42,843
Other e ) - - - T T T T Mg aes 145,354 T trnees 133,688
Net Commisslon income 74:,2?1'_ T84 TIE ..5'] [ GRS B2H
Fee and commission Incame 963,008 804,085 913,809 849,908
“Fés and commission expense i s — (214,845) (183, 724) {195,849) (164,171)
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4. NET FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME (continued)

fi) Building society brokerage includes fees from intermediation of BCR Banca pentru Locuinte products and are eliminated at Group
level;
(il Other customer resources distributed but not managed includes fees from payment orders from customers, cash transferred and

distribution of asset management products;

(i) Other lending business include commissions eamed as the services as provided (e.g. fees for servicing a loan), or eamed on a

execution of a significant act {e.g. syndicated loans).

Net commission income decreased on the back of lower fees from loan management, current accounts and further impacted by market in
transaction banking. Loan management fee decreased due to high prepayments fees in 2013, While cumrent accounts were hit by the change in
the regulation for fees related fo deposits. Starting July 2014 no maintenance fees were charged for accounts linked to deposits.

5. DIVIDEND INCOME

Group Bank
In RON thousands 2013 2014 M3 2014
Financial assels held for tradmg 35 24_9 _ ) 248
Financial assels  designated at a’(falrvaluelhrough pmfrtorloss e 1,358 L7 R ﬁ 340
Avalable for-sale financial asgéls_- e _“_._ ———— mS,é;B' W '2,0iS_ _- __— 5540 - 2.013 ,.
Dividend income from equﬂy investments { (‘) e 345 B Y Y
Dividend income 10,385 2,604 10,385 26,134

{i Dividends from equity investments in 2014 were received from BCR Banca pentru Locuinte (and efiminated at group level). In 2013,
dividends were received from Fondul de Garantare a Creditului Rural, prior the consolidation of this entiy.

6. NET TRADING AND FAIR VALUE RESULT

Group Bank

in RON thousands 2013 2014 2013 2014
Net Trading result 439,299 360,674 438,750 358,407

Securiies and derlvatives frading 86583 98,005 86,582 98,805
_ Foreign exchange transactions () 32,717 261,768 352,168 260,502
"Gains or losses on financial assets and liabil ities d d;slgnated at fair value mroumr N AT — 1 2007 T8
"Gain / (loss) from meastrement / sale of financial assets designated for 147 vais through profitor i~~~ 2,007 81 2,007 K
Total net trading and fair value result 441,306 360,835 440,751 358,563

{i) Net exchange gains include gains and losses mainly from money market instruments and aiso from currency swaps, spot and forward

contracts.

Net trading result includes the hedge inefficiency of RON (6,359) thousands in 2014.

7. RENTAL INCOME FROM INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND OTHER OPERATING LEASES

Group Bank
in RON thousands 2013 2004 2013 2014
Inv estment property 321 2,029 - -
‘Operating leases N e — — " 18,352 22,204 7,601 4,260
Total 21,623 24.2%3 1,601 4,280

Operating leases are mainly from car fleels rentals and other buildings.
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8. GENERAL ADMIN/STRATIVE EXPENSES

Group Bank
In RON thousands 2013 2014 2013 2014
Personnel expenses (761,341): ) {658,442) (691,638) (597 183)
Other adminlstrative expenses (647,476) :" (640 775) — .(61 5_5_1 6} = 'ae (776 830)'
Depreciation and amortisation ) . 218,807 (175,894} (¥64,803) T(116,750)
Total (1,627.724)' (1,474,911) {1,672.056) (1,493,800)
Personnal expenseas
31.12.2013 31.12.2014 | 31.12.213 31.42.2014
Wages and =alaries (569.0'{'9{ - ‘(5207.050]‘ (616,847) (473.734)
o 6umpulsory soclal sm e o T‘I—éﬁl'ﬁ)- : (180 197) ?45;6'32)" . (117.840)
Long-term employ ee provislons (4,897). ] ?‘—1».255 (4,7_53] = 14 29&;
""" Other personnel expenses o - R @3y 7 (Z2.ds0) ~ 26,408) (19,907
Total {761,341) (B58,442) . (691,638 (597,183)
Other administrative axp
31.12.2013 31 12.2014 31.12.2013 31.12.2014
" Payments into deposit insurance fund 1179.196) 120,643) (114,754} (114,400}
IT expanses = (147,145) (ds0. 1785 (#42,605) (188828
Expenses for office space o T e (4s0a0) T (JaaSBe) T R0A608) T @B
Office operating expenses sl e {84,672) T (78,329) (122.006)  (114,718)
Advertising / marketing - (34,652 (29,028) @o.77a) | (38,237)
'I:.agal and consulting costs —= S, B ) “ssA08) LAY T T {EadEe
Sundry administrative expenses T T TTiAD, 118y C [43,186) T (30,457) (34,738)
Total {647,4786). (640,775) . {815,516). (776,880}
Depreclation and amortisation
31.42.7013 A 31122003 AR
Software and other intengibla assets (80,971) {70,291} {77,489} (66,250}
Real sstate used by the Group /Banca (50,270) (49,968) (20,619} (19 894)
T Tinvestment Properties (7.818) (11,145 -
b Amortisaﬂon of customer r‘fljt_ngnships —— h . '(4,788) (2,388) R
Gffice fumiture and equipment and sundry property and squipment ——— (75.062)" ~  (41,%08) " (68, 754) ‘(3_3?55i)~
Total (218,507) {175,654} {164,902} (119,737)

Included in wages and salaries and related contributions at 31 December 2014 are restructuring costs in amount of RON 13,926 thousands

(see Note 31).

Long term employee provisions are described in Note 31, Compulsory social security includes mainly state contributions for pensions. Private

contributions for pensions are included in other personnel expenses.

The number of Own employees of the Bank at 31 December 2014 was 6,215 employees (31 December 2013 was 6,128 employees).

The number of the Own employees of the Group at 31 December 2014 was 7,054 employees (31 December 2013 was 6,984 employess).

The key management remuneration expenses during 2014 were of RON 11,806 thousands (2013: RON 15,421 thousands).

in RON thousands 2013 2014
[Gross amount) (Empley e {Gross amaunt) (Employr
taxes) taxes)
Short-term employ ee benefits 14,888 1,673 11,808 1,297

Termination benafits
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8 GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES {(continued)

Personnel expenses were reduced mainly due to decrease of number of employees during 2013, Below find comparisen of the average
number of own employees during the financial year (weighted according to the level of employment):

2013 2014
Damestic 7,331 6,997
Banca Comerciala Romana 6,446 8,227
BCR Leaging [FN SA — 07 84
BCR Pensli, Socletate de Administrare a Fondurllor de Pensil Private SA 47 = a3
BCR Banca pentru Laculnte SA 77 e 1
SuportCnlet:tSRL . . e T - - A
"BCR Procesars SRL ofF = e 7 S -
"BCR Real Eatate Management SRL - T
BCR Flaet Management SRL e ——— —————
BCR Partener Mobil SRL S ks e e
"BER Payments SPV T = e
fbroad . 83 69
BCR Chiginau SA 83 (]
Total 7,414 7,068

9. GAINS/LOSSES FROM FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES NOT MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Group Bank
In ROK thousands 2013 2014 2013 2014
?:aTn’TIoas) from sale of financial assels available for sale 14,067 8,201 14,087 8,201
“Eain {loss) Trom sale of Toans and receivanlas T e
“BGan 7 {loss) from repurchase of liabilities measured at amartised cost ~ e CEAEE) R T T
Told 14,067 8,058 14,067 8,058

The carrying amount of invesiments in equity instruments measured at cost that were sold during the period was RON 61,514 thousands. The
resulting gain on sale was RON 8,526 thousands.

10. NET IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS NOT MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Group Bank
in RON thousands 2013 2014 2013 2014
_Loans and raceivables = {2,107 ,546) (4440,001)  (1,825528) (3,815,148}
Allocation to risk provisions Tor Ioans and recewables I - ¥ 44)) (5384474 140862 420) | {4,741.276)
" Release of r5Kk provIsions Tor foans and receiv ables — = EEMEE T 1,065,308 2,503,431 952,636
" "Direct wiite-off s of ians and receiv ables ] - (504 850)  (280B43) T (a7Ba27)
" Recoveries on wrilten-off loans and recewables T T T Fazaes . 386,015 145708 STE
Total (2,107,548)  (4,440,001)  (1,925,526) {3,815,146)

Net charge of impaiments on financial assets not measured at fair value through profit and loss increased by 110.7% to RON 4,440.0 million in
2014, versus RON 2,107.6 million in 2013, on the back of accelerated non-performing loans sales strategy, current recoveries from portfolio
sales, write-offs and implementafion of new risk parameters.

NPL (non performing loans}) ratio at 25.7%, as of 31 December 2014, significantly decreased versus 29.2% as of 31 December 2013 primarily
driven by non performing loans porffolio sales and write-offs. (See also note 22).

The decrease in non performing loans portfolio and the increase in related provisions as mentioned above led to an increase in NPL coverage
ratio at 75.8%, significantly above 65.8% as of December 2013.

Non-parforming loans include non-performing exposure to defaulted customers, impaired customers and non-performing forbome exposures.
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11. OTHER OPERATING RESULT

Group Bank
in RON thousands 2013 2014 2013 2014
Result from real estates/mov alble/properties/software (j) {14,538): (350,408) - (18.119) (84,461)
Aligcationirelease of other provisions (e Not 31y~ ~ —C e 7584 (41,508 8038~ {A1648)
Allgcation/release of provislons for commitments and guaraniees given (see Nole 31) (12487 T (17,786) (124,466) {7,764
Ofther taxes = = T o%agn)  @nsee) | @iel) . (4.218)
“Impairment of goodwil T T T T T 4,125 I S = )
Resulf from other operating expensesfincameqj T T 7T TS T T g ey U AR T T(aTR938) (708,535
Total (212,689) ___ (520,355) (512,645) (857,625}

{i} Resultfrom real eslate /movablefpropertiesisoftware includes:
Impaiment of repossessed assets in amount of RON 41,001 thousands;
Impaiment of customer relationship in BCR Pensii in amount of RON 84,913 thousands;
Impaiment of iand concessions in BCR Real Estate Management in amount of RON 83,695 thousands;
Write-off of software in amount of 9,180 thousands RON;
Impaiment of assets held for sale in amount of RON 104,493 thousands for the Group and RON 22,205 thousands for the
Bank. Details ara presented in Note 28.
(i) Results from operaling expensesfincome includes impairment of subsidiaries in amount of RON 642,003 thousands (31 December
2013: RON 370,793 thousands) which is eliminated at Group level. Details are presented in Note 29,

12, TAXES ON INCOME

Taxes on income are made up of current taxes on income calculated in each of the Group companies based on the results reported for tax
purposes, corrections to taxes on income for previous years, and the change in deferred taxes.

Group Bank
in RON thousands 2013 20t4 2013 2014
Cument tax expense / Income (9,359) {17.418)
Deferred 1ax expense / income 541,306 261,986 550,817 238,062
Total 531,947 243,848 559,817 238,962

The following table reconciles the income taxes reported in the income statement to the pre-tax profitfoss mutiplied by the nominal Romanian
tax rate.

Group Bank
in RON thousands 2013 2014 2013 2014
Fre-iax profitioss 6,769 (3,057, 868) (224,290 (2,866,530)
Income tex expense {or the financial y ear ai ihe domesiic statutory tax rats (16%) C T (10.683) GBES0. 356,686 458,965
impact of tax-exempt earnings of thvestments and other fax-cxam pt Ncome - 74,527 20170 45,949 3,887
“Tax Increases due to non-deductibie expenses, addional business tax and Similar slemants T TT@aon) . T (280,788) T (s2.8ds) (68,578)
‘One-off release of ioan loss risk provision related derarred tax labImEs "7 T'B60,807 == 560,807 .
Net Impact of non-valued fiscal losses for the year S ) 650) HSTSMT
Cument periads PIL W adjustments (f rom Local GAAP 1o IFRS) T i = =
Tax incoma not atributable to the reporting period . =0T (18,4B1) " (i5,428)
fax {exp ) / release reported [n the income statement 531,947 243,848 559,817 238,962
The sffective tax rate T96.70% {8.03)% {249.80)% {8.33)%

In 2014, taking into consideration the past performance and the last 5 years back-testing of actual ve. budgeted figures, the Group undertook a
more conservative approach and reduced the camying amount of deferred tax assets by RON 119,884 thousands driven by:
a)  usage of fiscal profit forecasts that are highly probable to occur; and
b)  limit the "look out" period to 5 years and not 7 years as provided by local legislation (foreseeable future for estimating prabable outcome
is 5 years).

According to the Article 193, letter a), point 1 of the Law 571/2003 (Tax Code), inserled by point 6 of Emergency Ordinance no. 125/2011, the
posttive differences resulted from the higher statutory loan impairment allowances compared to the IFRS loan impairment allowances should be
considered as a reserve taxable upon its change of destination (covering accounting losses, distribution of dividends, etc.).
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12.  TAXES ON INCOME (continued)

Consequently, the deferred tax liability previously recognized on the difference between statutory loan loss provisions and the IFRS provisions
should be reversed, and the tax consequences shouid be recognized only when there is a formal decision to change the destination of the
reserves.

However, the fiscal guide related o IFRS implementation which have provided further clarification with respect to the interpretation of the

Emergency Ordinance 125/2011 and the implementation norms for applying the related changes to the Tax Code has been published in June
2013, As a consequence the related defermed tax liability in amount of RON 560 million has been released in 2013.

Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive income:

Group

2013 2014
in RON thousands Beforeta o benet  NetoMax  Beforstax g Netoftax
amount amount amount amount
Available for sale-reserve (including curmency translation) 32,784 (5,245) 27,539 ) 400,178 83,:2) 336,264
Cash flow hedge-reserve (including currency translation) 4,350 {698} 3,654 247 @8 200
Remeasuremant of net gain (josses} on benefit plans T 78,367 (14,438) 63951 ~ 7B387 {12,405) 65,802
Currency translation T - . 748 B 7T {15,118} . {15,119)
Other comprehansive income 116,268 (20,377) 15,582 455,881 {78,704} 250,067
Bank

2013 2014
in RON thousands Boforedax  _  penet  NOFOFtax  Beforatax Taxbenefit  NotoHm
amount amount amount amount
Av ailable for sale-reserve (including currency transtation) 22,096 (3,536) 18,580 346,031 (55,364) 280,667
Cash flow hedge-reserve (inciuding cuirency transiation) =" 4,380 (696) 3,664 2417 {387) 2,030
"Remeasurement of net gan (losses) on benefi pians = ” 60,225 (14,438) 75,760 78477 (12,556) (35)
Other comprehensive income 118,671 {18,668) B, N3 26028 B 407} 252 5li2

According to the five-years budgets approved, management esfimates that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and the camy forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Fiscal loss for which deferred tax asset (DTA) was recognized:

in RON thousands 0 301 201 DTA
Fiscal Lass L. 962 w2 16A21___ 363968
Fisal Lass expiery 201 2020 2021

Fiscal loss for which deferred tax asset was not recognized:

in RON thousands M 2012 Total
Fiscal Loss 232278 516,595 749273
Fiscal Loss expiery 204 209

13. DIVIDENDS PAID

Dividends pafd to non-controlling interest in 2014 were in amount of RON 5,882 thousands.
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14. CASH AND CASH BALANCES

Group Bank
in RON thousands 2013 2014 013 2014
Cash on hand 1,320,205 1,562,948 1,311,728 1,554,120
‘Cash balances at central banks . e | T T T 0440 e, 4dddes T TEMIZER T 6 376,567
Other demand depaosits — T 231,30 DT T 213 21738
Total cash and cash balances 9,586,006 - 8,235,167 9,545,662 8,158,441

The current accounts held by the Bank with National Bank of Romania are for

compliance with the minimum reserve requirements. Mandatory

reserve rates were for RON 10% (December 2013: 15%) and for foreign currencies 14% (December 2013: 20%).

The mandatory minimum reserve level calculated for 31 December 2014 is EUR 546,440 thousands and RON 2,602,161 thousands (31

December 2013 is EUR 760,530 thousands and RON 4,070,550 thousands).

15. DERIVATIVES - HELD FOR TRADING

Group
2013 M4
Noticnal amount F.ai.r e - Notional amount -F.ni; us
Positive  Negative Paositive Negative
in RON thousands
Derivatives held for trading
__Intarest rate instruments and related derivatives 3,190,203 35,102 45,782 ; 2,693 825 o237 47,976
Equlty instruments and related derivatives = §74,042 7,258 568 Al MG saEE =ty W = T i pas |
Fore|gn exchange tradlng and retated deriv atives il 3,600,640 T g.443 19,134 2,810,705 36,478 17,056
_Commorites and roted defvatves T BT T ST em s m !
Qther Derlvatives
Intsrest rate mstmments and related derivatives 30,91 1,068 2,386
" Foreign exchange trading and related derivaiives o . - 367,343 13,675 1,351
Total derivatives held for trading 7,391,793 42,781 6, D6 Rdmd 357 154, 97E LB e
Bank
213 2014
Notlonal amount F?i_r e Notional amount _Ifair e
Positive Negative Posifive Negative
in RON thousands
Derivatives held for trading
Interest rata |nstmmenls and related dan\ratrves 2,976,038 33,267 46,359 2 693,825 102,387 47,976
" Equity instruments and related derlv atives - ooz Tz e mes3st s s
Foreign exchange trading and related derivatives 3,600,640 6443 19,134 T 2810705 35478 17,056
_ Commodties and related derivatives == T mge - - TTaamT T Tm T o
Other Derivatives
_Interest rate mstmmanis and related derivatives 30,991 1,088 2,386
" Forelgn exchange trading and related derivatives - - = 367,343 13,675 1,351
Total derivatives held for trading 7,180,628 40,846 LA ﬁ.:ﬂ_—E._!IE 154,878 i
16. OTHER TRADING ASSETS
Group Bank
In RON thousands 2013 204 2013 204
(Equity instruments (i} R R e 4475 4,299 4475 42e9
Dabt gecurities e e T 336,342 ZM)554 326,342 211554
General govemments () 326342 21554 32"5:'"34"5‘ ST TaEe”
Financial agsats held for trading 330,817 215,853 330,877 215,853

(i) Equity investments include: shares issued by Erste Bank and also
(i Debt securities include: include treasury bills denominated in RON,

shares quoted to Bucharest Stock Exchange;
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17.  FINANCIAL ASSETS - AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Group Bank
in RON thousands 2013 204 2013 2044
Eguity instrumants (1) 12,265 L 4,229 12,265 4,22%
Dabt securitles _ e — 22,086 .., 20,358 22,086 20,358
General governments (il . D 22086 20,358 22,086 20,358
Total financial assats designated at falr value through proflt or loss 34,351 24,587 34,351 24,587

{i) Equityinvestments include: shares issued by Financial Investiment Companies (SIFs);
{i) Debt securities issued by municipalifies.

The financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss form parts of a group of financial instruments that together are managed ona
fair value basis.

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS - AVAILABLE FOR SALE

Group Bank
fn RON thousands 2013 2014 2013 2014
Equity Instruments (i) /M. MR 29,874 137,284
Dbt securites (i) = = TTTEAmW001 . 7507289 4423308 6,498,140
~“General goverments " Rl e ——— 563,487 T7EB0ZSTe T T C4ATEE U GAGR TN
" Credit instiutions T e - 16,004 41T =
Tatal available-for-sale financial assets 5,219,762 7,655,061 4,453,260 6,635,423

(i) Equity instruments include investments in Financial Investment Companies (*SIF's") shares quoted on Bucharest Stock Exchange
and interational markets.

(i} Debt securities include: include treasury bills denominated in RON and foreign currencies, state bonds quoted on Bucharest Stock
Exchange and bonds issued by municipalities.

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS - HELD TO MATURITY

Group Bank
In RON thousands 2013 2014 2013 2014
_Dabt securities . e ool )
General gov emmants 10,222,051 9,565,112 9,009,929 8,420,417
“Cradi institutions e e e S 205 S = — ——— = .
Total financlal assets held to maturity 10,235,256 . 9,578,178 9,009,938 5,429, 417

The financial investments held-to-maturity includes Romanian Government bonds, being eligible assets with National Bank of Romania.

On 1 November 2009, the Bank reclassified the ISIN RO0717DBN038 from 'Available-for-Sale' to "Held-to-Maturity' category’. Available-for-sale
reserve at the time of reclassification was RON 63 million, which is amortized through profit or loss over the remaining maturity of the
instrument using the effective inferest rate. At 31 December 2014, the balance of available-for-sale reserve related to this instrument is RON
23,511 thousands (2013: RON 31,623 thousands).

Carrying

in RON thousands amount Fair value
Financial assets previously reclassified as at 31 December 2014 332,731 383,472
Financial assets previously reclassified as at 31 December 2013 e R T 324,473 T 373,454
Financial assets previously reclassified as at 31 December 2012 316,114 349,988
N.Fi"_?f'ﬂﬁ'" effgwt_s R'E_",l?ﬂsn'!w Eclgiiif igd | as at §1£_ecember 2011 307,806 333,686
in RON thousands 2013 2014
Galn/{Lpss) recorded in other comprehensive income 33,450 43,468
_Galn/(Loss) recorded in profit orloss 17,084 17,468

3



BCRS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated and Bank

for the year ended 31 December 2014

20. SECURITIES

Group
Financlal assats
Securities Flnm’:l:l h::l;::l hafd designated at fair valua Avallable-for-sale financial Hell:-to-mnurlly Totat
9 through profit and loss

in RON thousands M3 2014 2013 2014 2013 A4 2013 24 2013 2014

Bonds and other Interest-bearing sacurities 326,342] 211,554 22,087 20,358 5480091 7.507,529 10,235,256, 9,578,178 15,783,776 17,317,618
Listed 146,196 42,408 - 22,087 20,358 3194904 5586190 9037282 6,806,761 12,400,471 14,435,724
Unlisted B 160,144 168,146 B 1,985,987 1,941,333 1,197,974 THAIS 3,363,305 2,801,854

Equity related securities 4,475, 4299 12,264 4,228 IETT 141,532 . - 56410 156,059
Listed 4,475 4,200 12,284° 4,228 12,696 110!09_8 ! - 35425 11_8,525

" Unlisted - T h - 20,985 57,434 = NwE A

Total 330,817 215,853 34,351 24,587 5,219,762 7,855,661 'IE:‘EE 1= ﬂ:Tﬁ 15,800, THE TTATLATT

Bank
Financial assets hold  Tnanclal assets o porssie financial  Held-to-maturity
Securitles for trading deslgnsted at fair value assats Investments Total
through arofit and loss

In RON thousands 2013 2014 2013 24 2013 2014 213 2014 2013 2014

Bonds and other interest-bearing securltias 326,342 211,554 22,087 2,359 4,423,386 6,498,138 9,009,939 8429417 13,784,754 15,159,469
Listed 146,198 42,408 22,087 20,059  2,455008°  4,575.060 7,884,020 _7,74{!.141 10,487,313 12,381,968
Unifsted 180,144 189,148 T TE 1928079 1,15919 685276 3204441  2,777.50

Equity related securities 4,475 4,259 12,264 4,228 29.874 137, 2 AEHID B5A11
Listed 4,475 4,298 12,284 4.22_5 9,206 110,058 - - 25,945 118,625
Uriisted . ; = 2668 27,188 - . 20,868 27,186

Total 330,817 215,853 34,351 24,587 4,453,260  6,63f 421 O0eE RN mdAd a1 TR 1RSI0

21. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES TO CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

2013 Group
Total assets Collective

in RON thousands (aross carring allowance Carrying amount

amgunt)

Loans and receivables 510,427 _ {2,691) 507,736

__Central banks i 21,149 - 21,149
Credit institutions 489,278 (2,891) 486,587

Total loans and recelvables to credit Institutions 510,427 {2,691) 507,736

2014 Group
Total assete
In RON thousands (pross carring e Carrying amount
allowance
amount)
Loans and raceivables 527,788 (2,507) 525,281
" Central banks . N e B Fget e 25T
Credit institutions 8235214 7T T @s0n” " 523707
Total loans and receivables to credit Institutions 527,788 {2,507) 525,281
2013 Bank
Total/assets; Collective

in RON th d i

i ousands {gross carring dllowance Carrying amount

amount}

Loans and receivables 485,953 {2,681} 483,262
Contral banks ] 21,149 21,149
Cradit institutions S S 464,804 (Z.681) 362,113

Total loans and receivables to credit institutions 485,853 {2,691) 483,262

2014 Bank
Total assets Collecth
in RON thousands {gross carring e Carrying amount
dllowance
amaount)

Loans and receivables 483,173 (2,507) 480,666
Central barks ===} 574 e e e . s T
Credit institutions - e - Asbsm T =14 (2.5075'““ # 78088

Total loans and receivables to credit institutions 483,173 {2,507) 480,666
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21, LOANS AND RECEIVABLES TO CREDIT INSTITUTIONS (continued)

ALLOWANCES FOR LOANS AND RECEIVABLES TO CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

2013 Group
) Exchange-rate
in RON thousands c;::;'::t b::']‘: Allocations Releases and other glatl,:rll:
¥ changes (+-)
Collactive allowances
Loans and receivables i F 3 = i — - ._.(:.'..540). J.831 . N :19 e (_2,_(_590)_
Credit Institutions - (4,540) 1,831 18 (2,690}
Total - (4, 540) 1,831 19 {2,690)
2014 Group
Exchange-rate
Opening balance o o Closing
In RON thousands [current year] {) A . o G:':_; Balance
Coilectlve allowances
Loans and receiv ables B _ . (2,890) (581) 532 242 (2,507)
Credlt institutions (2,600) {581) 532 242 (2,507)
Total (2,890) {581} 532 242 {2,507)
2013 Bank
Exchange-rate
in RON thousands Opening balance  ,  \ins  Reloases andlotic Closing
[current year] (=) Balance
changes {+-}
Collactive allowances
Loans and receivables ] - 3 - (45400 1,831 19 (2,891)
Cradlt instliutions . {4,540) 1,831 19 {2,691)
Total - {4,540) 1,831 19 (2,891)
2014 Bank
Exchange-rate
In RON thousands Opening balance Hlocations  Releases and other Closing
[currgnt yoarl (-} Balance
. changes (+-)
Collective allowances
Loans and receivables . _(2891) I ] 532 242 {2,507)
Credit institutions (2,601} ~ (580) 532 242 (2,507
Total {2,6891) (580) 832 242 (2,507)
22. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES TO CUSTOMERS
2013 Group
Total asgets
In RON thousands {gross carring . Specific c.?lleﬂive Carrying
amount) a

mLoarls and_racsivables - i = = Al : 47,10_'.!'_,327 (8,4586,483) . (848,955) 38_,002.359
General governments 5,472,689 {9.887) {23,698) 5,439,104

M'_Other financlal comporations 472,354 {138,380) {5.509) 328,465

___Nonfinancial corporations - "" 21,140,488 (6.440,7643 (361,507 14,336,464
Housaholds Ll el - 20,022,339 (1Be7,938) T T T (257,941} 17,896,456

Total loans and receivables to customers 47,107,827 (8,456,483) (648,955} 38,002,389
2014 Group
Total assets

in RON thousands {grnss carrlng - Srocific Gl?llscuve Carrylng

amount)

_L"E.E.s and ref:u;lvghlos = — . = 40,433,136 (7,179,811) (887,258 32,568,066
General govemments I o " 4,944,062 (20, i) TUNE 688 T T ddos.2d3
Other financial corporations —— | CUTRETAeY U (i4938) T T TEOER T THease
Non-financial corporatians 5 N T TiEEIEET T [BOM.e54) (301.236) 5544 8%
Househaldg ‘ B T(2.078i28) 7T T (@80,297) T 136045

Total lpans and recelvables to customaers 40,433,138 {7,179,811) (687,259) 32,566,086
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22.  LOANS AND RECEIVABLES TO CUSTOMERS {continued)

2013 Bank

In RON thousands (9'1‘;:‘::::: ::: ] L c.?lfectlve t::a:rrnrc.!a"u“nut

amount)

Luuns and recelvables _— 45_.1_1113_0__ . (7.135.758] {645,715) 31,9%
Ganurar govarnments = “2,453.731 {9,887) {23,698) 5.13%
Other financial corporations _ - 864,839 (136 063) (5.50_9) 7‘2‘&
Nen-financial corporations sy 20.728.3737 .____(.5'_?10'409) {360,382) 14.657.58?_
Households 18,664,787 (1,277,439) (256,128) 17,151,220

Total loans and recelvables to customars 45,741,730 {7,135,798) (645,715} 37,960,217

2014 Bank

in RON thousands (grzﬁlt::frsi:t: . Specic C.?Ilectlve c"”"‘ﬂ

amount)

Loans and recelvables B = = 3 38,767,507  {6,189,458) _(660,866) 32837273

_ General govemments = o= - - | 4,943,758 '(20,108) d {27 685).. s 74.99_5.927_

N Other mra_nti!al__co_rporatinns o = 632848 (14.851) {7, 960) 61_0,0@?

_Nen-financial cerporations = - .. 15341084 (4.714.891) (276,954 10,349,249
“Housshoks 18,849,897 {1,419,610) (348,267} 17.082.0%0

Total loans and recelvables to customers 38,767,507 {6,169,458} (860,866) 32,937,273

ALLOWANCES FOR LOANS AND RECEIVABLES TO CUSTOMERS

013 Group
Recoveries of
Interest Incoms  Exchange-rate fimakifitn
Opening balance from Impaired and other Cloging previously wrilten Amounis

i RON thousands [current year] ) Allocations* Uses* Releasas’ loans changes {+-) Balance of*  written of*

Specific allowances

Loans and receivables {69160 (4080.375)  1125.281 2131501 620,544 {S61.830)  [8.456.483) 22398 1465.821)
Goneral govemments ' OatEs T 516 B 13 A.414] wan ] :

" Other firanchl copomtions. (506§ Bies  As 188 (eh (A3 Red T dad
Non-financil comoralions. {48573 [pB0Gi%s  Tas0T 1740408 49.5E0 {lotEE (5.440.288) U TR (R
" Households - TRriod)” T seT) T sms . dAse BT 66479 (18793] 11967 [106.436)

Collactive allowancss

Loans and recaivabiss [123 450) . 856} 487.316 [10 65 [548.955]

" Genersl govemments T Emy asy 15831 = )
" Other finencie! corporations 204m) (5083 7 0120 = ) " (650
Non-Hiancial corpotations {36aE | (9eTh e - A (350.0%)
Households .T64) 626 1.708 2.2 23 712)
Total {B.415.004) (4500.231)  1.125.281 2.828.847 628,544 {572.795) {8.105.438)
W4 Group
Recoveries of
Intersst Incoms  Exchange-rate ey
Opening balange from Impaired and other Closing previously written Amounis

In RON thousands [cumentyear]{}  Alocations* Uses* Relaases* loans changes (e} Balance off  writien of*

Speciflc allowances

Lcans and rer.emhles ﬂi 455 447) {5.180.914) 5 067.477 830,670 391.508 116.591 17 179, ﬂ11] mms {504.&50}
Ganaral guvemments o T mwm T T s 2 ge) @i T B T (480
Other Fnancia! cmpnratlons (138.300) {2148) 84215 125 1.285 T8.832 (14.526) B.262 {1.025)
Nor-financial comorations 1 (s 439.249) '"“(16124'02)" 40048 omdlr m06sE 033 (5.071.85) 300,784 {49.025)

Houssholds B T I A~ = B 17 T S YT Ry (177 %

Collective allowances

Loang and raeaivables ) (m 991) (182 969) - 162106 . (15.405] {687.259)

" Goneralgovemmens i L )
__ Other financial corarations (5.508) ) 1.690 - feloy) - (8.033)
" Nonfnangl curporatlons I (362.-8@71 (90756) 8_0.5111- =S (1029) ¢ (ﬂ&ﬂfﬁf
" Househokis Y Y T Rim - (68 T s
Total {9.105.438) {5.363.883) 506747 1042776 391,506 100.482 {7.667.070)

*) Allocations, releases, recoveries of amounts previously written off and amounts written off represent the income Statement effects (see Nota 10). Uses represents the usage of
allowances for impaiment for written off and sold loans.
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22. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

219 Bank
Recovaries of
Interest Income  Exchange-rate amounts
Opening balance from impalred and other Closing previously writtan Amounts
in RON thousands [eurrentyear] (4 Allocations* Uses* Relgages* loans  changes {+-) Balange off  written off
Specific allowances o
‘Loans and receivables (636332 Q6T 10084 20004 540.032 (638 {7.136.7%8) 143,106 282643}
" General govemments T T A 162) sl Tiesi T w4 414) ) (s @y 3 T
Other finarkial corporations ——— (o608 5188 2057 1328 78l (18068 o164 (6.409)
Nonfnenclal corporations. {d4T900) ~ (pBU287Z)  6eRgsl | 64181 A0B.0GT oA BI04 598 (30485)
Households (564438 @%560)  d0192 4879 128.168 (B0 {1.eri4am) 0475 197.749)
Collective allowances
Loans and receivales {105.916) {a01.183) 74456 H3.012) (B45.715)
Generalgmremmen!s B __ -2 (MGE—T)’—— TR 0T mam _7 7 Ci —{Eﬁf- __(.23'6%)'
" Oiberfinancil coporations T mam (e nim )
Non-fianciel comperations. W23 (383.656) 478,505 {008 (6.4
Housahalds esE 2 - z Gesy  [20.0%)
Total (.0M0.440) (4284580 1080444 2501600 540,032 {48 [LT816M3)
M4 Bank
Recoverles of
Intarest income  Exchange-rate 1 LTEL
Opening balance from impalred and other Closing previously writien Amounls
In RON thousands [currentyear] (-}  Mlocations® Uses* Releasas’ loans changes {+-} Belance off  written off
Specific allowances
Lollrs and race'vables T15.601)  (4.505.060) 4.285.522 $11.859 345,458 105.569 (6160, A58} 351621 BT
_ Geoersl govemments C o ome  @sm ke se3 282 el T im0 Al T fasy
" Oiber ihancial corporafions T B diesm | ame 19 AR pass) . a2 (.0
" Norvfinancil corpratons G041 RN 3A7ATS 5106 Me%al G @I niels @)
" Hauseholds (2madl) (%2254 1030807 me B @638  (49E0)  C 278 @eqd))
Collactive allowancas
Loans and receivables {45 712) [166.626) - 140.245 - m {660.866)
e (6519} e T S e e e b
Cther finarcial comorations N 508 (o ORI e S = {7,065}’
Non-financial corperations [360.381) m BA T4 15,027 ’ {350.800):
Housaokds 58.126) B0 TR {16.0%0) @)
Total {TBI54  (h7T40606) 428852 952,404 5 453 10579  (6.030.324):

*} Allocations, releases, recoveries of amounts previously written off and amounts writien off represent the income statement effecis (see Note 10). Uses represents he usage of

dllowances forimpairment for written off and sold loans,

In 2014 Group has reconsidered the collection sirategy and decided fo sell part of non-performing loan portfolio. These sales resulted in the
following changes thal were reflected in the financial statements.

Sales and write off of loans in 2014 were as follows;

In RON thousands Group

Transferof loans Gross camying amount Reiated allswance
“Sale __ -1~ S
"Wite off, out of which ) 4,096,764 4.096 754
Sales from previo usly witen oif loans Sl - T U7 grAas T “BBTAS1
In RON thousands Banh

Transfer of loans

Sale
“White off, aut af which
Sales from previcuslywriten off loans

— ___G_mis carnying amount
2,026,554

— 5:‘@?_5_4;'5“-”_‘__
867,451

Ralaled allnwanca

4



BCRS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Consolidated and Bank
for the year ended 31 December 2014

23. DERIVATIVES - HEDGE ACCOUNTING

Group
2M3 2014
Notional Falr value Notional Fair value
amount Positive Negative amount Positive Negative
In RON thousands
Fair valua hedges
_ Interest rate instruments and reluted derivatives ] B 664,377 . 29.0647 ] 7,4& o T T
Foreign exchange trading and related derivatives 6,240,807 10,168 1,079,802 2,964,068 - 554,005
Total fair value hedges 6,905,274 39,233 1, 00T, 286 7,954,008 . 534,005
Bank
2013 M4
Notlonal Fair value Notional Fair value
amount Posltive Negative amount Positive Negative
in RON thousands
Fair value hedges
Interest rate instruments and related derivatives ; ‘ 664,377 —— 29,064 3 _ 7,465 i L = o]
Foreign exchange trading and related derivatives 6,240,807 10,169 1,078,801 2,964,068 s 554,005
Total fair value hedges 6,905,274 30,223 1,087,266 2,964,088 - 554,005

Fair value hedges are used by the Group to prolect it against changes in the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities due to
movements in exchange rates and interest rates. The financial instruments hedged for interest rate risk include deposits.

The Group uses currency swaps to hedge against specifically identified curency risks.
The fair value of hedged items aftributable to the hedged risks amounted to RON 9,412 thousands as liabiliies {2013; RON 119,386 thousands
as liabilities).

During 2014, the Group discontinued the fair value hedge accounting for the issued bonds. Consequently, the amount of RON 71,019
thousand, representing the fair value of the respective hedging derivatives has been redesigned as derivatives held for trading. The fair value of
hedge item amounting RON 67,953 thousands will be amortized using Effective Interest Rate until the maturity of bonds.

The result from hedge accounting in 2014 was as follows:
net gain on hedge item (issued bonds and interbank deposits) in amount of RON 41,606 thousands;
net loss on hedging instruments (interest rate swaps and cross cumrency swaps) in amount of RON (10,456) thousands.
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24, EQUITY METHOD INVESTMENTS

The Group has a 33.33% interest in Fondul de Garantare a Creditului Rural, which is a financial institution whose main role is to facilitate the

companies from the agriculture industry to obtain loans from the banks. The Group interest in Fondul de Garantare & Creditului Rural is
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements. The following table illustrates the summarized financial
information of the Group's investment in Fondul de Garantare a Credituli Rural:

In RON thousands 2013 2014
Cradit institutions - .
“Financial institutions s 14,267 48,288
“Nerecredil institutions o . N
Total — . 14,297 15,289
The table below shows the aggregated financial information of company accounted for using the equity method:

in RON thousands 2013 2014
Total assets 1,793,188 1,263,310
Total liabilities 1,750,284 | 1,217,439
Total equity - 42,894 45,871
Propartional of the Group's ewnarship — . 33.33% 33.33%
Carylng t of the in t 14247 15295
in RON thousands 2013 2014
ome e e BB 728
Expenses {16,386) . (16412)
Profit before tax 12,450 4,814
Income tax expenses {1,858) (1,837)
Profitlloss 10,582 2,977
Proportional of the Group's ownership 33.33% 33.33%
Group's share of proflt for the year 3,53 992

As of 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, there is no published price quotations for BCR Group investment accounted for using the

equity method.

25. PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Group
Proparty and equipment - Acquizltion and production costs
Office and plant
In RON thousands Land and buildings equipment / :tller IT assets [hardware) RLHADIE vl Total pmpo!'ty and Investment
fixed assats property equipment properties
Balance as of 01.01.2013 1586,164 523,89¢ £22,34¢ 155,185 2,887,585 50,954
Adtons neureatyeer (s . um 0 we o ewm et
Dipospsandwigafl) T RO ma e W peessy
Reclassficaton () . S ). I ' U (36401
Curencytranslation {-) {546) (722) (d50) {8840} {11,668)
Balance a5 of 31.12.2013 1671,366 348,592 482,965 159,849 2,682,762 47,314
Balance as of 01.01.204 1674356 348,592 482,965 159,849 2,862,762 a7.34
Addilons in current year (4 1401 054 .. 2088 42,43 94,112
Risposals and wite off [} L {48,553 (23450) {22478) R37) e 3T 52T} 8578
Relassffication (#-4 — e e o e L LA e (B WS 3750
Assels hald for sala () —__1 e e (ERARET) (M5B
Curmencyiranslation (-} 32) {373 (224 - [629) 5
Balance as of 31.92.2014 1,094,716 343,787 481,523 203,361 2,123,387

43



BCRS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated and Bank
for the year ended 31 December 2014

25.  PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES {continued)

B Growp
Proparty and equipment - Accumulated depreciation
Ofitce and plant
in RON thousands Land and buildings equiplir::‘r: f':::tesr iT assets |hardware) "““::o::':; Total pr::::;:':l::: i:::::m::
Balance as of 01.01.201 {289,065) |405,440) {539,410} {6,230) [4.250,145) 12,123)
Amoriisgtonanddepreciatont) ... SO - N . BRSO . .L| NS . JUUR—.\.. .. (o7}
Dispasels (. . ... SRR . SUS NOURON. . . D 237,280 :
L = T . I T N
Reversgl of impaimant (+) e 15 & - E 815 -
Redassfcaon(s ogs wa s e )
Currencytranstafion {(+-) [22) 434 320 (168} 573 :
Balancs as of 312200 {432,335) {263,247) (444,271 [24,357) [4161,210) [3.180}
Balanco ag of 01.01.2014 {432,335) {263,247) {444,271 {21,357) 1,161,210} [3,180)
Amortisafion and depreciation {-) (40,969 (25,202) (E6t) L R . g
Dispesals [+ = AR B —h2n_ -, 73,628 L
impaiment {2 - 4209 (8.623) -
Recossieatont) 2738 2 == 1 RS S . ]
Assetsheldforsale(4 I 7 e tRgm 602
Curgncytranglation (<) 4 262 jr] . 459
Balanca as of 31.12.20% {318,345} 1268,453) {444,280) {37,699) {1,068,777)
Broup
Property and aquipment
Gffice and plant
in RON thousands Land and bulldings aquipment ! :Ihar IT assets [hardware} Wovabla other  Total propa.rtyand Invnlm?nt
fixed assols property equipment propertiss
Balance as of 31.12.20% 1,239,021 §5,345 18,694 138,452 1501552 44,134
Balance as of 31.12.204 778,371 75,324 31,243 166,662 1,056,610 -
Bank

Property and aquipment - Acquisition and production costs

In RON thousands

Office and plant

Land and bulldings

equipment / other

IT assets (hardwars)

Total property and

fixed assets equipment
Balance as of 01.01.2013 337,820 473,189 812,775 1,423,784
Additions in current year (+ 44,946 6,375 1288 52,609
Disposals andwite off (3 o {93,7%9) ~ (67.026) {5388) {286,623)
Reclassification (+/-) 130,233 (94,974} (32,968) 2,291
Balance as of 31.12.2013 419,280 297,564 475,207 1,192,054
Balance as of 01.01.204 419,280 297,564 475,207 1,192,051
Additions in current year (+) 2873 Wase 6,704 1 36,638
Disposals andwiteoff () (#1,59) oA @@y (s8848)
Assets held for sale () (58,820 . - (59,820)
Balance as of 31.12.204 314,978 292,381 472,560 1,079,819
Bank_

Properly and aquipment - Accumulated depreciation

In RON thousands

Office and plant

Land and buildings

equipment / other

IT assats (hardware)

Total property and

fixed assots equipment
Balance as of 01.01.2013 (89,083) {387,600) (532,535) {1,009,227)
‘Amortisation and depreciation(-) _ (2069} {28750) (38,044 (87,413)
Disposals (4 39,788 B 82,460 ) ‘w5487 237,745
mpaiment ) — = ) e (5,603) (6,581
Reversalof mpalment () __ I - R | Rt S ———
Reclassification (4-) {130, 58) 94,896 32,208 (3,0586)
Balance as of 31.12.2013 (200,325) {238,21%) (A3 8TH) {BTT,TIT)
Balance as of 01.01.2014 {200,325} (238,513 {438 473] BTETA0)
A[nortisatlon an_d deprpc_iation(-) ___Fa. _@.8914) | (7981 {5,593) (53.478)
Disposals() %% 64D wMz 68,921
impalrment ) -1 S N NN =5 - (2302)
Agsets held for sale (+) 786 - 7,196
Balance as of 31.12.201 (178,358) {241,092) (437,930 {857,380)
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25, PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Bank

Property and aquipmant

Office and plant

Total property and

in RON thousands Land and buildings equlprr.lentl other IT assets (hardware} equipment
fixed assots

Balance as of 39.12.2013 218,955 58,651 36,728 34,334

Balance as of 31.12.2014 136,620 51,2893 34,630 222 539

There are no fixed assets pledged as collateral as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013.

The total cost of the Bank's tangible fixed assets that are in use and fully amorlized at the end of 2014 was RON 584,848 theusands (2013;

RON 563,930 thousands).

Details related fo assets reclassified in assets held for sale are in Nofe 28.

26, INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Group
Intanglble assats - Acquisition and production costs
N L . Self-constructad software  Others {licenses,
In RON theusands Govdwlll  C P acquired within the Group patants, olc.) b
Balance as of 01.01.2013 9,723 106,944 585,483 13,851 84,476 800,277
Addltons in urrant year (+) . ] = 54580 — ] . - 54683
Disposals and wte i () @z - 6.912) - (72) ey 6,710’
Reclassifioaton iy 7 = o — = @iy iy T T ey
‘Cumency Transialion (%) ' - {728) {i28)
Balance as of 3 .12.2013 - 106,544 628,432 15,540 B4, 413 835,329
Balance as of 01.01,2014 - 106,944 628,432 15.541) 84,413 835,329
Additions Incurrent yeer (/) . i - T = it R 1“,171
Disposals and wrte aff (- : = == @588 (1‘52@_"__"____”_“7“____ Wa‘ﬂ!l.
Disposal of subsidiarles (- Pt 2 IS O ' . e —
Cumency franslation {+-) - 0 S - lﬂﬂl
Balance as of 31.12.2014 106,944 68E,444 14,015 84,413 b9, 014
Graup
Intanglble assets - Accumulated depreclation
Customer L Others {licenses
In RGN thousands Goodwlll Software acquired software within the . Total
relationships Group patents, etc.)
Balance as of 0101.2043 - {#4,858) 152,484} {2,634) {622 {370,599}
Amerlisation and degreciation (- — - 14,788 (o4 (30%8) (9 [85,757)
Dispasals andwile off (- 5 o 5398 - 8 TS
Impaiment () s e : : : :
Recigsslficalion {+-) = T : == 4.760 ({067 . 2,799
Currencytransiation (4-) - - 10 - - i
Balange as of 3112208 - {19,645) {420,151} (7,511) {568) {447,977
Balance a5 of 01.01.204 - [13,645) (420i5_11 (7,643} {568) {447,977
Amnrllaallananddepreclaﬂun( ) = - = m)_ {68,270} (208) (8} [72,877]
Dlsposelsammteoff(] = e — - T = ; 626 - — g
Dispesalof subskdlarigs () T [ _' ; '_ — _ a2 '_ _ i § —'-»" - —— = - e
T — = (s B T R—
Reclassification (4-] ==~ FEEe=—u - == e . m - SR e
Currencytransiation (+-) S " s = e =i = 1 s [T
Balanca as of 31.12.204 - {106,944} {472,512) 19,625} [84,272) {672,353}
Group
Intanglble assets
. Selfconstructed software  Others {licenses,
In RON thousands Goodwlll  Customer relationshlps oftware acquired
p Softwars acqui within the Group patents, afc.) Toil
Balance as of 31.12.2013 . 87,200 208,281 87 3,045 307,382
Balancs as of 31.12.2014 . 13082 4,390 14 213461
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26. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Intangibla assats - Acquisiiion and production costs

Self-constructed
in RON thougands Software acquired software within Total
the Group
Balance as of 01.01.2013 588,718 13,651 592,369
Addltlons In current y ear (+) 49,203 - 49,202
"Digpesaie and write off {=) Tt 4.173) 75 {4,243y
Reciassiication (+/-} LS (4250 1,967 {2,289)
Balance as of 31.12.2013 609,498 15,540 625,038
Balance as of 01.01.2014 £09,498 15,540 625,038
Addltiong in current year (+) 137.681 e ———— 137.6%1“
“Disposais and wiite off () = " B4 719) T UL525) 86,304)
Balance as of 31.12.2014 62,401 14,015 676,415
B ank
Intangible asssts - Accumulated deprecilation
- Self-
Software construgted
In RON thousands acquired software within Total
the Group
Balance as of 01.01.2013 {344,817) (2,634) (347,451)
Amgrtisaticn and depraciation (-} —- — . (raaTy o Bew (H,:I.E_QL
‘Disposais andwrite off (-~ —— e e 2,991 =i | © 73,0832
Reclassification (+-) 5,017 {1961 3,056
Balance as of 31.12.2013 {411,280} {7.612) {418,892
Balante as of 01.01.2014 {411,280} {7.812) {418,892
Amortlsation and depreciation {-) == (64,247) - 52.0:2_) —= 1k _(86,259)
Disposals and wiile off (-) Y T 15,610
Balance as of 31.12.2014 (459,917 (8,624) {468,541)
Bank
Intangibie assets
Self-constructed
in RON thousands Softwara acqulred software within Total
the Group
Balance as of 31,12.2013 198,219 7,928 206,148
Bajance as of 31,12,2014 202,484 4,391 208,874

Customer relationships arise from acquisition of pension contracts by the subsidiary BCR Pensii, Societate de Administrare a Fondurilor de
Pensii Private SA, from another pension fund. In 2014, given the volatility in the current economic environment, the Group has performed an
impairment test on the customer relationship (for both Pillar 2 and Pillar 3).

The method used was the discounted cash flow, which took into consideration all future cash-flows generated by these porifolios of participants,
which are influenced by account attrition, expected lives, discount rates, interest rates, servicing costs and other factors.

The Group considered significant changes in these estimates and assumptions, which adversely impacted the valuation of these intangible
assets and consequently the carmying amount of RON 84,685 thousands was reduced fo zero.

Land concessions in BCR Real Estate Management in amount of RON 83,695 thousands were fully impaired in 2014,

The total cost of the Bank’s intangible fixed assets that are in use and fully amortized at the end of 2014 was RON 253,907 thousands (2013:

RON 247,426 thousands).
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27. TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Group
Nat varlance 2014
Through
Tax Tax Through
in RON thousands L lacis sl Towl  profitor “mpm‘::::
¥e Income
Temparary diferences relals to the following items: D
Loans and advances to eredit Instiutlans and customers (168,774) - e T T4z T 10472 ”":__“:__:“:
“Financial assels - avalabie for sale Sy Tase3) T [EE3eE)  @h | (@sdh (888 (eE) " (68,668)
Froperty and equipment 5513 6607, (8% @) g6 578 -
inv estments In subsidiaries 7,445, 186,847 T TR T
Long-term smploy €e pravisions o 6600 8511 (62) (181} 2122 18
Sundry provisions 52,538 "" _TERADT e (00,03]) [CRET H
Carry forward of tax losses 204,022 363,966 E 69,944 66,944 -
“Gther = = 468 14erd {818) CTeE T T T = m':'_
Cash flow hedge e e B T 310
Total deferrad taxes 35,514, 528,170. (3,820} 18,718) 204,850 261,266 (56,417)
Currant taxes 99,273 89,086 [2,228) (895} - - -
Total taxes 404,587 616,256 (6,048} {10,411} 204,850 261,268 {50,417}
Bank
Net variance 204
Through
Tax assets Taxassets LLL L e
in RON thousands Total profit or comprehan
2013 2014 .
loss siva
incoeme
Tamperarydifferences relat_a_t‘o mg_f_oll_o!fin_gﬂm_s:_ — - . .
ﬁ"ﬁ a_n_d Et'!;ancss te cre_dlit il‘l_sti_t_utiorp ansl customeE__ —— —== ——— - S’@‘?.:WQ) - B7AT9 _37.479 T
Financial assets - available for sale — L. — T {3535) (55,365) {651629) - (51829)
Property and equipment o e (6088) (628) 5261 5281 -
‘nvestments nsubsidiaries T ' R 1442 WHT W26 2205 N
Long-tervlhn;;pluy‘eeprwovlslnns T S— = — == _6gar _6:4:11_"‘ o (_88)_ T, 5_{-2;‘51,,_, . les0
Sundrypmvi_s!an : - — 1............. . - = ' ; 77} 23ANM (M32)  (9,329) -
Carry forward of tax lossef . 294021 363,966 89,945 69,945
Other - I, 2653 - {26,539) 28,539) -
“Cashfiowhedge - - {697), (387} 3D : 30
Total deferred taxes 3,563 503,888 189,323 238,%62 {49,633}
Current taxes 89,042 89,042 - - -
Total taxes 403,605 592,930 189,323 238,262 {49,639}

28. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

In 2014 the Group has decided to pursue a strategy of optimizing the real estate network, by selling the following categories of properties: non-
core properties (e.g. hotels and fraining centers), vacant properties, properties targeted for branch relocations and other locations subject to

implementation of new safs storage solutions.

The real estale items included in the sale plan can be sold in normal real estate market conditions without need to bring unusual changes to
these items in order to achieve the sale. Estimated period for transactions initiation/closing is within 12 months.

The business plan under the current strategy presents the intention of the Group to recover the camying value of the above real estate items
through sale fransactions rather than through own use, therefore it triggered the reclassification under IFRS 5.

In 2014, properties in amount of RON 431,675 thousands were reclassified as follows:
from Property, Plant and Equipment in assets heid for sale: BCR Bank RON 59,820 thousands, BCR Real Estate Management
RON 134,918 thousands, Bucharest Financial Plazza RON 218,647 thousands;
from investment properties: BCR Real Estate Management RON 25,486 thousands.
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28. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS HELD FOR SALE (continued)

Following reclassification, an impairment test was performed for the respective assels, taken into consideration the market value at 31
December 2014. As the market value was the recoverable amount of these assets and lower than their carrying amount, an impairment was
booked as follows: BCR Bank RON 22,205 thousands, BCR Real Estate Management RON 50,362 thousands, Bucharest Financial Plazza

31,946 RON thousands.

In 2014 BCR Leasing movables in amount of RON 58,507 thousands were reclassified from assets held for sale in other assets (inventories),

as they no longer meet the tFRS 5 requirements.

29, OTHER ASSETS

Group Bank
In RON thousands 2013 2014 2013 204
Deferred income 71,269 61,860 8,957 5,355
“Inventories (i) - T TR Y T T i dad T TRy T 4B 0
Slbsidiaries and other inv sstments S I O - 5 T 1
Sundry assets 138,056 - 124,057 46,197 60,813
Total 271,111 | 428,151 680,682 932,968

{i BCR Group presents "Repossessed Asssts” under this position. The contribution of BCR. Bank is in amount of RON 145,023
thousands, and the subsidiaries conlribution was in amount of RON 97,357 thousands. At the 2014 year end an impairment of
repossessed assets in amount of RON 70,437 thousands for the Group and RCN 41,001 thousands for the Bank was booked as a

result of comparing camying amount with net realizable value;

Bank's investments in subsidiaries and other companies are in amount of RON 721,724 thousands {2013; RON 625,475 thousands). There is

no active market for these investments and the Bank intends to hold them for the long term.

Movement in subsidiaries and other investments included in Other assets:

Bank

in RON thousands

Balance as of 01.01.2014

6F5 AT Duscription

Partener Mobil

BCR Financa BV

Business Opportunity Fund
BCR Chiginau
BCR Leasing
'Eﬁ -F;n“srL S'Jélét:f;?!e ;dﬁlnb?rim; Fondurilor de Pensii Private SA -
Suport Colect SRL. g
“Impaimment of subsidiaries®

= (§42,003) Inppmar M OF EVeEsmEAE In 5D HREAT e

_(3.015) Liguigation of particination (s of }
(5,824) Liguddatius vf participation (Mt of impaémert
(61,514) Salu

__ 24,604 I_fq:?m in caplem
100,600 iacrasse i caplial
14,000 |ocreass in caplisl

8‘70,001 Ingraann i copite

Balance as of 31.12.2014

TAT I

*) At 31 December 2014, aliocation of impaiment was recognized fer the following subsidiaries: Suport Colect SRL, BCR Procesare and there were impairment releases for BCR

Chisinau SA and BCR Pansi, Societate de Administrare a Fondurilor de pansi Prvate SA.

The cash received by the Bank from the liquidation of BCR Finance was in amount of RON 8,212 thousands and the net gain was in amount of
RON 2,388 thousands. The cash received by the Bank from the liquidation of Partener Mobil was in amount of RON 1,251 thousands and the

net loss incurred was in amount of RON 1,800 thousands.

The Bank had an investment in Business Capital for Romania - Opportunity Fund Cooperatief UA in amount of RON 61,514 thousands. At 31
January 2014 the investment has been sold. Net gain from selling was RON 8,526 thousands.

The recoverable amount of the subsidiaries have been determined based on value-in-use calculations, using cash flow projections based on

financial budgets approved by senior management covering a five-year period.
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29, OTHER ASSETS (continued)

The following rates are used by the Group:

Foreign subsidiaries -

Local subsidiarles commercial banks

Discount rate _— - —_ e — — - 1_2;:_5_0% 19.4_0_%‘
Projected growthrate® s S R
Tnfiation rate™ ~ 2.70%
*used only for real estate indusfry
“long term inflaion in MDL

The calculafion of value in use for both foreign and local subsidiaries is most sensilive to interest margin, discount rates, market share during
the budge! period, projected growth rates used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the budget period and local inflation rates.

Discount rates

Discount rates reflect the current market assessment of the risk specific to each cash generating unit. The discount rates were estimated based
on specific parameters (e.g. risk free rate, market risk premium, size premium and country risk premium for foreign subsidiaries) estimated for
commercial banking industry and other financial services.

Market share assumptions

These assumptions are important because, as well as using industry data for growth rates, management assesses how the unit's relative
position to its competitors might change over the budget period. Management expects the Group’s subsidiaries share of markets to be stable

over the buidget period.

Projected growth rates and local inflation rates
Assumptions are based on published industry research.
Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

Management believes that no reasonably possible change in any of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying value of the units to
exceed their recoverable amount.

30. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES MEASURED AT AMORTISED COSTS

Creditinsttutions Group Bank

In RON thoussnds 2013 2014 2013 2014
Cument accounts / ovemight deposits 148,581 185,723 146,562 162,708
Term deposhts from other banks 12,264,653 9,300,060 - 12,212,833 9,335,429
Borrowings and financing lines = — i - 7T T3,420,804 2381607 2,101,423 1,707,678
Subordinated loans - T T T BAT,506 - 2,316,834 T 2,317,506 2,315,854
Rapurch“a'sa: ag-r'aements- — = S— ———— - 000 - 322,475'
Total doposits by banks 18,151,844 14,191,114 16,778,413 13,864,122

In 2012, the Bank contracted one subordinated loan in EUR as follows:
»  EUR 100,000 thousands with the maturity date of 27 June 2022.

In 2009, the Bank contracted one subordinated foan in EUR as follows:
= EUR 120,000 thousands with the maturity date of 30 September 2016. On 28 November 2013 was signed an amendment to the
subordinated contract through the maturity of the loan was prolonged until 30 September 2021,
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30.  FINANGIAL LIABILITIES MEASURED AT AMORTISED COSTS (continued)

In 2008, the Bank contracted two subordinated loans in RON as follows:
»  RON 550,600 thousands with the maturity date on 17 April 2018;
«  RON 780,000 thousands with the maturity date on 18 December 2018,

The loan agreements do not stipulate circumstances in which early disbursement is required and centain no provisions for converting

subordinated debt in equity or other iability.

Cusatomer Group Bank
in RON thousands 2013 2014 2013 204
_Current accounts / ovarnight deposits e = o st - ol IR
_Savings deposits T = | | ke
Househalds B 1. 18r
Nen-savings deposiis R e e e o r——— S
General govarmants 1363632 84w 1963632  esatm
Other financial carporations o o _Bo73re 4426 07378 2B
. Non-financlal corporations =—=F ¥== 3,863,801 5,897,204 3820484 5845830
Households 4,180,808 4,501.577 4171553 4494402
Deposlts with agreed maturity o _ .
Savings deposits - o 0020 0 e Koo
o Nonefinancial comporations | o Wet— _22.'3‘!5 IR el
Houssholds _ _2_00£Jl£ 2,500,042 ) - |
Non-savings deposits "
General governments - . 798,377 583,855 .. 188377 _ 583855
Othar financial corporations - 474,840 787.358 780, 459 973.233
Non-financial corporations . 5,088,503 5,203,2__31 57051 =3 5281.274
Houssholds 8,264 467 BON208 19,264,467 BIHIE
Total deposits from customers 37,448,290 39,922,629 35,746,864 37,592,481
_ Gerermigovemments . 262,009 ; 1578068 262009 1578068
___Otherfinancial comporations — . i ——— 782,219 122998? 1.057,,53_8_ 1,4‘5.382
Non-financial corporations . 9ps2610  HN0435 | 9,080,997 1‘!,1)? 0
Households 25451372 25,04,19 23436020 23.491,407
Debt securities issued Group Bank
in RON thousands 2013 2014 3 2014
Subordlnated Ilablhues : 224,405 243,561 224,405 243 561
" Subordinated issues and daposn,s 7 224405 243581 T Zzaa0s | 243561
"Other debt securities in tssue 1,305,42) BOD. 647 1,168, 861 800,847
Bonds {not subordinated) 1,305,423 800,647 1,168,981 800,847
Total debt socurlties issued 1,520,828 1,044,208 1,303,386 1,044,208

As of 31 December 2014, the outstanding nominal amount of subordinated bonds issued by the Bank was: EUR 33.5 milion and RON 20

milion {2013: EUR 33.5 million and RON 20 miliion),
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31. PROVISIONS

Group Bank
In RON thousands 23 2014 2013 2014
Restructuring 775 13,926 600 13,926
Long-terrn EFnﬁuyee DI‘OV]S|0HS mEmemeE CEommE e 41:‘8'#'-7” i 40.775 T 'E1-42_5 T m.ﬁ
Panding legal issues and tax itigation = —- = —— ~_3E51-9—4 T T3 37 70,234
Commitments and guarantees given — _ — 317,958 ;““'z“ﬁ.iﬁ_”"‘ ——317_,95_4 ~UR0,867
Provisions for commitments and guarantees - off balance {defaulted custorul‘;:r;)«“w - 230,860 Wmﬁa 230,858 15,38
Provisions for comm_[ge‘n:l”ts and guarantees - off balance (non defaulted customers) 87,006 7‘5':"533 87,086 79,633
Other provisions e s i — T 750 'Tﬁ'ﬂ TRAEE T T e
B T T . i
Other pruv isions 1,796 1,785 1,766 1,785
Total provisions 400,857 347,398 395,953 342,604
Details on legal claims are described in Nole 44,
MOVEMENT IN PROVISIONS
203 Group
Opsning balance Additions, includ. Aounts Unusad al'nounb C_hanges in Exchange-raie Closing
In RON thousands [cument year] Ingreases I|:| exlst. used {¥) reversed dunpg the  discounted and other balanee
provisions () period (# amount changes  [current year]
Provisions: Restructuring (see Note 8] 106,678 5 {106,325) [.569) 3 i
Provisions: Pending legal ssues and tax itigation (sea Note 11) 46,144 25,829 {2,467) 37399 : RES) 8,619
Commilments and guarantees given (see Note 11 R T R X - R ~ {190,206 (o57) 7,688 37,056
“Provisins for guarantees - off Balance {defaufied customers) T OTEE 167,381 (W T@n . 518 230,460
Provisions for guarantees - off hnlanne(numcustomﬁr To,282" {1 A (152287) - B
Dther provisions (see Note 11) o I TTTITT T Tie) e . () 1,79
Tolal provisions 05 w502 (109,475) {238,182 #n) 146 350,046
w014 Group
Additiens, includ. Unused amounts  Changes in  Exchangesate Closln
in RON thousands Opening balance Incraases In axlst. Amoynts reversed during the dlsmgunted amig other balan;
[current year] provislons (-} used (1} perled {#) amount changes  [current year]
_Provisions; Restructuring (see Note 8) 5 13,452 25) {278) = = 13,0268 .
“Provisions: Pending legal issues and tax Itigaton (see Note 11) _ 38520 YT = B I "ﬁiaé
_Commitments and guarantess glvan(aee Mate 11) ) 7066 Tio7eed © (l26788) (90093} T R 3513 T Chiggr
Provisions for guarantees - off balance (defauled customers) | 240,860 6521 (126,768 wsn )
Provisions for guarantess - off balance (on defaulted customers); ~ B7,006 A e = A ] e T = )
“Other provisions (sea Nota 11) ST 5606 T T Y T 7381
Provisions for onarous contracts T 5,605 5T T B TR T Thel”
T Other provisiens T T e - : 1) T ——— T
Total provisions 3_5-9.047 171,537 (126,731} {89,092) 3,266 {1,343} 306,624
2013 Bank
Additions, includ, Unused amounts  Changes in  Exchange-rate Closin
in RON thousands 0“}:::?::;“; Increases In exlst. T'::'}: reversed during the disool;rnled nn::Ihar Inlam:
provislons i) period {+) amount changes  [current year]
Provisions: Resiructuring (see Note B 106,522 - (108, 322) 600
“Fiovisions: Pénding 1ega lsaiies and tax [0gefion (sea Noie 11) AT T UTHesT T T ey (Y] TR
Commiimenits and guarantess given (sea Note 11) T byTne T . (B8~ T (e T 4ges  ivEa
" Provisions Tor guarertess - o1 balance (defaited doustomers) 1758 157,481 Te919) {95?)‘ R
Pravisions for guaranfees - off balanicé {non def auited customers) ~ 7%262 1661® - (EZ"Z“ET]- - : T T Grom
Other provisions (see Note 11) == [ e {12 1,756
Total provisions 10,910 362,200 (106,320) (zas.m) {957} 4,457 354,528
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3.  PROVISIONS (continued)

2014 Bank

Openlng bat Additlons, includ. Anounts Unused amounts  Ghanges In  Exchange-rale Closing

in RON thousands pening talance increasas in exist. cun reversed during the  discounted and other balance
[current year] provisions (+) used i} period (¥ amount changes  [current year]
Provisions: Restructuring (3es Nole 8) | [11] 15,352 P ) a8
“PiguTEions: Pending logal iseues and iax gation (see Note 11} 8417 dagfi Tt “‘“(é‘,m"‘““““”““"_“ &
“Commitments and guarantess given (see Note 11) : 'fi‘l“ﬁi~ ~AL Thp 'fUT 832‘ i w(iﬁ Tﬁ@)w L T - (ﬁﬂ) = ﬂm
Provisions for guaramiess - off balance (defaulled customers) | - " 230,860 "W (128.766) {40,267) 3,268 mo&y 1354
Pt isions 10r guAraniess - O balance (non defauiied euslomers)' W il e T ey (O G
e (o T T et e
Provigions for onerous conlracls T TTTTTTAE "'1 SRR =

~ Gther provisiors e —— 3 : 1,79« i : 3 {f ‘ ; 1,785
Total provisions = 354,537 160,837 {126,766) {97,107) 3,266 11,385 32,418

Long-term employee provisions Group Bank

In RON thousands 2013 2014 2013 2014
Opening defined benefit obligation - B3.007 | 41,871 | 58,730 ; 4, 425
iematanst 12 =" - Te05 | 1m0 asal | | AEET
Cument service cost = T T a7, | A sd; 4764 | 487
“Past service sost T T e T ey T T T (‘1‘3’.37’9)'
EBeneflts pald @aeni ey e {208y
Actuarial {gains }/loss on abligationg. 4,628 f-_”——v_ 11,833 ¢ 4@3“ 17,748
effect of changes in financial assumptians S = SEE . s eI 11,357
e?fa'o? a;petlence adustments T T TTTTTRRe T aes T T T amor: . a#”
“Settiements gain S - - L L T LA I - L
Total 41,811 40,775 | 44,425 ! 40,278

In 2014 the collective labor agreement of the Bank has been changed and the entitled benefits have been reduced to 4 gross monthly safaries.
Consequently, a release of RON 13,679 thousands has been recognized in past service cost.

The settlement gain in 2013 relates mainly to the laid-off personnel and payments to laid-off parsonne! were not considered in the calculation of
the ssttlement gain.

According to the collective labor agreement, employees are entitied to one lump sum payment on the date of normal age retirement, of up to 4
gross monthly salaries (the Bank) and up to 2 gross monthly salaries ({the subsidiaries), depending on seniority.

This is a defined benefit plan that defines an amount of benefit that an employee is entitled to receive on the date of normal age retirement,
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and salary. A full actuarial valuation by a qualified independent actuary is
camied out every year.

The plan liability is measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method. The defined benefit plan liability is discounted using
rates equivalent to the market yieids at the balance sheet date of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the curmency in which
benefits will be paid and that have a maturity approximating to the terms of the related liability. Actuarial gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the statement of changes in equity.

The principal assumptions used in determining the defined benefit obligation of the Group’s plan are shown below:

2013 Z014
% %
:E?;Eounlrata” - " e — ”‘5.“?5? Y
Future selary Increases N —— e ———————— = 2.50% T 280%
Mortality rates = ——— ETTL-PAGLER ~ ETTL-PAGLER
Disabliity rates ETTL-PAGLER - ETTL-PAGLER ™~
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3. PROVISIONS {continued)

Group

Sanaltivity analyals 2013 2014 2013 2014
Sensivity - Dlscount rate +- % 0.50%: 0.50% : 0.50%: =L ,,,"'E,”’,‘_
Impact on DBO: Discount rate decrease - 2,745: 2,965 2,877 3.05_8 ‘
_Impact on DBO: Discaunt rate incrasse + B I (2.780): ) 12:919)3 (2.627) L m(zﬂf_)_
Senaivity - Salary increasa rate +- % 0-50%; — 0.50%‘ GB0%; - T T 0.5&?{
Impact on DBO: Salary increase rate - {3,980} (2,944)! (2.'.72_21;.. [2.810?;
Impact on DBO: Salary increase rate + 1,939 . 2,975 2,957 ¢ 3,088
The average duration of the defined benefit cbiigation at the end of the reporting period is 16.2 years.
The expected service cost for 2015 is RON 4,117 thousands for Group and RON 4,023 thousands for the Bark.
32. OTHER LIABILITIES
Group Bank

in RON thousands 213 2014 2013 2014
Deferred income 388 2,083 16 674
Sunary labilities 3 - _— == 774,838 166,404 121,847 86,296
Total 115,225 168,487 121,583 56,510

Sundry liabilities consist mainly of debts regarding wages and salaries and local taxes, which are not overdue.

33. ISSUED CAPITAL

The statutory share capital of the Bank as at 31 December 2014 is represented by 16,253,416,145 ordinary shares of RON 0.10 each (31

December 2013: 16,253,416,145 ordinary shares of RON 0.10 each). The shareholders of the Bank are as follows:

2013 204
Number of P ercentage Number of Percentage
In RON thousands shares holding {%) shares holding (%)
.Erste Group Bank Ceps Holdln! Qrpbﬂ . = e ‘5.208,869‘!0007 935734% ‘5.209,630,496 93.578‘{)6
Societatea de Investiti Financiare {" SIF”) , Banat Crisang® _ 1 unuoo% : qom 0.000_0'}(_.
80::|atatea de Investitii Financiare " ﬂ”i_ ﬂuntema o . _ 1 0000% - 1 0.0000%
socletatea de Investiti Fmgn_c:,lare (' SIF ) Oliama _ ) 1.023 534 303 ___6;297‘3% 1,023,534.303 62_973%
'SC Actinvest SA L T TmRER 000M% Zem2 000k
FDICertinvestDinamic ——  BEW  0000M 500 '_ 0.000%
Individuals 20772339 0.078% 2000843 0.L3%
Total 16,253,416,145 100.0000% . 16,253,415,145 100.0000%
The effect of hyperinfiation on the share capital of the Bank is presented below:
in RON thousands 2013 204
"Shar_‘e g_apltal beforethe effactof hyperinflation B e e i T “‘EZ5342 ol 1.“6255:2“
1A529 hypennﬂatlon adjustment recorded in priorwars (i.e. untit 31 December2003) o e 1-,3277:22: i @iﬁ
Share capital 1,952,566 1,952,586
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34, SEGMENT REPORTING

The segment reporting format is determined to be business segments as the Group’s risks and rates of retum are affected predominantly by
differences in the products and services produced. The operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of
the products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and serves different
markets.

For management purposes, the Bank is organized into the following business segments:

A. Retail banking
¢ The Group provides individuals and micro glients with a range of financial products and services, including lending (consumer loans,
vehicles purchase, personal needs, mortgages, overdrafts, credit cards faciliies and funds transfer facilities), savings and deposit
taking business, payment services and securities business.

Corporate banking
«  Within corporate banking, the Group provides corporations, real estate and large corporate clients with a range of financial products
and services, including lending and deposit taking, providing cash management, foreign commercial business, leasing, investment
advices, financial planning, securilies business, project and structured finance fransactions, syndicated loans and assel backed
fransactions. Principal acfivity is of handling loans, other credit facilities, deposits, and current accounts for corporate and insfitutional
customers, investment banking services and financial products and services provided by the leasing, insurance, brokerage, asset
management, real eslate services and financial consultancy services operations of the Group.

Main Corporate segments consist of:

B. Small and Medium Enterprises which represent clients with the following main characteristics:
» companies having annual fumnover between 1 to 25 milion EUR
» clients requesfing financing of real estate projects less than 3 million EUR
* intemational clients with more than 50% foreign capital and annual fumover between 10 o 25 million EUR
+ municipaliies representing local authorities and companies managed by local authorities
» public sector representing central authorities and companies owned by state, public funds

C. Large Comorates
s companies part of a group with at least a single member having more than 25 million EUR turnover

= part of a group with 2 cumulated tumover of more than 275 million EUR

» entities or group of entities listed on the stock exchange; Erste Group subsidiaries, Non-Financial Institutions

D. Commercial RE
¢ companies which request financing for real estate projects more than 3 million EUR

E. Other corporate includes activities refated to investment banking services and financial products and services
Other banking segments:

F. ALM & Local Corporate Center:
*  Balance sheet management - principally providing assets and liabilities management, funding and derivative
transactions, invesiments and issuance of bonds operations;
+  Local Corporate Center - unallocated items, items which do not belong to business lines and Free Capital.

G. Group Capital Markets (GCM):
o principally providing money market and treasury operations, syndicated loans and structured financing transactions,
foreign currency and derivative fransactions, financial instruments- trading and sales activities.

The business segment reporting format is the Group's basis of segment reporting. Transactions between business segments are conducted at
am’s length.
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34, SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Segment assets and liabiliies include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.
Unallocated items mainly comprise property and equipment, intangible assets, other assets and other liabilities and taxation. The mapping of
individual accounts by main line items of income and expenses, respectively assets and liabfiifies and equity, for purposes of segment reporting
is done on an intenal management approach, rather than an extemal financial reporting approach.

In order to split the Group results on business lines the following subsidiaries are allocated entirely on Retail segment; BCR Pensii SAFPP,
Banca pentru Locuinte, Suport Colect and some of the consolidation adjustments; BCR Leasing and BCR Chisinau are allocated on Corporate.
Intragroup eliminations and the rest of the consolidation adjustments are allocated on Corporate Center.

In geographical segmentation Erste Group shows BCR Group entirely under geographical area ROMANIA. Furthermore, the only business

done outside ROMANIA is performed by BCR Chisinau, but the conlribution to Balance Sheet and P&L is insignificant. There is no other

geographical steering information used by BCR management, therefore this segmentation is not shown here.

2043 Graup
ALM & Local
Large Commearcial Other
1h RON thousands Group RETAL SME Corporawss Renl Esiste Corporste Corporate acu
Centsr

Net Interest incame 2,775,552 1,642,100 515,726 317,773 60,841 33 225,284 4,778
Tel Toa and commisslon income 748,223 b5az4e2 107,345 126,420 1,844 3,066 [LENITY) 16,877
"Bividend income 10,385 10,386

Net trading and fair value ﬁjll 441,306 102,584 38,344 109,022 2,478 98,068 179,“)0.
"ot reault from equity method inv e simants. — T SGEm T U™ - - 355 -
Rental Incoma from Investment propartiss & other oparating lsase 21,6823 15,560 - - 0,054

] ] [ p (1,627,724} (1,231,739)  (201,479) (89,157) {6,622) (2,281) (67,149) (29,208)
Gainsilosses on financlal assets and llabllities not measured at failr valus thraugh 14,007 14,087

proflt or logs, net

N Tars = e e e e —— e
ol mpaiment loss on Tinncial assels not measured ai fair veius through profit or (2,107.548) (508,217) {546,735 (713,334) (143,708) (103,068) 208
Gihar operating resuft - - (212,649 (102,587) @33,035)  (123,422) (188) 48,338 75)
_Protax profit from continuing operations =~ 86,760 354,672 (106,367) (461,789) (76,446) 808 184,805 171,088
Taxas on [ncoma 531,047 (56,747 17,1891 73,084 12,231 {120) 512,702 (27.974)
Poat-tex profit from continulng eperations 508,78 297,024 {88,176) {367,805) {84,214) 678 07,507 143,742
NET PRGFIT OF THE YEAR 508,716 297,824 {89,176)  (3B7,B08) (64,214) 678 7,597 143,712

Attributahble to nen-tontrolling interests 7.516 7.616 - - -
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT 501,200 200,408 (89.178) {387,805) (64,214) 878 7,837 143,712

‘Dperating Income o — 4,000, 621 2,287,185 876,883 484,124 74,183 3,088 264,817 200,550
Operating Expanses 1,627,724)  (1,231,730)  (201,479) (99,157} [8,522) (2,281) (a7, 140 (20,206)
Operating Result 2,372,807 1,038,4%8 476,404 374,867 87,540 808 227,488 174,264
Coat Incoma Ratlo 40.7% 53.9% 20.8% 10.2% 8.9% 73.8% 22.8% 14.6%
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34.  SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

2013 Group
LM & Local
In RON thousands Group RETAL  SME cﬂ';:;‘::m Eaﬂ";c: Cn?:ho.rrah cz?"u::m GCM
H5SETS
Cash and cesh balances 9,586,006 1,320,099 31,973 5 == 8,233,835
Financlal assets - held for trading e " 373,568 - N 42,781 330,817
Defvatives 42,781 . - e T > 42,781 -
Other trading assets i 330,817 S - - 0,817
_Fiancial assets deslgnated at fair valus through profit or foss 3,351 T T zaes 5 < waem <
“Financlal assets - available for sale - - 5219762 739,806 954,038 - - s T -
“Financlal assets - held to matusity === ik T 0236386 1,173,263 52086 - T 9,000939 e
Loans and receivables to credt institutions —= T T Torae | 207114 Ik B — T [228,356) 489,228
Toans and recelvables to oustomers - 38002389 19,111,767 11,115,665 551,809 2060 BB
Derivatives Hedge Accounting _ e = = ==t — > —— ) :
Property and equipr 1501852 1,207 13,624 - = 71,488,720 5
v '__ R — ——— 44 134 " = ——— - s _4'!.134 —-
'Intangible assets Tardsz T T aan i 2,241 - T 391,964 .
"Investments In assoclates ey ety T 14,207 T e e e - 14,297 -
Currentlaxnssels — s Bg2ra s T I T T - ) G -
“Deferred tax assets X T TR R 3z 4@ e e 314510 =
‘Non-current assets and di Igroups clessitied as held for saie oAl B R - N
Other assets “F AT 60,246 224,918 - {14,053) :
TOTAL ASSETS 66,726,707 22,707,040 11,885,175 5,511,808 2,031,670 - 23,794,060 810,042
LIABILITIES
Financtal llablitles held for trading 66,061 : 5 = . 6,061
Dervatives - TRROE T . s 061 T
Financlal labilfies measured at amortised oos costs = T TEREI0,009 T 29,882,257 4,545,088 " BamsTea T 12871 T 1,534,525 2,153,308
Deposhs from banks — —— 18,151,844 023,736 1,081,731 T T TG 507,461 630,515
Deposits from customers 37,448,2i0 28,859,120 E 3,463,302 3,325,764 128,113 57,028 1,513,882
Debt securtles issued 1,520,828 - - - 1,528,528
OtharflnannlaT Ilabllﬂrs e —— . apzr - . == - . 440,207 -
“Dertvallves Hadge Accoumting 1,087,266 5 - d - 1,087,266 :
“Changes In Far valus of poriioliy hedged tems I i i e e N e ===
Provisikns 400,857 10,448 35,182 206,650 230 81,941
Cuament tex liabifitics _ i 2,228 e - s 3,166
Defered fax iabilfies 3.820 2133 1,687 : - . T
Liablllties associated with disposal groups held for sale = - B =
Qther Liabiities e ——— 175,236~ #1305 ﬁ.?zz" T tTTTT T ik 4m
Total equity il 7423250 1,360,851 861,513 636,704 216,873 567 4,008,191 120,562
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 66,728,797 31,205,992 5,448,809 4,449,127 346,216 55T 22,905,047 2,202,980
2014 Group
ALM & Local
in RON thousands Group RETAIL SME Co:.:::m f‘::lm;r‘:l;l Cn?:::.r:h Corporate GCM
Ceanter
Nef Interest Income - =& 27048 L 4GAT0  ABAT  1m2m 48,212 ) 10,698
Net Tee and commission lngame T I8 seees B - R+ R T T AT ae
Diwidend Income e - PSS S T B T e
N_E_T{dlni_g“rﬁ?ilr"&'é‘_@n' TR T s mams weh T dare CTai -7 TEosE  6B7iE
Net resutt from equity mefhiod inv estments . T g W« - N i o} T
"Rental Income from Investmant properties & other operaiing Tease = TN Erma P D TABE - e e = Tdddr T :
General Administratlve expenzas {1,474971) * {4,162 “a:iéj (m 63 um,m) "('s'.ili'i)' (2.354) T B e
Gains/losses on financlal assets and llablities not measured at fair value through = s';s; = = R
ﬂiturbss,net - el 8,058
:;unpalmlem loss on financial assets not measurad at fair value through profit or (L.440,001) (L36,053) (1,088607) (1306,524) (377.675) z @1612) 60
Oher aperating reaulf - i) (1aeT7)”  Qagse) (@) (ease) T T wdm) T @y
Pre-tax profit from continuing operations (s,nsr 855) ma,su) (153,645) “(,0m 875 3R 5E) (1 s:rn GaHE) 145544
Taxes on lncome IRMET  ThEETT T (BsE T e HEd TT{R6784) (20207
Pogt-tax profit from continuing operations (2,794,017)  (T76147)  (855,262)  (022,287) (287,772} (mgn) (270,659) 122,257
NET PROFIT OF THE YEAR (@TI07)  (TT6147)  (658,262)  (922,297)  (241,773) (1.088)  (270,699) 122,557
Attributable to non-controlling terests 5,849 4,842 (1) - - - 7 .
ATTRIBUTABLE TO GWNERS OF THE PARENT (2,799,866)  (701.96))  (659,261)  (822,287)  (287,772) t,008)  (270,708) 122,25
Cperating Income 3,360,344 2,012,481 644,673 305,731 53,802 108 241,241 170,268
Cperating Expenses (L.478511) (1162,338) (212,163) (86,707 {B.074y G54 B[ET | (25,162)
Qperating Resuit 1914433 910,144 33281 217,024 45,528 (.307) 265117 145,116
Cost Income Rafio B5% 56.1% 36.9% 20.0% 15.1% 24.T% 0.5% 5%
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34. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

2014 Group
AL & Local
in RON thousands Group RETAIL SHE Co::o?:h: i‘;;m:;l: co?:::::m c;r;::u GCM
ASSETS
Cash and cash balances 8,235,167 1,506,726 3,143 2 . GAra2n3 130,000
Financial assets - held for tading ©oamiek T T T T T e 2Ab,86s
Derfvatives 154,976 e R
Otterteng sssets - T g T - - e 88
Fhnancial assets designated at fai value through rofit o loss ~ 2587 20358 - = s s =
“Financlal assets - avaliabia for sale T 7655081 1,001,319 230,918 = sdzgd
Financlal assets - hald to maturity _ _ ) 9,578,176 1,075,684 73,075 - 8.429,417 =
Loans and fecaivablas o credfl msftutions " 525281 568,337 87,01 C : C ) A4
Loans and recelvabies to customers ) - | 82566086 17,715,523  BAFIGH4 401872 1,865,412 - om0 -
Property and squipment T 1,058,810 1158 176,882 875,470 -
Intangible assets S : — bdet 6,3% asss = EC L
Imrestments in associates T 200 . 14,389 S
Curmnt tax assets . £ 80,088 - - - 89,086 -
“Deforred tax assels " %6170 9,867 516,303 —=
'N'on?'miami'_sa-lﬁsﬁsal al grolps Clasilied os heldforsale 35660 8 35,680
“Other assets T T paast . Tnaie iea% S W T T
TOTAL ASSETS 61,624,614 22,096,380 0,888,770 4,018,722 1,685,412 23,348,004 387,347
LIABILITIES
Finangial liabilties held for trading 70,127 70,127
“Derivatives e T —— 0,127 : 70,127
Flranclal liabiltics meagured at amortised costs " 55,564,000 0447417 5,376,883  3,908434 241,388 4244733 23A4ATS
Dapasits from banke = TTUAns 89260 1028178 = S 12,9066 72000
Deposits from customers 002620 26167225  4AGEZ1 3396021 241,280 - {769} 2,2688T1
Debt securitles Issued T 14208 - = — ioWms
T GHher Tihancal Tabinies ) T L S R T T50
Darivatives Hedge Accounting N =50 2 B )
Frovisions A L L
Curment 1ax labiies T T~ S = e == O W £05
Deferred tex labities e —— S S se -
Other Liabilties 168,487 = 38,818 -
Total equty . i 831,73 seee7i 163,27 T4gd ipga087 49T
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 81,824,614 31,160,362 6,280,535 4,628,350 1,174 489 1677521 23N9472
2613 Bank
ALM 8 Local
in RON thausands Bank RETAL  SME CO:':;‘::“ %‘mﬁg Co?ro.rrah Comorats  GCM
Center
Net intarest Incoma 2,694,877 1,522,049 474 482 I A &) 69,841 33 305,920 4,778
Net feo and commission income — 718,250 521,084 98,566 126,429 1,844 3,056 (48,601) 15,872
Dividend income 10,385 10,385
'Net fding and fafr vaive resut ~~ ~ T T T T T 'ubis"?' 04552 E,068  eez 28 T grmEe - 176,800
Nel result from oquity method ivestments e R e e
Rental income from invastment properties & other operating lesse 7561""'“ I - T 601
General Adminlstrative sxpontes 2 T T A, (1176,032)  (185,618)  (89,157) B.622) 2201 (200,048) (26,708
“Bainsllosses on financial assets and lisbiities Rot measured af fair vaiss through ’ 2 AR b G~ S
profik of less, net 14,067 14,067
::t;mpamnent loss on financial assets net measured at farr vailie through profi or (1,925526)  (475,549) (439 TI6)  (713,M2)  (143,798) {103,066) 606
Gther oper npsrailng Tesut __‘" - "““““::’" M"‘m_:“ T (5_1_2 s4s) (212 411) (1&600) 4123.4_22) TTTUERy T - TR0y T
Pretax profit from continulng operaions T T k) Eane3 (eeTh (@e2,m) (T6dd8) Tws TR 474,086
Taxes on ncome SSa817 {44,837 0,39 73,554 2,23 (130 63,636 (27,574)
Posttax profit from continulng operations 335,527 235,868 {54,581)  (358,414) (64,214) 678 AB2,470 143,712
NET PROFIT OF THE YE&R 335,527 235,866 {54,581) {388, 414) (84,214} [7]] 462,478 143,712
Attributable to non-controiing interests - K : B
_ﬂ"I'RIBUT‘BLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT 335,527 235,868 {54,561) (388,414} (64,214) (1] 452,479 143,712
Operating Incoma 3,871,670 2,147,686 809,017 464,124 74,163 3,088 373,242 200,550
Operating Expenses (1,672,056) (1,176,832)  (165,618)  {89,157) 6.622) {2.28%)  (200,148) (29,206
Operating Reault 2,199,814 968,754 443,399 374,867 €7,540 805 173,083 111,254
Cost Incoma Ratlo 43.2% 54.%% 27.2% 19.2% 8.9% 73.8% 53.6% 14.6%
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for the year ended 31 December 2014

34. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

2013 Bank
ALM & Local
In RON thausands Bank  RETAL  SME CD'r-;::ms i‘:m' co?:::h c:r;z:u GeM
ABSETS ==t ——— —
Cash and cash balanoes 5,545,602 1,311,728 8,055,192 178,742
Finarxiaf assets - hefd for trading 37,763 = - - - = 40,46 330,817
DE‘i\reﬂvﬂ ) ay— i m e e - ﬁ_—49:-945 -
Cther tradling assets 0,577 = " ROET
Financlal assets designated at fair vakis through profit of 088 T 34,351 - ‘mroEe T = T 1,265 -
Financial assets - available for aak 4,453,360 236,00 Y TTTR,317,926
Financial asaets - hakd 1o maturty 5,000,530 == B [ = Sen 5,008,530
Loans and recelvabies to credit institutions 483,262 - - TATATE 05,48
Loans and receivables o customers T THLEE217 16157827 10,248,353 8,511,804 2034670 1,851,705 n
Derivatives Hedga Accounting 30,233 35,593
"Changes In 1ak value of portioRo Nedged ems s . . .
Propesty and equipment S 34,534 - 314,334
nv it 3 - -
Intangible assata 306,148 : - - - 206,146
Invgstment in assoclates T TTs00 - - - . 7,509
Curent tax gossts e e e L e : 5 89,002 =
‘Deferod tok assals s - L R 17 M
mmbpﬂal gmups chaamed as'hil&"f—'nrsate - e = 3
Other asssts o [ - - 680,582 3
TOTAL ABSETS 63.508,863 19,527,510 10,607,373 5,511,509 2,031,670 - 25,012,559 819,042
LIABILITES
Flnanclal Ilabllmee held for trading 66,061 - - - - 66,061
Denvatives w e ) 86,061 =T - £ 86,061 -
Financial liabiities measured ai amortised costs 54,358,870 26,067,774 3 367 TrS 3,825, 764 128,193 - 18415047 2,153,308
Daposits from banks . T "7 16,8413 7" - — 16,136.800 638,515
__Deposits from customers 45,746, 354 26,067,766 3,367,775 3,325,764 128,113 42564 1515882
" Datt securiies lssued = 3 T - R -
Gther financial labiliigs P S —— Sty s 0,307 il
Derivatlyes Hedge Accounting oL T, T o TETT T T T LT AT 26 ey
Provlsions 355,659 16,406 20,086 266,659 730 78,669 X
Other Liabilities TG T = e R R L X" R
Total equity 7,479,850 1,282,210 769,470 636,704 216,875 557 4,244,474 126,562
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUNTY 63,500,063 28,260,200 4,157,333 4,449,127 348,218 557 24,013,480 2,262,960
2014 Bank
ALM & Locat
Larga  Commercial Qther
in RON thousands Bank RETAIL SME Gorporates Real Estate Corporate c::r:n::m GCit
Net interest income _ 2215176 1,326,392 367,000 182,262 48,212 N 280572 10,638
et fee and commissicn income _...,.:::- M'w:'_ T s gas 537478 ‘@13 {05,713~ T 2380 1017 @703 gt
Dividend income 26,134 e e R =t
et trading and fair vaue resut T T aBnseR | o4 : “Tere T e - U EGeN 155,715
Net rssult from equity methed investmants B . ; e T
Rental incoma from investment propariles & other operating lease T RO R iy ST S~ I _
General Administrativa sxpanses qAI000) (1113885 (17484 (8707 (60T} (235 @05 25.1%9)
Gains/lassos on financial assets and Babilities not measured at fair value though e — gRe— et = ] ——
profit or loss, net 8,058 8,058
Net impalmant loss on financial i i T e e
b: pairm cial assets not measured at fair valua through profit or (3815,146) (1,091,&28) (1,068.26%) “ WERY  (327.675) ) 21,612) 0
"Ofiar operating reut 7 (erens) (2, T (13578) (89T {o0.438) - o mxe  em
Prectax profitfram continuing oparations . @RSy (950122 (T2EM) (0BTSTI) (42885 (L30T 150467 4SSk
“Taxes on incoma | 238962 152019 123607 175,676 seeid T 2 pasore T T(saen
Postdax profit from continulng operati (2625,5665) _ (199,10) _ (64B,937) (22,20}  [ZEL,TIZ) {1,088) (93619 122,257
NET PROFIT OF THE YEAR (2,620,568)  (795,102)  (R4893T)  (922,207) (287772 {1,098}  (83,415) 122,257
Attributable to non-controlling interests . - - S ¥ :
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT (2,620,588)  (T98,102) (645,937} (922,207) (281,77%) (1,098)  {93,618) 122,257
Operating Income 3,080,983  1,058268 484,150 305,731 53,602 1,048 316,915 170,268
Operating Expenses (1495800) (1.115.965) (174848) _ (@a707)  (BOT4) (2860 (80.099)  (35,160)
Oparating Result 1,796,183 824,309 304,303 217,024 45,528 1.307) 236,218 145,116
Cost income Ratlo 45.4% 56.9% 36.1% 29.0% 15.1% ZATh 255% 14.0%
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34, SEGMENT REPORTING {continued)

2014 Bank
AN & Local
th RON thousands Bank  RETAL  SME “'r‘;‘r’:m i‘:’:"';;:‘ CO?::;& c:r‘pr:er:u GOM
ASSETS
Cash and cash balances B1EEAAT 1,554,120 = 6474,321 130,000
Financial assets - held for trading 70,80 - 154,076 215853
"Derivatives ’ Ty e e e o e E - THBAGe T
Other trading assets _ 215853 BT T P W NG S e {'“'":':_“ ""'"’53’5,__953_
Financlal assets designated at fak valua through profit or loss usy - mEs e iz v
Flnancial assels - avaitable for sale EBABT U T Thami T T e 6412576 v
Financial assets - hekd to maturity LI A E G BA20417 :
Loans and receivables to cradit Instufions AR OOB e, el e e : 439,712 446
Loans and receivables to customers ml 32,93]’,273 17,435,703 B.Dﬂﬂ:ﬁ‘miﬁl,ﬁ:ﬁ—ew w“-'"“f”mm i ——r
Propedy and equpment 2258 = e I e R
Intangible assets 206874 ——— et e i 255.3?} N 1"
Inw estmants in assaciates T - . - 7,509 .
Current tax assets = ~ TEg,042 e - CI
Deferred fax assets - S 503,868 R e - TR
“NOR-CUNSN 28565 and dieposal groups cassried = eld for sale ) T e o AR e R =
Other asaets T S 932,988 e : : - 932,968
TOTAL ASSETS 59,037,138 15,080,823 5,331,908 4,018,712  1,E85,412 - I50A3026 3BT,T
LIABILITIES —
Flnanclal liabdities held for trading 70,127 - 0,127
" Dervatives il = T 3 3 E = T T T
“Financial abifties measwed at amoriised costs 526721 26722374 4230512 3000434 241289 - 5416208 2344475
" Depests from banks L - X7~ T}
""" Deposits from customers 97,502,461 26605571 4202888  eBe0n 249288 . T Hip  26En
" Deb securties issued — — 1,044,208 e s L 104208 -
_Otnerfmancialbabities " angsn 26503 6ese iyl . - sk 5EM
Derivatives Hedge Accounting 554,005 5 5 Tl Bigs T
Provisions T 3meet . iialr T 29:3-2"1 oo TeRsT T T {5 T
Other Lizbilities - = Y T = P 5 - z 8,970 =
Total equity 50867 1614609 7iSdEr T 8568 69,277 4Bd  1ODI616 4m694
TOTA. LIABILIIES AND EQUITY " 5,031,134 26,348,800 5,005,179 4628350 411,174 49 18252872 2,367,169

35. RETURN ON ASSETS

Return on assets (net profit for the year divided by average total assets) was (4.35)% (2013: 0.86%) for the Group and (4.29)% (2013: 0.50%)

for the Bank.

36. LEASES

a) Finance leases

Finance leases receivables are included under the balance sheet item ‘Loans and advances to customers'.

The Group acts as a lessor under finance leases through the subsidiary BCR Leasing SA, mainly on motor vehicles and equipment. The leases
are mainly denominated in EUR and typically run for a period of between 1-15 years, with transfer of ownership of the leased asset at the end of
the lease term. Interest is charged over the period of the lease based on fixed and variable (based on EURIBOR) interest rates. The receivables
are secured by the underlying assets and by other collateral. Loans and advances to refail and corporate customers include the following

finance lease receivables:

2013 2014
Qutstanding minimum Isase payments 1,006,472 791,280
Gross investment 1,006,472 791,280
Unrealised financlal Income 104,965 85,390
et invastment T T m— e e TTUTTRNLEGT T T T 705,884
Prasent value of mb a9 pay 901,507 705,881
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36. LEASES {continued)

The maturity analysis of gross investment in leases and present values of minimum lease payments under non-canceliable leases is as follows

(residual maturities):

Gross investment

2013

2014

<1year 516,802 267,004
Eyeas T Tt T T ~ B} 432,588 459,360
>5yeﬂrs TErmmmmmmm e/ T T 56.591 64.888
Total 1,006,472 791,280
b} Operating leases
Under operating leases, BCR Group and Bank leases both real estate and movable property to other parties.
Minimum lease payments from non-cancellable operating leases, from the view of BCR Group and Bank as lessor, were as follows:
Group Bank

2013 2014 2013 2014
<1 year 218,300 62,408 37,673 58,050
“iSyears E———r = = = 4533 167,007 175672 160,706
SEyeas = - — T 28251 203,420 283,668 196,218
Total 391,889 422,830 N3 417971
Minimum lease payments from non-canceilable operating leases, from the view of BCR Group and Bank as lessee, were as follows:

Group Bank

2013 2014 2013 2014
<1 year ) 2,028 1,830
15 years s N T K % I =
S&years e — — == T3 L A~
Total 268,200 200,673 4,058 1,830

Lease payments from operating leases recognised as expense in the period amounted to RON 63,940 thousands (2013;
RON 167,773 thousands) for Group and RON 175,927 thousands (2013: RON 305,475 thousands) for Bank.

37. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial or operational decisions. In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the
relationship, not merely the legal fom.

The nature of the related party relationships for those related parties with whom the Group entered into significant fransactions or had significant
balances outstanding at 31 December 2014 and 2013 are detailed below. Transactions were entered into with related parties during the course
of business at market rates.

Transactions with parent

As shareholders transactions were carried out amounts with the parent, at market conditions.
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37.  RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)
Transactions with management
The Group entered into a number of banking transactions with the management in the normal course of business.

Key management personnel are those persans having authority and responsibility for planning, direcfing and controlling the activifies of the
Group. This includes the members of the Supervisory Board and Executive Commitiee.

These transactions were carmed out on commercial terms and conditions and at markst rates.
Transactions with subsidiaries

The Bank holds investments in subsidiaries with whom it entered into a number of banking transactions in the normal course of business. These
transactions were carried out on commercial terms and conditions and at market rates.

The following transactions were camied out with related parties:

Balances and off-balece axposuras with related partles Group
28 X4

in RON thousands Parent Key managesnt  Other related parent Associatas Key manageent  Qther related

personnel parties personnel parifes

Financial assots 104,008 837 63,251, 348,435 - 106 7,026
“Umhandcasheqvaens —————— ‘m'miz’"gq“' e L T, S e e e
i e — o ST ik S et N e
By FeTments N " BT BEEEEE 7 5 ST iam
Loans and advances N 4,143 837 63,251 83,552 - 306 69,676
T Doams andadvarcawilitradil Mstiluls™ T T 7T T T g e e L e e
T Ugans andadvances Withcustefnérs ~— T T T 0 T T AT 56,01 = £ = sgmf,'
Financiel labilities 18,658,434 3,750 8,652 2,475,467 6,077 107 42,520
~ Dot ‘ . Bessan 3780 60,652 475467 8077 00 U5
_Tipdsitsyarks E O mesaaM o 4206 oATBAT - T ma
Weposis Bcusiariers ‘ 3750 8444 . sm e 8,978
~Denvaltve finangIal Ihetruments 1,143,880 . 5 596,010 B A

Loans commitments, financial guarantees ard other

commitments given {notional amount] 1908 h g 2,5% ° &0 1

Loan commitments, financial guarantees and other

commitments received 2.372,009 59 § s20

Darivatives [national amount] 12,159,873 - - 4,133,438 -

Ralated partles: expenses and income generated by transdactions with retated parties Group
208 €%

Keymanageent  Other related Key manageent  Other related

in RON thousands Parent | atiice Parent Associates aassons! parties
Interest Income 309,816 44 15,641 76,691 . 2 2,655
Interest expenses 749,564 " il 11,463 - 539,685 2?1 Lt 95 10-1-
Fee and commission income 10,058 3 10,983 3 “;;-54 . mT m_-mm;—ﬁ ) 10;2;
Feeodcommssonegenses  ma . wm ms . T
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37. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Balances and off-balace exposures with relared parties Bank
FiE] Ei
in RON thousands Pareat Subsidiaries Keymampunt Qv fflmd Parent Subsidiaries  Associates Heymanageent  Othe rlaled
persannel garlies persannal partles
Finanslal assets . AN 16 W W ey o m 1%
Gashand cash equialenls 23 e S0pdr ¥ e T .
Denvative fnancial mstuments . 6802 - . e LN a
Equtyinstuments 21 _1# o ’ 8851
Lomsandadvances 0 el ] 63251 BaM4  da0gE) _ TS
Lo and sl ot O/ AR )5 250 e e
Loans and advances with customers a2 B37 5600 e ] M
Floanciallisbities 0 R#0M%  MEETIe 3760 Bes2  feeAS N3 B0 T WS
" Daposits i RIAIH AT 3750 5852 tiaceAn (TN E I 1 W
Dbyt T BT I S R IR 1
Degosiis bycuslomers TG0 3750 2T L8 87 i
Derivativg financial instruments 1143580 . 586,00 . . .
Loane commitmants, inanclal guarantses and other
commtments given [natla nal ameunt] e e b e ’ .
Loan commitmants, financial guaraniees and other 2372009 23834 5 w2
commitments recelved
Darivatives [notional amouni] 12,025,432 3,133,438
Related parfles: expenses and incoms gonerated by transactions with related partiss Bank
i) L1
{1 RON thousands Parent Subsidiaries Syt - O rgialed Parent Subsldinries  Associates Koy managoart Ot laled
personnel parties personnel parties
Westeon W5 e A @ mm W @ W
Mstegenses kW ww W MM e 4 Mm% W
Divfendincoms ——a - =
Pewleommssionimene MW w3 MeeT MG M8 W
Fee and camnission axpenses Eft o o B5Y .8 - i 1
Transactions with related parfies are done at arm'’s length.
38. PLEDGED COLLATERAL
Group Bank
in RON thousands 2013 2014 2013 2014
"f_l_manclal assets_-_ a_\:allablafnrs?le L - 125,000
Financial assets - held to maturity - pa— e ———— = T Tag3gm0 450,439 428,170 641,208
Total - repurchase agreements 428,170 - 450,438 428,170 788,206

On 31 December 2014, govemment bonds with a total nominal value of RON 433,000 thousands have been used as pledge for funding
received from IFls and to ensure final settiement of interbank multilateral clearing operations according to NBR regulations, for the settiement of
transacfions through ROCLEAR Bucharest, NBR’s Clearing House, and VISA and MasterCard card transactions.
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39. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS - REPURCHASE TRANSACTIONS AND SECURITIES LENDING

2014 Bank
Carrying amount Carrying amount

in RON thousands of red of dated

assets liabilities
Repurchasa agresmenta - . P . O =ranaT e
Financial assets - available for sale = " - == — .__L’f'f’m”f’w. = _M‘]M‘l&t‘ims_z_.
Financial assets - held to maturity 190,866 208,628
Total - repurchase agreements 215,356 322,478

Transfer of financial assets - repurchase transactions were done within BCR Group, therefore eliminated at consolidated level. No repurchase
transactions were at 31 December 2013,

The transferred financial instruments consist of bonds.

The total amount RON 315,856 thousands represents the camrying amount of financial assets in the respective balance sheet posttions for
which the fransferee has a right fo sell or repledge.

Liabiities from repo transaction in the amount of RON 322,478 thousands, which are measured at amorfised cost, represent an obligation to
repay the borrowed funds.

The following table shows fair values of the fransferred assets and associated liabilities which have recourse only to the transferrad assets.
Thess assets and liabilities relate to repo transactions.

2014 Eank
Fair value of
Fair value of associated
transferred assets liabilities
Financial assets - available for sale 125,000 125,000
‘Financial assets - held to maturtty T e - 208,096 208,006
Total 333,096 333,086

Repurchase agreements are primarily financing transactions. They are structured as a sale and subsequent repurchase of securities at a pre-
agreed price and time. This ensures that the securities stay in hands of lender as collateral in case that borrower defaults in fulfilling any of its
obligations.

Cash and non-cash financial collateral involved in these transacfions is restricted from using it by the transferor during the time of the pledge.
The camying amount of assets pledged is included in table 38.

As at 31 December 2014, The Bank concluded a reverse repurchase transaction in amount of RON 90,406 thousands, with maturity on 5
January 2015. The Bank received as collateral a financial asset consisting in a govemment bond issued by Austria having a fair value of RON
87,007 thousands. The Bank has the right fo sell or repledge the asset in the absence of default by the owner of the collateral. As at 31
December 2014, the collateral was not sold or repledged by the Bank.
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40. RISK MANAGEMENT
401.  INTRODUCTION

The risk management function ensures that all material risks are identified measured and properly reporied and plays a key role within the bank,
being involved in the elaboration and review of strategies and decision-making process, as well 2s in all material risk management decisions
regarding material risks which the Bank faces in its commercial operations and activiies.

Risks are managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement and moniforing, subject o risk limits, approval authorities
{pouvoirs), segregation of responsbilifies and other controls. The Bank is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, as well as to
operational and reputational risk.

The risk management main goal is o ensure a responsible, prudent and profitable banking activity which requires the identification,
assessment, monitoring and managing of risks, as well as a relevant risk profile for the bank’s overall activity and for each risk type and
significant/material risk.

The Bank develops and maintains a sound and comprehensive intemal control framework, including specific independent control functions with
appropriate authority to their mission,

The Bank has a holistic risk management framework extended across all its business lines, recognizing fully the economic substance of its risk
exposures and encompassing all relevant risks. The scope of risk management covers the credif, market, liquidity and operational risks, but
also includes concentration, reputational, compliance and strategic risks.

The bank's risk management framework includes policies, procedures, limits and controls providing adequate, timely and continuous
identification, measurement or assessment, monitoring, mifigation and reporting of the risks posed by its activities at the business fine and
institution-wide levels.

The Bank considers that is exposed lo all significant risks that have impact on the financial and/or reputational position of the bank, The risks
are considered significant based an the risk materiality assessment process.

402.  RISKMANAGEMENT STRUCTURE AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board supervises the Management Board in its operational management of the Bank and monitors the compliance of the
activities performed by the Management Board pursuant to the Applicable Legistation the Bank's Charter, the resolutions of the Bank’s general
shareholders meetings and the Bank's strategies and policies.

The Risk Management Committee of the Supervisory Board

The Risk Management Commitiee has an advisory role, being established for the purpose of assisting the Supervisory Board of the Bank in
carrying out its roles and responsibilifies in respect of risk management.

The Audit and Compliance Committee
The Audit and Compliance Committee ensures that the Management Board implements and maintains a proper and effective control system.
Management Board

The Management Board shall have the responsibilities estabfished by the Applicable Legislation, the Bank's Charter and the resolutions of the
Supervisory Board and shall act in accordance with these MB Intemal Rules.

The Management Board is responsible for the overall risk strategy of the Bank, including the risk tolerance/appetite levels and its risk
management framework.
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40. RISK MANAGEMENT (continuad)
Operational Risk Committee

The Operational Risk Management Committee is responsible for the operational risk management throughout the bank. lts main objective is to
decide on the implementation of comreclive measures and risk mitigation actions to proactively manage operational risk.

Risk Functional Line
The management of retail and corporate credit risk, market risk, operafional risk, liquidity as well as reputafional risk and strategic risk, the
assessment of collaterals and other risk related acfivities are consolidated under the Risk functional line. Compliance and Financial Crime
Division, in charge with compliance risk as well as fraud risk management, is reporting under CEQ funcfional line (fraud, legal and reputational
risks).

Supureinary Board
Managerent Board

Eancitivi VB Rigk

Ristail Risk Corpiaate
SanagEme ilrl.;}n-r'.\'ri1'||1|-'-.

Senior Exacullis
DireL Loy

- ik A nistration arns Hrojecis L L oninuity

intemat Audit
Risk Management processes throughout the Bank is audited annually by the intemnal audit function that examines both the adequacy of the

procedures and the Bank's compliance with the procedures. Infemal Audit discusses the results of all assessments with management and
reports its findings and recommendations to the Audit and Compliance Commitiee.

403.  RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

In order to manage the risks that could affect its activity and financial performance, the Bank undertakes the necessary steps to identify the risk
sources, to assess and monitor the Bank's exposres and to have in place strategic, credit, market, liquidity and operational limits.

The Bank has in place a limit management comprehensive framework, which assures compliance with NBR regulations regarding the limits
development, monitoring and reporting process and being in line with the Risk Appetite Statement (RAS).

Risk Appetite Statement (RAS) serves to define the level of risks the bank is willing fo take from a strategic point of view. RAS sets boundaries
and defines limits which are relevant for the bank’s daily operations.

RAS is designed and intended to ensure the going concern perspective by providing early waming to allow for appropriate lead time fo enact
effective countermeasures and address any potential capital or liquicity shortfal.

The limit management framework describes the methodological aspects as regards the limit development, roles and responsibilities, the
processes and tools used.

In the risk materialty assessment process the significant risks are identified and assessed for the whole Bank at all organizational levels, for all
the Bank transactions and activities.

The risk materiality assessment is based on a series of predefined quantitative and qualitative risk indicators reflecting the risk exposure or
volume, the vulnerability of the bank to the particular risk, its recent volatility as well as the actual loss experienced in racent time due to this risk.
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40. RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

For a proper management of significant risks, the bank uses:

- asystem of procedures for the authorization of operations affected by the respective risks, consisting in the drawing up of credit
approval competences/ pouvoirs for the granting of loans and credit-type products, interbank placements and operations with
derivatives
a limit system on countries, sovereign entities, banks, financial institutions affiliated to banking groups, GCC {groups of connected
clients), as well as economic sectors, geographicat regions, specific bank products, unsecured portfolios, market and liquidity limits
a risk exposures reporting system, as well as additional aspects related to these risks, to the proper management levels (reports on
the bank’s exposure to significant risks, the compliance with the rigk limits drawn up by the bank, efc.)

a system for setting up risk limits and their monitoring in compliance with the Bank’s global risk profile, capital adequacy, liquidity,
loan portfolio quality etc.

a system of responsibilities, policies, norms and procedures on intemal control al bank level

a policy for the administration of outsourced activiies

a system for the management of judicial (legal) risk and compliance risk

a system of procedures for unexpected situationsicrisis regarding significant risks, including measures necessary to be undertaken
by the Bank

a system of procedures that prevents an inadequate information usage, in order to avoid the Bank's reputation damage, the
disclosure of secret and confidential information and the usage of information for the staffs personal benefits

criteria for the recruitment and remuneration of personnel, including criteria drawn up in order to avoid conflicts of interest, which
should stipulate high fraining, experience and infegrity standards.

staff training programs

The Bank undertakes the necessary steps in order to ensure and maintain an adequate information system for the identification, measurement,
monitoring and reporting of the significant risks, for the whole Bank and for each depariment or business unit.

The Bank sets up an appropriate separation of responsibilities for all the Bank’s organizational levels in order to avoid the conflict of interest in
front office, risk management and back office activities.

Under these terms, risk management specialists are clearly defimited, from an organizational point of view, from the personnel with
responsibilities in the business development,

The main objectives of these risk management group standards are as follows: supporting business lines to reach thelr projected business
targets by ensuring the taking of quick and efficient crediting decisions and protecting the Bank against banking risks using advanced risk
management methods and principles.

404.  INTEGRATION INTO THE ERSTE GROUP STANDARDS

In 2014 the Bank has adapted all the risk intemnal policies, regulations and procedures as per NBR Regulation no. 5 from December 20, 2013
regarding the prudential requirements for credit institutions.

Also, in 2014 the Bank has continued to implement the necessary measures for its alignment to the standards of the Erste Group and Basel
Accord principles.
- [CAAP on-going implementation and improvement process
- instruments for analyzing, monitoring & forecasting capital adequacy
- new siress test framework and tool
annual Rating Models review based
- redevelopment and implementation of raing models
- update and monitering of risk parameters
- implementation of new Default definition aligned to Group standards
- improving the measures for RWA optirization in a prudent and transparent manner
improving the standards for liquidity risk management; Survival Period Analysis, LCR, NSFR.

BCR has adapted its local Budgeting Process and has implemenied the enhancements as developed at the Group level, in respect of
integration of ICAAP results. The Intemal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) and the capital allocation methodologies are aligned
in the Risk Appetite Statement which is considered in the planning and budgeting cycle.
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40. RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

An illustrative link between the relevant Enterprise Risk Management framework (ERM) concepts is depicted below. If represents a modular
and comprehensive system within the Bank. It is designed to fulfill internal management requirements and extemal regulatory requirements,

particulary ICAAP,
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The Enterprise wide Risk Management/ICAAP framework is designed to support the Bank's management in managing risk portfolios as well as
the coverage potential at all times to assure adequate capital capacity reflecting the nature and magnitude of the bank’s risk portfolio.

The components necessary to ensure all aspects of ERM, regulatory requirements but particularly intemal value adding needs, can be
clustered as follows:
= Risk Appefite Statement
= Risk Architecture including
o Policies & Processes
o  Reporting Framework
o Technical platforms and tools
o RiskData
»  Portfolic & Risk Analytics including
o Risk Materiality Assessment
o  Concentration Risk Management
o Stresstesfing
= Risk Planning & Forecasting including
o  RWA Management
o  Capital Allocation
= Risk-bearing Capacity Calculation (RCC)
= Recovery Plan.

40.5. CREDIT RiSKS

Credit risk means the current or prospective risk to eamings and capital arising from an bomower's failure o meet the terms of any contract
with the credit institufion or its failure to perform as agreed.

Credit risk is inherent in the following forms: lending facilities, contingent iiabilities, commitment liabilities and financial markets transactions.
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40. RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

The Bank grants loans to the corporate customers that can generate appropriate cash-flows, with a good reputation in the business
environment, that have a proper credit rating and to the retail customers which have stable incomes and are frustworthy as regards the
fuffilment of the confract obligations towards the Bank.

Inthe loans approval process the Bank is mainly interested in the first credit repayment source, the customer’s capacily fo generate cash-flows
(for corporate customers} and to gain stable incomes (for retail customers).

In order to assess the performances and financial status of its customers, the Bank uses scoring systems, ratings and methods of analyzing the
financial performances.

Country risk means the risk of exposure to loss caused by events in a foreign country. The concept is broader than sovereign risk as all forms of lending or
investment activity whether to/with private individuals, comporations, credit insfitutions or central administrations are covered.

The implementation of an appropriate framework fo identify, measure, control, report and manage concentration risks is essential to ensure the
long-term Bank viability, especially in case of stressed economic conditions. The concentration risk focuses on the identification and
measurement of concentrations in risk relevant porffolios of BCR Group.

The resulls of the concentration risk assessments are actively used fo proactively steer and manage the bank through the use of results
regarding, for example, the definition of the risk appetite statement, definition of stress factors for stress tests or the sefting of limits.

For the purpose of monitoring and reducing the loans portfolio concentration, BCR established risk concentration kimits for different areas /
portfolios that might induce such a risk.

40.51.  Maximum credit exposure without taking into account any collateral or other credit enhancements

Group Bank
in RON thousands 2013 2014 2013 2014
Assots
ash balarv:es at centralbanks 8,044,408 & 441 A85 8,012,631 6376507
“Biher demand depoaits 271308 HET.TA 221303 T
Toans and facowabIes to sredif Tnatifutio ne TTE077a6 | msaAr 483264 480,566
Financial essets - held for Trading 389,83  AuBsan 367288 366530
Derivativea = v ) T T az e 4978 40,040 54,076
Debt securtties - I T 820,342 angse 328342 41854
Financial asseis designated at fair value tRro Ligh preTil or I0es 22 086 T 26358 22,085 20,358
Bebl soourties 33,080 20.368. 22088 20,388
Loans and advances 1o customara 1° 300023689° 32568088 37980217 92837273
Derivatives Hedge Aacounting ——— 39,223 - 39233 -
Flnanalal asasts - avail@blatar Saks T T T T e e e i, 05 7507268 4,423,306 8490,19
~ DoeBtseesurties . . ~ sae0081 7,607.260 4423388 0496,90
Financral assots - Reld 1o matiity 0236256 2 9578.78. 9,008,936 T BAZBAT
Diebl securlties "7 10,236,250 "7 apre e 50600030 BASAW
Gther aaaals 2. 4280  ~ esosez | | 2fi2d4’
Total an-balance 62,892,736 57,664,069 61,220,027 55,547,948
Contingerd iablites skl =N TZpesaz2 T ' Z@EGess T 2750485 TETOEH
Commiments BET0688. | 2 D@05  34DAAs | B7045W
Total off-balancae 6,198,960 5,580,289 6,371,830 5,574,928
Tetal eredit risk exposure 69,091,695 63,244,358 67,591,857 61,122,878

1 Loans and advances to customers (camying amount)

405.2.  Risk concentration of the maximum exposure to credit risk

The maximum credit exposure to a client as of 31 December 2014 was RON 794,200 thousand (31 December 2013; RON 841,241 thousand).
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40. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
40.5.3.  Risk concentration of the maximum credit exposure by regions

Financial assets, before taking info account any collateral held or other credit enhancements are distributed by the following geographical
regions based on the couniry of residence of the counterparty:

Group Bank
in RON thousands 2013 2014 2013 2014
EU 69,089,595 63,243,410 67,589,757 61.121,987
non-Eu 24000 | e 2,700 B78
TOTAL 69,091,685 83,244, 358 67,591,857 61,122,876
4054. Credit exposure by economic sectors
An industry analysis of the financial assets, before and after taking into account collaterals held or other credit enhancements, is as follows:
Group

Total Exposure
o

Total Exposure
Z

Gross Nﬁt Gr.nss Net maximum
maximum ma ma, exposure™
in RON thousanas gxpogure’ expo sura™ exposure
Private househoids A - 'B_,S_SZ._’!l_ — _G£83.020 3 :5.30.231 N 77.376.9%
Banking and insurance _ 9,352,150 960206 :l)239.6'26‘h A - 5.9"08_%
M anufacturing i} . 5433664 ZaBEB 3734967 ir46dee
Constructlan 4378390 1574980 3,307,292 148101
Public admini ) 21766542 21289852 20201833 8,525,808
Trade 2,744,689 666,560 2267438 1001943
Transport and communication = TTT0uE1 0 347,283 559,306 57.02
Aircunre snsorseiy bos o s | " g
Other service activities y 543,025 231553 1.3_‘?_,611 e ”_9194._;999
Health and soclal wark 15,328 6407  B3.BA #1838
Real estale and other business activitles . T 630,826 2808 46030 34482
Energy and water supply = T T T ameam 764087 4@Epet ""6“52‘79'6
Hotsks and restaurants "' i = T T eega  29m2 . BogH 788
Mining B - 609,961 382271 b785E2 | 283244
Other 506,620 65466 2698 " 7895
TOTAL 69,091,695 44,769,270 63,244,358 43,283,287

* (Gross maximum exposure is exposUre kess provisions,
** Net maximum expasure is exposure less provisions and collaterals i.6. gross maximum exposure less collaterals. The financial affect of collaterals was considered atindividual
client leved, therefore surplus of collaterals was not considered.

Bank
Total Exposure Total Expasure
2013 2014
Gross Net Gross Net maximum
maximum maximum maximum e

in RON thousands exposure” exposure™ axposure® e aha
Private households 8,007,050 5,036,053 7851000 7,268,793
Banking and Insurance - _ 09362 TAZS6E 8046203 | 7586475
M anufecturing 5 — Y ) 1726,300
Comstuction T T T T 4305987 1644606 3254703 1470892
Public administration e N T ®B7o4EDI 026620 20006402 BADE0
Trade 2,507,772 900,888 2,20861 976,441
Transport and communication 861960 351244 m_ 53,260
Agriculture and forestry =5 _1254,428 e 895836 108283 ﬁﬁ."séa'
Otherservigesetivites 455,265 263049 1099381 s94p67
Health and social wark ————— T T g 301 67,94 ©9768 #1935
Real estate and other business activities 662,274 41525 4405683 27448
Energy and water supply 1340,301 760250 __ %0944 621088
Hotels and restaurants 243,992 32,888 97,759 -
Mining . - — eo0pes sarger. 5R9gm $rrdes
Gther T R T D
TOTAL 57,591,857 44,569,310 61,122,876 41,453,348

* Gross maximum exposure is exposure less provisions.
** Net meximum exposure is exposure less provisions and collaterals i.e. gross mevdmum exposure less collaterals,
The financial effect of collaterals was considered at individual olient leve, therefore surplus of collaterals was not consicered.
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40, RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The bank has a Collateral Management Policy which defines the end-to-end collateral management process, as well as the responsibiiifies for
the whole life cycle of collateral in the lending process. The Collateral Catalogue is an integral part of the policy and describes the accepted
collateral types together with their definitions, acceptance criteria and specific requirements for valuation and eligibility.
The main types of collateral accepted by the Bank are as follows:

- Real-estate property

- Movable assets

- Personal & financial guarantees

- Claims & other rights.

The Bank implemented clear revaluation periods compliant with applicable regulations in order to re-assess the market value of collateral.
46.55. Loan Portfolio on time bands

The overdue amount, not impaired split on overdue days buckets (Gross camying amount for Loans and Advances to Customers):

2013 Group

in RON thousands TOTAL Exposure past due, but not impaired

LOANS 1- 30 days 31- 80 days More than 90 days
. Corporate Clients
e o . WE3EE7 T TTTTBATA 99271 w6068
Public Sector = 356 e - 356
SME o R ﬁ?g,ﬁﬁmm 7 __5s5Bav _ 152,404 B 27,635
Municlpaiities 17 == 93,267 ) 42362 e
Real Estate T EsEm 759,905 T TEEID —— B8
Corporate Genter ST R s - -
I. Total Corporate Loans 1,961,331 1,508,706 299,247 155,157
II. Retall Cllents 3
individuals " L 2pBR522 2330086 491031 77,434
Micro ' 18,962 ~ 702,108 ST S\asm T T 5,303
Il. Total Retail Loans 3,007,484 2,422,165 505,492 79,827
Total Loans (IHl) 4,868,815 3,930.871 804,739 234,984
LC - Large Corporates; SME — Small and medium enterprises {risk approach regarding sagmentation)

o 2014 Group
in RON thousands TOTAL Exposure past due, but not impaired
LOANS 1 - 30 days 31- 90 days More than 90 days

I. Corporate Clients
ey T e =y 217,135 ===—ofganLe— = |
Publie Sector T T L = ==
SME SR e ... 879,418 328087 50,099 1,220
Municipaiities | ’ TSpEBEZ. L e Rfegii———————apuonr e
‘Real Estate’ o ] — = - y = -
e G = e S e e T e e
1. Total Corporate Loans 953,413 861,992 90,202 1,220
_II_._RetaiI Ellents
Individuals T 2,521,660 2,084,068 395,388 === (5034,
Micro 80,075 2 - /- - I X T
Il. Total Retail Loans 2,601,736 2,132,204 402,158 58,954
Total Loans (I+I1) 3,555,149 2,994,196 492,360 60,173

LC ~ Large Corporates; SME ~ Small and medium enterprises (risk approach regarding segmentation)
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40. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

2013 Bank
in RON thousands TOTAL Exposure past due, but not impaired
LOANS 1- 30 days 31- 90 days More than 80 days
I.CorPg_r_gle Clients o a— e
LC 1,010,992 824,741 59,282 126,968
PublicSecter T T %6 - o 35
SME = 545,773 41244 18,950 23,508
Municlpalittes " TH3EAg 93,967 42382 -
Feal Estate e BO®O3 B8990 - _ |8
Corporate Center - ol -
l. Total Corporate Loans 1,750,473 1,390,327 210,504 151,331
1l. Retall Clients R LY e W R e e
indlviduals 2843077 2280033 476,375 76,768
Micro 18,962 02,09 ¥,461 2,393
). Total Retail Loans 2,962,039 2,392,042 490,836 79,161
Total Loans (IHI) 4,712,512 3,782,369 701,430 230,492
LC ~ Lange Corporates; SME — Small and medium enterprises (risk approach regarding segmentation)
2014 Bank
n RON thousands TOTAL Exposure past due, but not impaired
LOANS 1 - 30 days 31- 90 days More than 96 days
1. Corporate Clients — —— - i
e T 27138 217,138 - -
“Public Sector T B . T e e = 1]
SME T e 229,188 215,860 7 12580 959
"Municipalities T T 356,862 ~ 36,760 40103 =
RealBotae T . = el
R I— T . T — - - .
I. Total Corporate Loans 803,196 749,545 52,692 959
fl. Retail Clients ) i ’
Tndividuals T 2,508,280 2,088,301 T gares T T TR
WEm-- - - B 80,075 2 71147 6788 3438
il. Total Retail Loans 2,588,355 2,129,538 401,552 57,265
Total Loans (I+HI} 3,391,551 2,879,082 454,245 58,224

LC - Larga Comporates; SME — Small and medium enteryises (risk approach regarding sagmentaiion)

40.56. Impairment assessment

The main considerations for the loan impairment assessment include whether any payments of principal o interest are overdue by more than
90 days or there are any known difficulties in the cash flows of counterparties, credit rating downgrades or infringement of the original terms of
the contract. The Bank addresses impairment assessment in two areas: individually assessed allowances and collectively assessed
allowances.

Individually assessed aliowances

The Bank determines the allowances appropriate for each loan of the individually significant clients -means clients with On and Off balance
exposure higher than 400,000 EUR equivalent or advance on an individual basis. ltems considered when determining allowance amounts
inciude the sustainability of the counterparty's business plan, ifs ability to improve performance once a financial difficulty has arisen, projected
receipts and the expected dividend payout should bankruptcy ensure, the availability of other financial support and the realizable value of
coflateral, and the timing of the expected cash flows. The impairment losses are evaluated at each reporting date, unless unforeseen
circumstances require more careful attention.

Coliectively assessed allowances

Allowances are assessed collectively for losses on loans and advances of the clients that are not individually significant - means clients with On
and Off balance exposure lower than 400,000 EUR equivalent (including credit cards, residential mortgages and unsecured consumer lending)
and for individually significant loans and advances where there is not yet objective evidence of individual impairment. Allowances are evaluated
on each reporting date with each portfolio receiving a separate review.
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40. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The collective assessment takes account of impairment that is likely to be present in the portfolio even though there is not et identified
evidence of the impairment in an individual assessment. Impaimment losses are estimated by taking into consideration the following information;
observed historical losses on the porifolio, number of months since default, current economic conditions, the approximate delay between the
fime a loss is likely to have been incurred and the time it will be identified as requiring an individuaily assessed impairment allowance, and
expecled receipts and recoveries once impaired. Local management is responsible for deciding the length of this period which can extend for as
long as one year, The impairment allowance is then reviewed by credit management to ensure alignment with the Bank's overall policy.

Financial guarantees and letters of credit are assessed and provision made in a similar manner as for loans.

SRR OO |- SN, ... -}
f o * " Neither past dua nar impaired -
Past due but not Individually Total
In ROK thousands LowRigk | Wamagement | o tandard Loss impalred Impairad **
Attenifon i
Othordomand];p;:il:m - - 2103 T e T 221303
mdmanddpualts ek - 221—3;3 B o . 221,303
_Lﬂnsland mnlnblgl tP ﬂgtﬂt mu_ntltul[oqi_ = 429.4_49- 81287 - - 50,736
—— Tuneae mamr e ———_ == - 51,726
Firancial agssts doslgnnt_amﬂ g_t.f:it value thurounl: Erg_f_l!oj_los_{ — ..o . — 2286
' 22,086 ' 22,006
Derlvative financial ingtruments —_ L L o 8204
N o I S LLLL R A —— - 204
Financial assats held for tradicg
Listed debt instruments 627 #5207
Unkstoddebtinstrments " " TR - o 0,135
- SNLT e = 335&&__ R L L N e = 326,342
Loans and Advances to customers®
Corporate Clients 029,308 6,869,741 1305087 30320 196131 1436668 983,945
Retal Clients - RATAD LT I L 4| i 3007484 3855443 21322942
aass s LA 4e6808 9737425 iAo 35dg20 4,968,015 W392M 53,306,787
FInancial investments - avallable for sale .
Listeddobl nstuments e e DABATD 23508 e I = . L R e O
Unlisted debt instruments o lmasEr ~ 1985,87
— . = . A = 11 || N - 82 5,180,001
Financial investmants - keld to maturity .
Debt instruments B 0,235,256 0,235,256
____________ e 10,235,256 _ e YT
TOTAL 30,603,215 9,157.920 1.410,808 350,820 4,968,741 #3892, 69.884.6%

* Loans and advances o customers and off balanca items (i.¢. contingent liabifies such as comimitied credit Ines and guarantees).

** Clients" exposure with provisions specific individual and specific rule based.
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40. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

_2au Group
r - '——ilnllhar past due nor Impalred T
P Past due but not Inllivitlmal.l.y Total
in RON thousands LowRlIsk Attentlon | Substandard Loss Impalred Impalred
Other domand deposils o I _“227?34 ] S e e i s e T
Oter demand deposls N N o 173
Loans and recelvables to credit institutions I - . .._.V 994 B - L
c e T e R e o e T
Financlal assefs designated at fair value threugh prefiterloss . 20358 i _—_ ea = w R — - -
reree—— et e it eemrimeiorio il i&:ﬁu i .-..__ m_“,_ nm,,: e — -
Derivative finuncial instruments B - ﬂg,n_sm .. n'gu:' — e e e e e e T
' " g s 380 7487 EL i BASTE
Financial sssets hoid for irading = 3 . . 0 S )
Ustoadebipstments " T T Y A e e
Unlisted dabtinsinments ,_,,,,,,,,,,m- = = = i U -5,9-"_5,. = ..h _...... — __' e+ — o0l
----- T e e R e —= tis3s
Loans and Advances to customers® " _ RS - e
Corporat s e e fERT® O SEUB oM WM WS T30 2SEeE
Reliios ~ " e RSO 0N WS OB 20U IS NI

_wgsm TmAES A omgR | TASLMS TS9N 46204296

Financial investmants - avalilabis for sale )

Listed dsbl Inskumants L e s e o e = a s e gy
Ulsted debtnsinments 7 7T T ™ )
R S 2 B - T = 3 1507529
Financial inveatmanta « hald o maturity ~ T _Bee_ e N - d
Debt instruments = —— - N T ) . L.
— e e W
TOTAL 42,697,861 7,312,535 385,603 528,38y 3,555,498 5,980,078 64,440,904
*Loans and advances to customers and off balance items (.. confingent liabiiies such as commitied credit lines and guarantees).
** Clients' exposure with provisions specific individual and specific nile based.
28 Bank
I Neithar past dus ner Impilrai o ’
w: - T A :n_agoment o Past due but not Indlv!dually Total
in RON thousands [ LowRisk Attention Substandard Loss impalred Impyired **
?)Tli;r—ri_omand deposits - 221301 ] b Lk ]
Other demand deposits 221,303 221363
Loans and recelvables to cradit Istitutions T N9 73727 AR
R 413,262
Financia assels designated attalrvaoe frough profitartoss T s —— et o S N
T T g . ) T T Tam
Darivatiya financial instrumants = i 81,79 H.m
e e e e e s e < e i = L R S RS, T et SRR | /1 B
Financial assets held for trading
Listed debtinsiruments e e ——— == - } 20T
linisted debtminments R - B
326,342 - - - - - 316,342
Loans and Advanges to customars®
Corporale Cllenls . =y 2859 004054 0TI %082 7590473 846375 32309266
Retail Cients 1341243 1775666 60,038 296203 2575220 B.714.205
R o BAEITE05  BTBOAN  A4MBOE  AR0MN0 _ 4TRSR 12,224,595 52,1 560
Financlal investments - available for sale
Listed dablinsiuments 228974 ww . a2 2455008
“Unfsted debt instruments. S T e - 1988378
4—.1-81,352 235,108 - - 926 - B 4,423,386
Finangial investmants - held to maturity
“Deblnskumeris " owesm - - E S0093%
e e e o o e e SA0843
TOTAL 318,791,676 9,191,720 1,410,308 350,820 4,714,438 12,221,595 66,680,058

* Loans and advances to customers and off belance items (i.g. confingent liabifies such as committed credit ines and guarantees).
** Clients' exposure with provisions specific individual and specific rule based.
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40. RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

24 Bank
Neither past due nor impaired
N anagoraont Pai-t due. but net Indiv!dnaljy Total
(1 RON thousands Low Risk I s Sumﬂam!an‘li Loss impaired Impaired

SiheqGemsndidenceiis e e e A e ]
Other demand deposits N e e e 227,734 -
‘Loans and recelvablas to credil Institutions " :2§'ap§'|u_ _ 2 S . ...
_ =SSR S e e iy AIEEEL

Fimancial assots deskgraiod at o yaus trowgh proftorioss s - . ST T Tt 0 T T mw
20,358 0 Lo LN eSS D —

Dorlvative fnancial instraments _::_ :_ng__r :":_s_,a_él:___" e s e R e L — B4976
- 125,108 I T e BABG

Financial assets held for trading 4 P e e e = = =
Lnteddobtnsiumeris " e T
Unisieddebtinstuments e ' e T T T T T T T T e
AL e e e e e e S 1 L
Loans and Advances to customars® " :"— S . - S .
Corporale Clents _.. (DROEW  amEY  MOB  A0M3 MG SOOM MR
Rl Clenis o ' TR vesn | amems  mesm | 6m 255 L 2BAH 08T
(5433508 T4EN | dtAqer BARAN MRl 871628 45553383
Financlal Investments - available for sale : : e S s L T - i
Usteddeolinsmumerts 451088 M am : T
Uiseddobirsiumens " T - T T T ol e 3
JU 2 X . Y T}

Financlal investments - hald to maturity e _ - N | —
O T ST
I S e = —aana
TOTAL 41,204,157 7,288,076 304,606 526,218 1,391,551 3,781,628 61,576,237

* Loans and advances to customers and off balance items (i.e. contingent iabiliies such as committed credit ines and guarantees).
** Cliants' exposure with provisions spedific individual and specific rle based.

Breakdown of past due exposure and not covered by specific allowances by risk category is based on the intemal rating.

The criteria used for mapping into risk grades in four different categories is the following:

¢ Low risk - Typically regional customers with well-established and rather long-standing relationships with the Bank or large
intemationally recognized customers. Strong and good financial position and no foreseeable financial difficulties. Retail clients having
long refationships with the bank, or clients with a wide product pool use. No late payments currently or in the most recent 12 months.
New business is generally done with clients in this risk category;

*  Management atention - Vulnerable non-retail clients that may have overdue payments or defaults in their credit history or may
encounter debf repayment difficulties in the medium-term. Retail clients with limiled savings or probable payment problems in the
past friggering early collection reminders. These clients typically have good recent histories and no current delinguencies;

¢ Sub-standard - The bomrower is vulnerable to negative financial and economic developments. Such loans are managed in
specialized risk management departments;

¢ Loss-One or more of the default crileria under Basel 3 are met: full repayment unlikely, interest or principal payments on a material
exposure more than 90 days past due, restructuring resulting in a loss to the lender, realization of a loan loss, or initiation of
bankruptcy proceedings.

40.6. Liguidity risk management

Liquidity risk arises from the potential inability to meet all payments obligations when they come due. The Bank manages the liquidity risk with
the purpose of maintaining an adequate fiquidity, so as fo cover at all times its financial commitments on all time bands.

The Bank pays careful attention fo liquidity risk management by setting fundamental objectives such as ensuring the necessary funds to cover,
atany time, all financial obligations assumed by the Bank, and setting an appropriate balance sheet structure, for minimizing any potentially
negative effecs, In this respect, the Bank concentrates its efforts on identifying the liquidity risk sources, evaluating its risk exposures and
setting appropriate limits fo mitigate the possible consequences of liquidity risk.
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40. RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

The Bank assesses ts liquidity / liquidity risk by:
¢ Analyzing the structure of assets, in terms of their liquidity and marketability;

[ ]

«  Analyzing main currencies liquidity, both individually and aggregated.

L

resources and placements in terms of their structure and maturity,;

balance sheet assets and liabilities;
Establishing minimum limits for the liquidity ratios;
Menthly computation of certain liquidity ratios.

For every financial year the Bank prepares;

maintain an adequate portfolio liquidity, by re-evaluating it in line with the business environment requirements;
?

successfully overcome a potential crisis.

Analyzing liabilities (in terms of their volatility) and off-balance sheet elements (implying potsntial insfouts of funds);

Asset and Liability Management (ALM), focused on suitably determining the appropriate balance sheet structure, by comelating

Computing and monitoring the liquidity ratios by maturity ranges, based on the future cash-flows analysis, in terms of on- and off-

A strategy for managing liquidity under normal circumstances encompassing the main objectives of the Bank, with the purpose fo

A contingency funding plan that is a strategy for managing liquidity in crisis situations, comprising the measures required to

The table below presents the proper evolution of the ratio of liquid assets o customers (banking and non-banking customers) liabilities:

M3 2014

i —p Gy _ R

December 43.0_3_ iR 44.83

Pwersge e e, : = 968 43.59

Wax_ R TP " e LT T T T agTWe T T 466

Min - ol == == v 366 4258
40.7. MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk of loss that could arise from adverse changes in the market prices and rates, equity prices, foreign exchange rates and

interest rates, the correlations between them and their levels of volatility.

In terms of market risk, the Bank focuses on:

»  setting an appropriate structure of its assets and liabiliies, enabling it to avoid significant negative impact on the Bank’s activity and

financial performance, should the interest rates, foreign exchange rales and market prices change;

»  identifying the causes behind the market risk, assessing its exposure to such risks and aking necessary steps to mitigate them.

The evolution of the foreign cummency (‘FX") positions, as percentage of own funds, were:

Exposure on currencies 2013

2014

% of own funds % of own funds
Average
EUR ETI?%nT"——_ - = e o e 2:::"“ == _"”"ig.%"
usp Aversge —__—m__mm,_._ R« M A — 0gs T 064
MaxImum AT A
Total Average 0,82 0,95
Maximum 4,92 11,44
The value at risk ("VaR") of the total FX position was increased accordingly for 2014, as presented below:
1 day, 99%, RON VaR
The VaR of the total FX position
2013 2014
Avarage valug = - - - 21.495 22,528
Maximum value 47.814 188,756
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Currently the Bank computes the VaR using the Historical simulation method. The parameters of the VaR computation are; holding period = 1
day, confidence level = 98%, lambda = 1, length of risk factors time series = 730 days. This is the standard across Erste Group.

Below, one can see the structure of the internal market rigk limits:

»  Limits for the Trading Book

» Limits on the FX position:
o  Exposure (Delta) (for three categories: i) EUR and USD, ii) other currencies except EUR and USD, iii) Total FX position)
¢ 1Day, 99% - VaR limit;

¢« Limits of Fixed Income Trading Book:
o  Present value of a basis peint (‘PVBP”)
o 1Day,99%-VaR

«  Limits for money market {“MN™):
o  PVBPlimits for MM (for RON, EUR, USD, other curencies and total):
o 1Day, 99% - VaR limit

* Limits on common stock position:
¥ [fthe volatility index VDAX (Reuters: Y V1XI")is at most 30
o Exposure (delta) limits {for five categories: i) Erste, ii) Fondul Proprietatea, iii) All except Erste, iv) Others single position, v)
Total)
o 1Day, 99%-VaR
v [fthe volatiiity index VDAX (Reuters: “/V1XF") exceeds 30 then the Delta limits above are reduced by 35%.

» Aggregated VaR limits for Trading Book:
o forFl TB plus MM
o forthe whole TB.

+ Stop Loss limits

> Limits for the Banking Book

¢ Limits for fixed incoma
o  PVBPlimis for F1 BB - AFS (for RON, EUR, USD, cther currencies and total):
o 1Day,99%-VaR

During 2014 there were no market risk limit breaches.

The Bank developed specific norms for transactions with financial derivatives, used both as products offered to customers for risk mitigation and
for hedging against the market risk exposure of its own portfolio.

As a member of Erste Group, the Bank was included in 2009 in the program of trading activity centralization set up at Holding level and
according to the business model BCR- Erste Group, starting with October 2009, all trading operations were fransferred on a centralized trading
book on holding level. The Bank foreign exchange position is closed and is transfarred to holding and the result is retumed to BCR on a pro-
rated basis, depending on the contribution of the local trader and the volume of transactions.

4074,  Sensitivity analysis
40.7.1.1. Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk of adverse change in the fair value of financial instruments caused by mavement in market interest rates. This type of

risk arises when mismatches exist between assets and liabilities {including off-balance-sheet items) in respect of their maturities or of the timing
of interest rate adjusiments.
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40. RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

Beginning with December 2013, the Bank performs an assessment of potential changes in the economic value of the bank due to changes in
interest rates, in line with the NBR's Regulation no. 5. All financial instruments, including transactions not recognized in the balance sheet, are
grouped info maturity bands based on their remaining term to maturity or ferm to an interest rate adjusiment.

The change of economic value is the resutt of applying sudden and unexpected changes in interest rates — standard shocks — towards on- and
oft-balance sheet items, prescribed by the NBR. The size of the standard shocks is 200 basis points, in both directions, regardiess of the
currency. The economic value of the Bank is then computed by mulfiplying the net position with an “adjustment factor” that varies between
0.08% and 26%. As a result of applying the standard shocks, the decrease of a credit institution's economic value must not exceed 20% of its

own funds.

The following table lists the net positions on each time band and main cumency fogether with the comesponding weighted net positions as of:

mllllon RON
December 2013 RON EUR Other
M aturity band Neat pas. Waelghted Nelpos. Waighted Netpos. Welghtad
s Tmonth 6.557.5 525 166121 133 64137 051
‘> imanths,= 3 months 1a35170) (053) 82107 2.63 5764 051
SAmonths.sBmonths B " Ts3es T 389 5025 677 (25166) (189
> monihs, s & months i = (258.00) (369) (147849 L) 23m @32
>1year.s Zyears T m——— - (B8.08) (385) 80041 2.7 {72.8) (2.00)
>3 years, < dyears = - o 76.44 702 193525 86.89 (7133) (320}
>3 years, < 4 years T T T mes . BB (872.38) (5356}  (6556) (4.63)
>dyears < byears 18764 87.71 (105.13) [CA) 364 0.30
>5years, < Tyears T T T Terare ®e3e 2@n . 2985 184 "Tom
>7 years,< 10 years DE&T w01 @97.1) (3940 0z (0.23)
> years, = B years T T Tsas  oby (1388 (777 ‘020 “opa
>Byears S E0yars o o 297 0.87 (311.69) (ro58) " o 0.00
>20 years e — (0.7 (029 (5389)  (WO03) BT 0.00
Total 30164 {65.15) {13.03)
million RON
Decembar 2014 RON EUR Qther
Maturity band Net pos. Weighted Net pos. Weighted Nai pos. Weighted
S 1 monih @35.40) [0.40)  4,336.17 347 [80.05) 0.06)
5T monihe, =3 months s - e ' {a51553) 7 (f1.25)  560.33 1.79 181.48) 0.52)
“s"3'months, = 8 months B 7 7 C o782 (374.40) 2 70) (275.07) (188
> & months, S 12 manths TTE T (88T T {243y  (70.14) (1.00)  (274.85) = (3.93)
> 1 year, € 2 yoars e — 256861 7148 T 2,11847 T BBEB {78 i0.48)
>Zyears 5 Tyvars E — 2,14505 0627 (70825) ~ (3 (27.08) 0 T MBS
>3 years, s dysars " D | | T CTTEes T T@e2d) T T (e TO@TM) T TQEE)y
3ayaars, £ 5years e #2210 40387 41422 “Uaip @998) (@231
>5years, < 7 years . - - == T76035 T C7e0a | gfe7E  FH 4 (86.81) (606}
> 7 years, £ 10 years T @eddz) @i 20638 | 4083 (8413 (8.80)
>710 years, £ 15 years - - T Ts28'e4d "' "see? 2000 647 T 000
>5years, s Myears e 1ed7 T 7T E5es (BeeSdy TTEE.ED) T o T TTdho
»30°years . (.3 70T 58 T [@AEn T T p0d T T don”
Totai 308.54 30,50 (26.78)

The net position is calculated as the follow: long positions are offset with short positions on each maturity band, resulting in one long or short
position on every maturity band. These long and short positions are weighted with the weight factors established by NBR, which reflect the
sensitivity of positions to potential inferest rate changes on various maturity bands.

The following tabie lists the change in the economic value of the Bank as percentage of the own funds as of:

December 2013 RON December 2014 RON
Own funds 4,284,514,607 Own funds 5,720,521,522
1‘_:.‘, RON 301,641,478 @ RON 398,542,961

The Potentlal E § R 65,153,422 The Potential 2 g [E0R 80,497,203
Decrease in the > |USD 13,033,538 Decrease in the E 1>B USD— ''''' 26,7-'54?845
Economic Value £ B ey i B AT rEl
Total 379,828,438 Economic Value | £ Total 455,805,013

% of Own Funds 8,87% % of Own Funds 7,.97%

The Bank also analyses the sensitivity of the net interest income (NI1) and AFS reserve (equity) to interest rate changes.
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40, RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The following table shows the changes in NIl for a 1 year period and the impact on AFS reserve (equity) due to a paraflel shift of the yield curves
with £1%, £2%. The analysis is based on December 31st, 2014 data.

In RON thousands

Shift se“':n"" oy i.: ss '::vs':f.f
{aquity)

— = ~ T S (180,082) (304,857)

+%h (86.260) (156,593)

B e e e e 26408 125038 _

2% 44,801 212,324

40.7.1.2. Currency risk

The potential impact in profit or loss and equity of variation of foreign exchange cumencies EUR/RON and USD/RON with £5% is presented in
the below fable:

P /L Baensitivity Equlty sensitivity
LChange In foraign Impact for EUR Impaci for USp Impact for EUR Impact for USD
in RON thousands exchange currencles position posilion position position
2013 .- T : (20495 100.79 (1692.56) 84,66
5% 2,0M.95 (160.73) 1692.56 {84.86)
2014 [ .- D 11 X }) 4.203.68 {3,58742) 3,53109
-5% 4270.74 {4.203.68) 3,567 42 (3,53108)

40.8. OPERATIONAL RISK

Operafional risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed intemal processes, people and inadequate internal systems or which did
not properly fulfiled their function, or from extemal events, and includes legal risk.

IT risk means a subcategory of operational risk, that concerns the current or prospective risk of adverse impact on eamings and capital, arising
from inadequate IT strategy and policies, information technology or pracessing, in terms of manageabilty, integrity, controflabiiity and continuity
thereof, or from inadequate use of the insfitution’s information technology.

Model risk means the potential loss a credit institution may incur, as a consequence of decisions that could be principally based on the output of
intemal models, due to errors in the development, implementation or use of such models.

The Bank cannot expect to eliminate ail operational risks, but through a control framework and by monitoring and reacting to potential risks, the
Bank is able to manage these risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties, access control, authorization and reconciliation
procedures, staff awareness (including trainings) and an interal risk assessment process, including the use of intemal audit,

For an adequate management of its business and the risks it is exposed during its regular activity, the Bank developed and manages a solid
and comprehensive internal control framework, adapted to ifs size and complexity, and structured on three intemal control layers:
*  The layer of operational units and support functions, who bear the main responsibility for defining and enforcing adequate intemal
control procedures,
o The risk management and compliance functions tayer, and
¢ Theinternal audit layer.
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40. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

For managing operational risks, the Bank uses and developed a variate sel of tools, processes, methods and pracices:
+ the operafional risk events collection, monitoring, analysis and reporting, using a dedicated software and a central database;

the risk data quality assurance by verifying and reconciling the informations received from different sources within the Bank;

a Risk and Control Self-Assessment process;

defining a set of Key Risk Indicators and monitoring the alert limits set up;

scenario analysis;

permanent enhancement of personnel risk management expertise, in order to improve the ability to identify, assess, mifigate, control,

monitor and report operational risks; and

*  assurance of a permanent communication between the units and refevant persons in charge with the risk management, bath top-
down and down-top (risk reporting and decision) and on horizontal {communication befween intemal control functions and with
operational units).

In order to decrease the Bank's exposure to operational risk, the main directions targeted in 2014 were:

*  permanent development and improvement of control environment using;

o  implementation and review of infemal procedures/ normsf work instructions;

development and regular monitoring of the key risk indicators (KRI) defined at the level of specific businesses;
the RCSA mitigating measures follow up/ reporting process;
risk assessments in case of outsourced material activities;
increase the operational risk culfure;
*  improvement of koss data collection framework by assuring reporting completeness and operational risk data quality;
*  escalating the major operational risk issues at the level of the Operational Risk Management Commitiee, the forum for discussing the
main operational risk issues and establishing the related mitigation action plan with the involvement of all stakeholders;
the decrease of the number of overdue internal audit points;
significant progress made in respect of the safe storage and archiving project;
developing means/ criteria for the fraud identification and prevention;
concluding insurance policies against operational risks;
the regular review of the plans drawn up for the re-running of activity and for unforeseen situations.

O 0 0O o

The Bank remains committed to the objective of increasing shareholder value by generating and growing business that is consistent with his risk
appefite, and by building more effective risk management capabilities. Responsibility for risk management resides at all hierarchical levels within
the Bank. The Bank is seeking an appropriate balance of its businesses, continuing to build the risk management capabilities that will help fo
deliver growth plans in a controlled enviranment.

Starting with October 2010, the Bank uses the AMA (Advanced Measurement Approach for operational risk} as per National Bank of Romania
and Austrian Financial Markets Authority approval.

40.9. LEGAL RISK

Legal (judicial) risk is defined as the loss risk following fines, penalfies and sanctions for which the credit institution is liable in case of not
applying or deficiently applying the legal or contractual dispositions, as well as the fact that the contractual rights and fiabilities of the credit
institutions and/or of its counterparty are not established adequately.

For an adequate legal management and in order to profect ifs legal and business interests, the Bank:

+  ensures the establishment of an efficient legal function and an adequate monitering of the Bank's exposure to the legal risk;

= periodically reviews the infemal regulation framework and the legal acts templates used in the current activity (e.g. credit agreements
and deposit agreements), and analyses their adequacy as well as their alignment to the Bank's activity, the banking practices and
the applicable legal framework;

¢ develops and implements processes and control mechanisms for complying with the interna! and extemal regulatory framework;

»  manitors the course of the litigation portfolio and assesses the causes having led to the litigation, for the purpose of improving the
business practice and the legal documents attached fo its products and services:

*  provides adequate and high quality intemal legal assistance to its staff and the management of the Bank,
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40, RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
40.10. REPUTATIONAL RISK

Reputational risk means the current or prospective risk to eamings and capital arising from adverse perception of the image of the credit
institution on the part of customers, counterparties, shareholders, investors or supervisory authorities.

For an adequale reputational risk management and in order to enhance its reputation in the eyes of its clients, business partners, banking
industry and regulatory and supervisory/ oversight bodies, the Bank:

s+ ensures the reputational risk management in a shared responsibility between communication, intemal confrol and risk management
functions, aiming mainly at removal of resident risks inconsistencies and contradictions;

»  promoles and enforces clear corporate values, social responsibility and business practices, non-discriminatory and fair o all parties,
including by defining and enforcement of standards and codes of conduct on the manner in which bank staff should interact with
customers and third parties so that the bank's public image to be represented in accordance with s vision and values;

= aims ata good knowledge and understanding of its customers and pariner's needs, of their opinions about products and services, as
well as the achievement of a high degree of cusiomer satisfaction in respect of his products and services, staff behavior and the
working environment in his operational units;

s collects, analyzes and uses information related to customer and banking industry perception and opinion, in order to improve its
cperations, products and services;

¢ aims at ensuring compliance with regulations in force and at selecting customers and business partners so that his public image not
to be negatively impacted by being involved in acts or ilegal activities;

*  engages in social responsibility and environmental protection projects in the interest of community where it is pursuing affairs.

4011,  CAPITAL ADEQUACY

40.11.1. Capital management

The primary objectives of the Bank's capital management are to ensure that the Bank complies with the capital requirements and that the Bank
maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximize shareholders’ value.

The Bank manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of
its aclivities.

40.11.2. Capital adequacy

The Bank monitors the solvency ratios, at individual and consolidated level, according to Basel Ill requirements, based on financial statements
prepared in accordance with Interational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), taking into consideration also the local provisions. Starting

2014, considering new Basel [ll requirements, the Bank also monitors the CET1 Ratio, both individual and consolidated level.

Solvency Ratio, CET1 Ratio and Tier1 Ratio, as of 31 December 2014 (Basel Ill) and 31 December 2013 (Basel I1), based en provisional data,
were:

Group Bank
in RON thousands 2013 2014 2013 2014
_CET1 Capital e Y — . — FE——— .- - T - A )
JieriCapital - o » = . .G336083 398063 4271065 3857000
TotalOwnFunds 9H4520 " 604681 4271065 5,586,802
Risk Weighied Assats T e BBABIBI  © IUEGTIE__ 20950852 20534206
CETRalle e A Taak T T AGeY
JerReto ™ T L T e oo BEIW T TURASK T REG%  HO6%
SolvencyRalio . DAB2% BoeK WMe0% BI2%

The main reason for differences in RWA and own funds computed for Bank and Group is the prudential filter used for BCR solo reporting
toNBR. In December 2013 the full gap between prudential value adjustments and IFRS provisions was used for RWA and own funds
computation in BCR solo reporting (4,552 mil. RON). In December 2014 this gap decreased significantly and only 80% of the gap was used for
RWA and own funds computation in BCR solo reporting (685 mil. RON), as this prudential filter will be phased out until 31.12.2017.
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40. RISK MANAGEMENT (confinued)

Prudential fitter represents the gap between local prudential value adjustments (RAS provisions) and IFRS provisions. According o NBR
Regulation no. 572013, the usage of the prudential fiter will be phased out until 31.12.2017 (the percentages applicable are 80% in 2014 and
will reduce by 20% p.a. until 0% in 2018). In Romania, IFRS provisions are determined by each bank using its own methodology according to
IFRS standards; prudential value adjustments are determined based on a stricter methodology provided by NBR {a matrix considering debt
service, financial performance and legal procedures). According to the legislation, prudential filters are used only for individual level (BCR
standalone); for consolidated level {BCR group) the IFRS provisions are considered.

The total credit risk capital requirement is calculated as 8% of the risk weighted assets. Also, in order fo calculate the capital adequacy ratio, the
Bank computes a capilal requirement for market and operational risks, both individual and consolidated level,

During 2013 and 2014, the capital requirements for Group and Bank were fulfilled as per legal authorities’ stipulations.

41. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Fair value is the price that would be received fo sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value is best evidenced by a quoted market price, if such exists. Credit Value Adjustment/Debt Value
Adjustment is included in the fair value of derivatives and there are immalerial both at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

The Bank uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:
»  Level 1. quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or fiabillies:
*+  Level 2: other techniques for which allinputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly
or indirectly; and
»  Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable
market data,

1. Finangial instruments whose fair value is disclosed in the notes

The following table shows fair values and fair value hierarchy of financial instruments whose fair value is disciosed in the notes for the year-end
2014

204
Group Bank
Falr value hierarchy F air value hierarchy
Falr valua Fair value
in RON thousands Leval 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Lavel 2 Leval 3
ASSETS
Loans andrecelvables " 32285715 26,530 32,259,185 32,575,901 - - 32575801
Loansandadvances 32285745 . 36,530 _32,260185 32,575,901 - 42,575,901
with credit mstitulions T 625445 = 26530 49098 aogee T T T s
wih customers LBWeOZTIO - ae02%0 %0605 - 32,095,055
Held-to-maturity | 1 . M.245,955 10153556 92999 . "sbsoero  sosoea_ .
Debt securities i 1.245,955 10,53556 92,399 - 9050070 _ 9,050,070 =
Loans and advances - - - -
LIABILITIES
Financial liabllities measured at amortised cost 55,387,986 178,041 54,408,945 52,893,352 _ - 1%60,533 _ 517320M
Deposits e 54020508 . 7,508 64003998 61364361 - . 51361301
from banks — e HOYAN oo FHOB WOTIN0E  BIGIR22 i e e e DT BAB22
from customers 29,930,092 N . 39530092 37,599,979 — = 37,580,979
Dbtseclms issued — e ————— = 1’50.@33_ —— _t‘i_’_ﬁﬁ_,_ﬁﬂi”m; == —“1.30”533 m e 1,'60,%! e
Other financial liabiities. _ T 4T _doBgar T arsm T T e

The fair value of loans and advances to customers and credit insfitutions has been calculated by discounting fufure cash flows while taking into
consideration interest and credit spread effects. The Interest rate impact is based on the movements of market rates, while credit spread
changes are derived from PD's used for intemal risk calculations. For the calculation of fair value loans and advances were grouped into
homogeneous portfolios based on rating method, rating grade, maturity and the country where they were granted.
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41. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

The fair values of financial assets held to maturity are either taken directly from the market or they are determined by directly observable input
parameters (i.e. vield curves).

For liabilities without confractual maturities (e.g. demand deposits), the carying amount represents the minimum of their fair value.

The fair value of issued securities and subordinated liabilities measured at amortized cost is based on market prices or on observable market
parameters, if these are available, otherwise it is estimated by taking into consideration the actual interest rate environment and in this case they
are 2liocated to Level 2.

The fair value of other liabilities measured at amortized cost is estimated by taking into consideration the actual interest rate environment and
own credit spreads, and these are allocated to Level 3,

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of the Group’s financial instruments n 2013.

Financial assets

Loans originated by the Group and leases are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rates iess any impairment reserve. The
interest rate of approximately 95% of these assets is variable based on current market rates, and consequently, the camying amounts of these
assets approximate their fair value,

For deposits with banks, amorfized cost is estimated to approximate fair value due to their short-term nature, interest rates reflecting current
market conditions and no significant transaction costs.

The remeasured cost net of any reserve for impairment of investments thal are not listed at a stock exchange is estimated to approximate their
fair value.

Financial liabilities
The amortized cost of customer deposits and borrowings is considered to approximate their respective fair values, since these items have

predominantly short re-pricing terms, canry interest rates reflecting current market conditions and are setiied without significant transaction costs.

2. Financial instruments measured at fair value in the balance sheet

Group
Marked to madel basad Marked to model based
Qﬂn;u::::::::::.p:t:::l:n on observable marke!  on non-observable Total
data Level 2 inputs Level 3
In RON thousands 2013 204 201 204 208 2014 2013 204
ASSETS
Financial 2ssals hekl Tor lrading 467 25403 T N [T 373508 e
T Demvalves hadfortadog — R YT PR ) G2ibt BB
Gilher rading assels* g 4674 2BA0S.  sM3 a0 L YU Ui U dgger
Financial assels des jynated at FY (Nough prof or 1038 - oHE e = BE T R~ W1 BAbET
Financial assets availabla for sale™ e . 552203 TgmABS 7DADS 47080 23064 350280 5omJ7e3  7ASSeAl
Derivalivas - Hedge accourting ¥ 025 I e 30233 4
Total Assets 3,260,232  7567,129 2,118,662 M7T,877 279,050 275471 5,500,044 BA50477
LABRITIES
Finareial liabilities hekd for trading - 86,061 70,127 - . 66,081 2T
Derivatives heldfor (rading Y ——— e, G B W61 e
Derivalives - Hedge accounting ~ R T e - 10BTZE S0
Total Liabillties = - LNIAD T ki — T TFIIEE TR T
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41. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

Bank

e del based
Guated markst prices in Marked to model basad Marked to model base

X onohsarvable market  on non-observable Total
active markels Level 1 data Lovel 2 inputs Level 3

in RON thousands 2013 20 2013 200 201 201 2013 20M
ASSETS
Financial assets held fortrading - 4674 26409 7080 BOSM . 763 1 37029
__ Derivaflves held fortrading S P T R )

Oertadrgassets® T T T T G omae T Tmemd M T w266
“Financial assets esignated ai FV through profitor s o8 4m T T
Financial assels avaliabie for sale™ T 3o BAEN sk S 672 00 4453260  6A36AZ
Derivatives - Hadge accaunting K = = SQ.E_ - 39233
Total Assats 3,269,231 6505810 1350507  150.805 278,789 275224 4,893,607 7,000,839
LIABILITIES
Fimancial liabities hefd for trading = 86,061 70,27 & . 66,061 0,27

Darivafives heid fostrading N - LB mE - wm  mw
Dedvathes-Hedgeaccounting T T dime mas ’ e766 G640
Total Liahilities : - 1483327 82412 . - 4E3327 624,02

*Durfng 2014, ISIN RO1015DBNO10 in amount of RON 654 thousends was reclassified from level 2 to level 1.and ISIN ROUNVRACNGRS in amount of RON 450 thousands was
reciassitied from level 1 fo levei 2,

** During 2014, ISIN RO1015DEN01G in amount of RON 84,848 thousands, ISIN RO1316DBN053 in amount of RON 575,322 thousands, ISIN RO1118DBN024 in amount of RON
710,836 thousands, ISIN ROO717DBNO38 in amount of RON 45,763 thousands were redassified from level 2 to level 1.

The reclassification of the securities between level 1 and level 2 has appeared as a result of analysis and implementation by the bank of the
new group fair value hierarchy documentation.

Govemment bonds that are quoted on active markets are classified as Level 1 in Fair Value Hierarchy, except those which are fliquid and are
classified as level 2 in Fair Vaiue Hierarchy, All govemment bonds have real ime prices on a daily basis in Kondor from CDMS tool {Central
Data Management Solution), implemented at the Group level.

BCR has also in portfolio, municipal bonds classified according to Fair Value Hierarchy as Level 3.

In order to mark fo market the municipal bonds classified as Level 3 in Fair value Hierarchy, the bank proceeds as follows:
*  Municipal bonds are mark to market by the Kondor+ tool, using standard methods implemented for the bank sector, by Thomson
Reuters. The method of valuation is based on yield curve named BondBench.
¢ Theyield curve used by Kondor+ tool is developed using linear inferpolation method and is based on observable data from the
market. The aigorithm used is as foliows:
o Fordue days higher than 3 months, Kondor+ uses BID quotation from Reuters web page ‘ROBMK=RO (RO BMK
FIXING”), which represents an benchmark for govemments bonds in RON
o  Fordue days lessthan 3 months, Kondor+ uses ASK quotation from Reuters web page ‘RBOR” (fixing ROBID-ROBOR)
+  Add to the BondBench yield curve, a margin which incorporates the credit risk of each debt issuer. These credit risk margins are
based on non-observable data from the market.

The municipal bonds held by BCR as of 31-December-2014 have notional outstanding value of RON 238,903,671, out of which RON
218,587,267 in avaitable for sale portfolio and RON 20,316,404 in fair value through profit or loss portfolio. For a goad understanding of
valuation method, we presented below, the impact of change in current value as a change of non-observable data:

*  Ifthe credit risk margins rise by 50% from the current value, than the impact will be RON {145,811).

»  [fthe credit risk margins rise by 100% from the current value, than the impact will be RON (291 622).

s Ifthe credit risk margins rise by 50bp, than the impact will be RON {565,616).

»  [fthe credit risk margins rise by 100bp, than the impact will be RON (839,610).

The methodology used for valuation of the bonds is based on standard methodology used in Report named “Change in economic bank value
as a response {o vartation of inferest rates”
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41.  FAIRVALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES {continued)

BCR has also in portfolio investments in equities at cost classified according to Fair Value Hierarchy as Level 3. These minority participations
held by BCR in available for sale portfolio as of 31-December-2014 have total book value of RON 27,185,203

Movement in Level 3 of financial instruments measurment at fair value Group and Bank
Gains / Losses in profit _ Gains ] Logses In other
in RON thousands 202 or loss comprehansive income  SalesiSetlements 2013
R e e LTt s Ty i ¥,
Financial assets designated at fai value trough Profit & Loss nan 1018 o T e e
Financil assels avalable forsale g0 1286 7 {25,408) 236,035
Total Assets 782 13,513 173 (28,307) 258,11
Wovement in Level 3 of financial instruments measurment at falr value Group and Bank
Galns{ Losses In profit Gains / Losses In other
in RON thousands i) ] or loss comprehensive income  Sales/Settlements 2014
MSSETS
Financial assets held for traing N S S i /5 Y e S T | T
" Dewvalveshedfortming Al 4,882 e T
“Financil assets designated at fai value heough Proil & Loss 20086 T T 7T Y
‘Financll assets avalabeforsale I Tm U T am 04T
Tatal Assets 258,11 13,384 {105} (22,730) 248,610
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS PER CATEGORY ACCORDING TOIAS 39

loss

2013 Group
Financial Derivatives Finance
in RON thousands Loans and Held ‘to Trading Des!gnated Available for liabillties at Cash on deslgnated as _Iaasa Total
raceivables maturity at fair value sale . hand hedging according to
amortised cost :
instruments IAS 17
ASSETS
_Cash and cash balances _ 826571 . _ e 1.3202?5 9,586,006
“Loans and advances to cred|l|n§lr_tgtlgps o B07736 — i B . . e o 507,736
Loans andadvances to customers 37380306 S = -=—"— = = . _ 643084 38,002,389
"Derivative - -hedge accountlng o e o — W = 39,233 39,233
Fmancnal assets- held for trading = = 373598 - ' B - - 373588
II:::nclaIassets at fair valus through profltor 34381 34,351
Financiafassets -available forsale g . 2 - B - 521,762
Financial assets - held to maturity 1,235,256 - 0,235,256
Total financial assets 46,132,752 10,235,256 373,598 34,351 5,219,762 1,320,295 39,233 643,084 63,998,331
::l)zts gains / losses recognized through profit or 2,007 648 (35,14) @ 007) 1970,507
Net gains /1osses recogrized through OCI — R {B038) R )
LIABILITIES
Finangial I|ab'l't|_es -held for trading e (eeo8y e ———— o - T
Financial liabilities -measured at amortized cost W e W o __ (6rsropeey e {57,570,089)
Derivative - hedge accounting - ' {1087 ,266) {1087 ,266)
Total financial liabilities (66,061) (57,670,089} (1,087,2686) {58,723,418)
Net gains / losses recognized through profitor 624 624
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42, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS PER CATEGORY ACCORDING TO IAS 39 (continued)

2014 Group
Financial Dearivatives Finance
in RON thousands Loa_ns and Held to Trading Das!gnated Available for liabilities at Cashon designated_as lease Total
receivables maturity at fair value sale hand hedging according to
amortised cost .
instruments IAS 17
ASSETS
Cash and cash balances —_ 687221 SR T SE——————— e pB2948 .. 8235%7
Loans and advances to credit institutions - 525281 ] —,- : = e Coi - 525281
Loans and advances fo customers:‘ 4 31894842 s il B B - B . - . 811224 32,566,088
Financial assets- held for trading 370829 = e o R ... . %m0a
::::nclal assets - at fair value through pmflt or 24587 24587
Financial assets -avallable forsale ) ] — = 7655061 - == = _ 7,655,081
Financial assets - held to maturity 9,578,176 9,578,176
Total linancinl assals 39,082 342 5786 370,829 24,587 T:655,061 1,562,948 BT 1,224 5R.055,167
II;I;!S gains / losses recognized through profit or 4,440,001 (8B566) (69 9,201 4430475
Netgains/losses moognized thoughOG gy e gy
LIABILIT }E‘E
Financial ffabilities - held fortrading = (f0.27) i 1 H i _ (10,e7)
Financial liabilities -measured at amortized cost = 2 _— —= (56564030y - __ (55,564,030)
Derivative - - hedge accounting : (554,005) {554,005)
Total fimancial labllities {70,127} {55, 564,030) [554,005) ﬂEE;TﬁE,!EE_!_
Net gains / losses recognized through profitor .
loss. . _(257.749) 147
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42.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS PER CATEGORY ACCORDING TO IAS 39 {continued)

loss

2013 Bank
Financial Derivatives
in RON thousands Loans and Held t_o Trading Desi_gnated Avallable for liabilitles at Cash on deslg_nated as Total
recelvables maturity at fair value sale hand hedging
amortised cost .
instruments
ASSETS _
Cash and cash balances . B 8,233,934 —_— 131,728 9545662
_Loans and advances to credit dit institutions ) 483,262 L e L . 483,262
“Loans and advances to customers P _37ee02w SR — o aTee02T
Denvatwe hedge acco unting o . == = = = 39,233 39,233
Financial assets- held fortradlng o . 371763 .,...._:._ N ::‘: I __'-_ . __::: o . 3171,76(_3_
II:;::ncralass.ets at fair value through profitor 34351 34,351
_Financial assets - available forsale ~ m““"__ T e o 4453 53,260 o - == “4453260°
Financial assets - held to maturity T 8,009,939 - - ' 9,008,030
Total financjal assets 46,677,413 9,009,939 371,763 34,351 4,453,260 1,311,728 39,233 61,897,687
:’:l)ztsgams / losses recognized through profitor 1825629 (35,184) (2,007) 1788 488
Net gains /fosses recognized through OCI R I (40,405) e e (30,405)
LIABILITIES .

Financial liabilities - held fortradl_ng (66,081) e . (66,067
_Flnancral liabilities -measured atamo mzed cost o ) e e R » (54,358,8701 e e (b4.358870)
Derivative - hedge accounfing =S S ’ - (1087,266) (1,087 266)
Total financial liabilities {66,061) (54,358,870) (1,087,266) (55,512,197)
Net gains / losses recognized through profitor 624 &4
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42.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS PER CATEGORY ACCORDING TO IAS 38 {continued)

2014 Bank
. Derlvatives
Loans and  Heldt Designated Available for ' mancial Cash on designated as
in RON thousands oar! n N Trading i ! ° liabllities at g Total
receivables maturity at fair value sale hedging
amortised cost -
instruments

ASSETS
_Cash and cash balances 6,604,321 = y: e —— = o= Ase4w0 . BBBAN
"Loans and advances to credit institutio ns 480,660 ol = N . = "480,666
Lo ans s and g advan@s_ to customers 32 9_37_,2?3_ — - B _ e 32 937,273
Flnarlg!_al assets- held for Hgd_mg .l eve...370829 = o= = 370.829_
II;I::nmal assets - at fair value through prafit or 24587 24587
Financial assets - available forsale = s 5 6635423 L=r  — 6635423
‘Financiai assets - held tc to maturlty 8,429 417 8,429.417
Total financial assets 40,022,260 B A28 497 370,829 24 58T 6,835 423 1,554 120 07,036,636
II:zlsgalns / losses recognized through profit or 4,440,001 (18,566) (%1 8.201 4,430,475
Net gains / iosses recognized through OC1 = : e (387389 — | _ (867,397
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities - held for trading . {70,127} _ = {70,127)
Financial iiabilities -m easured at amortized cost = - il (52,8724410) _ (s2872440)
Derivative - hedge acco unting (554,005} {554,005)
Tatal financial llabilities (70127 (52,872,441 (554,005) (53,496.573)
ll:l)z’;garns / losses recognized through profit or (257,749) 147 (256,602)
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43. AUDIT FEES AND TAX CONSULTANCY FEES

The following table contains fundamental audit fees and tax fees charged by the auditors (of BCR Bank and subsidiaries; the auditors being
Emst & Young) in the financial years 2014 and 2013:

Group Bank
in RON thousands 2013 201 2013 2044
Fees forthe audit of the financial statements and the consolidated financfalstatements 5§01 452 4360 3et
Otherservices involving the issuanceofareport 88 47 - G
Other services 223 B0 30 86
TOTAL 5,412 4,718 4,390 3,977
44. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Group Bank
In RON thousands 2013 201 2013 2014
Contingent liabilfies i — 2628337 3,6686 2766485 3,8680
Commitments™ " I I ' 6,074,300 §.184.400 6448882 5336060
Tatal 8,702,721 $,330,685 9,207,367 8,492,089

* Include both imevocable and revecable commitments. The revocable commitments in amount of RON 2,548,525 thousand {2013: RON 2,503,761 thousand) for the Group and
RON 2,706,294 thousand (2013: RON 2,835,537 thausand) for the Bank were notincluded in Notes 40.5,1, 40.5.3, 40.5.4 and 40.5.7.

Contingent liabilities

The Group issues letters of credif, guarantees (including standby letters of credit) and commits to make payments on behalf of customers in
event of a specific act, generally related to the import or export of goods.

Legal claims
Liligations refated fo the merger with Bancorex

In 1999 as a result of the distressed financial situation of one of the Romanian banks having the State as majority shareholder, Banca Romana
de Comert Exterior - “Bancorex”, the Government of Romania launched  series of measures designated to limit the effect of Bancorex’s
insolvency on the economy of Romania.

These measures included placing Bancorex under special administration for a limited period, transferring certain non-performing loans of
Bancorex to an Asset Recovery Agency (AVAB) and transferring all other activities to the Bank. The Bank received Romanian govemment
securities having similar maturity as the deposits and other creditor's accounts transfemed from Bancorex.

On 6 July 2000 the Romanian Govemment issued the Emergency Ordinance No. 131/2000 and subsequent Decision 908/2000 stating that the
Government will issue unconitional letters of guarantee in favor of the Bank against litigafions up to an amount of ROL 38 billion (3.8 milion
RON) and USD 116 million against litigations for which the Bank is the defendant, arising from activities of the former Bancorex, before it was
removed from the Register of Trade.

Based on the Emergency Ordinance No. 18/2004, all off-balance shest, other commitments and all the risks to the Bank arising from iigations
refated to former Bancorex are guaranteed, remain and will be guaranteed by the State. According to the Emergency Ordinance No. 18/2004
and Government Crdinance No. 832/2004, the Ministry of Public Finance issued Letters of Guarantee for 56 litigetions in which the Bank is
involved following the merger with Bancorex,

After that, according to the provisions of Government Decision no 1087/2006, the value of guaraniees was supplemented, by issuing of other 18
letter of quaraniges for fitigations resulted from Bancorex's activity.
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44. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES {continued)

As at 31 December 2014, the Bank was still the defendant in one case from this calegary, for which the AVAS's subragation wasr't operated,
{according to the provisions of Emergency Ordinance no 85/2004), the total value of probable claims is RON 28,747 885.

Until December 31, BCR hadn't received a final answer from MFP to its nefification related fo the increasing of guarantee ceiling. The amounts
mentionad in the notificafion sent in December 2013 amounting EUR 402,760,385 and RON 10,791,084 (for 8 litigations) were diminished
(following the finalization of 6 cases) at RON 30,319,463, representing the civalue of 2 ltigations.

In this case the bank will ask the AVAS's subrogation, according to the provisions of Emergency Ordinance no 85/2004.
The management of the Bank believes that such actions will not significantly impact the economic results and financial position of the Bank.
Other litigations

As at 31 December 2014, the Bank was involved in the nomal course of its business in a number of 3,710 other litigation as defendant, out of
which in 1,146 cases the value of claims are mentioned.

According to the internal procedure of bank’s Legal Department relating to the litigations evaluation as required by IAS 37 *Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, on December 2014, the Bank recorded provisions for itigations in fotal amount of RON 70,23
million. In the opinion of management, after taking appropriate legal advice, the outcome of these legal claims will not give rise to any significant
loss beyond the amount provided at 31 December 2014,

Unfair terms

Starting with the enactment of Government Emergency Ordinance no.50/2010 on loan agreements for private individuals, as subsequently
modified (“Ordinance 50°), the Bank was involved in consumer litigations with certain financial implications, which carried on during 2013, The
Law 268 enacled in December 2010 modified Ordinance 50 so that certain provisions are not applicable to loan agreements with individuals
existing at the date of the Ordinance 50 issuance,

Following these changes, litigations under the Ordinance 50 were generally dismissed by the Courts and the Bank won most of cases.
However, clients have continued to take court actions against the Bank on the grounds of Law no.193/2000 on unfair terms in confracts with
consumers, as subsequently modified, that transposes into national law the Directive no. 1993/ ¥EC on unfair ferms in consumer contracts.
Taking into consideration the nature of claims filed in the pending iitigafions in Q4 2014 and the wirvloss ratio recorded in these cases, the bank
established a general provision for the itigation's risk rezufted from this category of cases.

As per the Directive the pricing of a contract cannot be considered an unfair term, however the transposition in the national law provides the
same condition but in a vague form leading to a heterogeneous courts practice. In Oclober 2013 came into force one paragraph of the
application law (76/2012) of the Procedural Civil Code (aiming to transpose into the national legistation certain requirements in the EU Directive
83/13) that changed the Law 193/2000 regarding unfair terms in consumer contracts. As an effect of such change once a national tribunal has
been informed, either by the Consumer Protection Agency (ANPC) or by certain consumer associations, upon the existence of an abusive
clause in one contract concluded between a consumer and a bank, it can make a class-action ruling to eliminate the respective clause from all
the contracts, no matter the date when such contracts were concluded.

As at 31 December 2014, the Bank management based on significant input from depariments involved and considering the expacted
establishment, by the Ministry of Justice, of a specialized court on matters related fo consumer protection, including class-actions, assassed the
matter and concluded that the provision for liigation have been adequately addressed. However, given the complexity and inherent
uncertainties related to the outcome of possible scenarios regarding the new law application, the Bank's estimates of the provisions needed
may differ from actual cbligations resulfing from the completion of such legal disputes in future periods.
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45. ANALYSIS OF REMAINING MATURITIES

The tables below show an analysis of assets and liabilities analyzed according to when they are expected to be recavered or settled,

Group
December 2013 December 2044

in RON thousands < 1year > 1year < 1year > 1year
Cash and cash balances == géBB,OUG o *3 8'%3.5,233. ] B
Financial assets - heid for trading = = 73508 = — “23§.651 _ mme
_ Derivatives - 27/ - 58805 96,171
" Othertrad " —— 33087 z 7848 36,005
- 33 - 24587

“Financial asses - ava.lébleforsale 3 730276 449486 9BOD 6737051
Financial sssets -heldto matuity = —— 2508473 wj§36783 = 2.5ﬁ,32/0f‘ = '7951.8_@"
Loans and receivables to credlt Instiutions T T 507,736 - 41!:5"51 1)8,939' !
Loans and receivables 10 customers . o — 9,046,527 28,95.’?.52‘ ~wiQ.Ti'tS:.’.‘TT'n' 2_2.803,8_89
‘Derivatives - hedge accuuntlng = e = ..,..._.. — ) ) 7 = ——1,141 == 38,002 . _' x
Property and equipment i AT — _ - 1501552 el mlﬂﬁsm?ﬁ
_I;-veslmant properties o = R e —— 44,134 oL fpe——— -
Intangible assets - . B T . w3 - 28Aei
Investments In assoclales andjoint ventures o T - 5289
Taxassets - 90061 U526 E9B0C6 K2
Assetsheldforsa]e - D N - — '07,-&— -l -'“-"'"5"35""556"" e T
Other assets - 271111 249405 78,746
TOTAL ASSETS 23,312,362 43,416,435 23,271,788 38,352,825
Finanacial [iabilities - held for trading 66,061 i 26397 43,730
Dervatives 66,081 -7 oeaT | 4370
Financfal liabllitles measurad at amoriised cost ) 40,694,313 %,875,778 40,578 956 14,885,074
Daposils from banks S B 426633 DEASS0B 35BS DA
Depostts from customers e 35.4°6,591 205138 96,750,26 363,503
Debt secuiitios ssued 570877 858851 = 1044208
Other financial liablllies 440207 : w0808 -
'Denvatlves - hedge accounhng i o - 543035 ) 544231 55:005 3
Provisions = 4906 96951 88865 288534
Current tax iabilities 2270 —_—
Deferred taxtiabilties 2482 1328 oz4 )
Other fiabilities il e e 75226 X BBABT A
TOTAL LIABILITIES 41,488,261 17,817,286 41,526,629 15,187,830
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45.  ANALYSIS OF REMAINING MATURITIES (continued)
Bank
Decamber 2013 Decamber 2044

in RON thousands < 1yoar > {year < 1year > 1yaar
Cash and cash balanges — 9545862 - 65341 = e f
Financial assets - held for trading ) 37783 __-= 3?8,633 I ,3217‘.9..
e T T T T T g T T e Cwg
Other trading assats T 33087 e 7948 38005
Financial assets designated at fair value thraugh profit or loss o 34351 . . 2ameT
Financial assets - available for sale 646,359 3,836,901 842402 5783021
Financial assets - heid to maturity 2, #0800 6,669,089 20648 6365260
Loans and recaivables to credit institutions B T #6974 47288 a7 08830
Loans and receivables (o sustomers : _9:418,635 28,541,38_% _ I 9:1:’53,570 Z i ZSMLES.T_p_a__
Deivatives -hedge sccounting T R aow SRS
Propertyand equipment T CoT T 312.354'-" i o _»-'__: ;222,5"3_9"
“Intangible assets B S T 1!
Investments in assoclates _ e )
Taxassats Tt T o " 8aM2 39,563 5a2930 .
Non-curent assets and disposal gro'ups clagsifiad as held for sale - - oY " 37.67§ TTTTTTTR
Other assels i 680,882 T BE6H00
TOTAL ASSETS 23,300,058 40,209.905  2%,125,726 36,811,408
Flnancial liabilities held fortradingm_ —— e &B5DS ____F 26,307 4_31,730
Derivatives : 66061 _ - . mw  am
Financiallibilties messuredat amarlisedcosts_ — 39,379,602 WOTOME | 3956233 BIDAS
Deposits from banks . T T Tagma7ea ma0362 820807 DBSWAE
Deposits from customers : 35,230,267 5B507_ 3HTIE81  16MEH0
Debtsecuritiestssued e ——— o — A3 95ges? 1044208
Other financial liablidies ] 440207 - 371850 e
Derivatives - hedge accoLnting = — 543035 544231 [ 351,605_ ik
Provisions ) T . 305,953 91651 25143
"Other Liabilties - T p1eE3 86970 e
TOTAL LIABILITIES 40,110,751 15,990,362 40,329,261 13,604,976

The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the financial liabilities at 31 December 2014 and at 31 December 2013 based on contractual
undiscounted repayment obligations. Repayments which are subject to notice are treated as if notice were given immediately. However, the
Group and the Bank expect that many customers will not request repayment on the earfiest date the Group or the Bank could be required to
pay and the tables do not reflect the expected cash-flows indicaled by the Group's and the Banic's depos retention history,

Group
Decembear 2013 December 2014
in RON thousands < tyear > 1year < 1year > 1year
“Financial liabilities measured at amortised coats T T T Tangpagas BEW0 4066884 BA83TD
Deposits from banks 4342071 5857397 3,500,887 204208
Deposits from customers e~ — o S5.GDIB07. o 220550 37008997 3307408
Debt securities issued 330,956 1030,860 1044.208
TOTAL LIABILITIES 40,594,934 19151410 40,668,884 16,483,719
Bank
December 2013 Decembaer 2014
in RON thousands < 1year > 1year < 1year > {year
Financialbabiities measured at amontised costs 39,601892 15,974,085 30,767,008 #,790.850
Deposits frombanks i e 333206 BA21280 326485 DOD6H
Deposits from customers 35,732,620 575556 3630528 1734008
Debl securities issued 436,356 77240 T BEBds | 1044208
TOTAL LIABILITIES 39,601,892 16,974,085 39,767,608 14,790,850
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45.  ANALYSIS OF REMAINING MATURITIES (continued)

The table below show the contractual expiry by maturity of the contingent liabilities and commitments:

Group
Deacember 2013 Dacember 2014
In RON thousands < an >{ an <1 an »1 an
Contingent Nlabiiiiies - - - - —emT 1.288,900 1,3/412° T EFESAGE T T @7 i34
Commitments — - B 5,132,651 042,348 4,152,405 1,008,048
Total 8,430,081 2,271,760 6,887,505 1,452,180
Bank
December 213 Dacember 2014
in RON thousands <1 an > an <1 an *1 an
Contingent llabilities 1,428,673 1,329,412 2,707,443 449,677
Commitmants 5,506,534 942,348 ~ 4,270,744 1,085,225
Total 6,935,607 2,271,760 6,978,187 1,513,902
46. COUNTRY BY COUNTRY REPORTING
2013 Group
c Operating Pro-taxrosult s on .
ountry . from continuing incom@ Taxes paid
. operations "
___Romania = . L 3981970 .. bega 534,134 e
Moldova 8,651 7,947 (2,87) 77
Total 4,000,621 66,769 531,947 14,183
20 14 Group
P ro-t; it
Country i‘;::’;‘:"g fr:;.m ac’:l;et:::.llng :‘:x:r::“ Taxes pald
cperations
Romania A 3.3_33,750 _ (3,099,626) 244216 “u02r
Moldova 6584 TTAm T T T@en T T
Total 3,388,344 {3,037,865) 243,848 14,027
47. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
No subsequent events occurred after the reporting period.
AUTHORISED PERSON, AUTHORISED PERSON,
Firstname and name First name and name
Signature Signature
Executive Vice-President, Executive Director Accounting Division,
Adriana Jankovicova Rastislav Kovacik

oy

93



